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3.1.3. Water treatment 3.1.3. KEE
The Group is committed to assisting industrial REEB A TH D EETHRBRIZH
enterprises in complying with increasingly stringent PERURA] - BB KIRIBHEE - At - K
discharge regulations and improving the quality of the SENRBEEBEEZLERIBEKE
water environment. Accordingly, the Group’s service B e

business has gradually expanded to water treatment.

During the Reporting Period, the average discharge RBEER - AEEARE TERE)SK
intensity of the main pollutants discharged from the EEBEALREERENEZ)SEMEERY
Group’s Lubao Industrial Park Wastewater Treatment B RURERR T ¢

Project after treatment are as follows:

Environmental indicators of sewage

discharge Unit 2021 2022
BRI REER B 20215 2022F
Ammonia nitrogen mg/litre 217 1.74
2z e

Biochemical oxygen demand mg/litre 12.08 14.55
EYEaE z%n /7t

Chemical oxygen demand mg/litre 75.23 69.87
tEFa8 Z2n/ 7

pH value - 7.69 7.48
B (B -

Lubao Sewage Treatment Center

% B85 K B TR s

During the Year, the Group's Lubao Sewage Treatment Center in Shanxi, China was operating stably,
providing wastewater treatment services for various chemical companies in the park and ensuring the
reuse of water resources. The water quality of the advanced treatment system, the circulating sewage
treatment system and the intensified treatment system for concentrated wastewater of Lubao Sewage
Treatment Center has reached the specified standards of the quality of recycled water used in
circulating and cooling water stipulated in the “Design Specification for Sewage Recycling Engineering
(GB50335-2016)", thereby realizing the reuse and resource utilization of reclaimed water and greatly
saving the amount of fresh supplementary water for the park.

AEE  AEEUATEILFENRESKEEPLETRE  RERAZ T EERRBKEERY - RE
BRKEREMA - MESKEEFOHNRERERR - BRKIDTKEERS  RKRERIERGNEK
IKEERCFKBAENAIZRE R $(GB50335-2016)) F #11E ) B A KM A BT IR /S ABK /K E IR 1R AR &6
R BRTHKEAMERL  RARELREREE THHEMITNKKE -



3.1.4. Waste treatment

The major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group is desulfurized gypsum and paper produced in
the flue gas desulfurization process, and the hazardous
waste generated is mainly waste catalyst produced in
the flue gas denitrification process. We preferentially
sell desulfurized gypsum to users who have the
utilization ability to reuse. For the desulfurized gypsum
that cannot be reused, it is used in the construction
of storage and disposal sites that are constructed in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control of
General Industrial Solid Waste in Storage and Disposal
Sites “— R TXREREVNHRT  RESTREHIRE"

At present, the Group has sold all the desulfurized
gypsum generated from its concession operation
projects to third parties for their comprehensive use in
the cement plant additive materials and gypsum board
processing industries. In addition, all hazardous waste
is sent to professionally qualified recyclers for disposal
after approval by relevant environmental protection
departments of the projects.
During the Reporting Period, the total amount of
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group was
3,258,025.46 tonnes®, with an intensity of 17.15
tonnes per ten thousand RMB of revenue, while the
total amount of hazardous waste generated was
15,190.85 tonnes, with an intensity of 0.08 tonnes per
ten thousand RMB of revenue. In the future, we will
continue to monitor the amount of non-hazardous waste
and hazardous waste generated by the Group in order
to improve its measures on pollution prevention and
control.

Due to the corresponding increase in the scope of data
collection in the environmental field during the Reporting
Period and the increase in the total operation period of the flue
gas projects as compared with the same period last year, the

total amount of non-hazardous waste generated has increased.
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Haixi Jingze Project

BESEER

Haixi Jingze is located in Yinmaxia Industrial Park, Xitieshan Town, Dachaidan, Haixi, Qinghai
Province. It mainly carries out the collection and stable disposal of hazardous solid waste. It is the
only rigid landfill in Qinghai Province so far, with a total planned area of 500 acres and a hazardous
waste disposal capacity of approximately 90,000 tonnes per year.

The Group’s Haixi Jingze Project has further promoted the Group’s strategic transformation and
business upgrade under the concept of “Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality”, and accelerated
the Group's expansion of new business areas. Haixi Jingze is the Group'’s first equity merger and
acquisition project. The acquisition of Haixi Jingze marked Bogi’s solid step of expanding to the

field of hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal business, laying a solid foundation for our
development of such business. The acquisition has accelerated the promotion of the new four-in-
one development pattern of “gas, water, solid waste and dual-carbon new energy*” of the Group and
enhanced the Group’s core competitiveness and comprehensive strength.

BEREMNE A EAMNAEERHIERTRIXRR T ZHERBEREEMHRERBTEE
B REZANFEAM - —RMMEEES - LREMBS00H - BERERELNIBN/F

AEENEASIZRE @ £ TRET [FREERTAI BRI TARENEMBIUMEBTR - IMRT RE
B EHRENER BOREFEAKEF —EAREHFEER - BARENEBESEETAEERERE
REXKAHERNBREUNSK  ARMACEEREREXRHERET TRENER  MRESHAEE R
IKeE e BRI FNREIR | A — BB BRIER - B0 T ARENZLBRFNNGEEES °



3.2.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to promoting the responsible
use of natural resources and enhancing the efficiency
of resource use in business operations by implementing
comprehensive energy saving, energy consumption
reduction and recycling measures. In addition, we
have established a “small performance indicator on
consumption planning” to monitor the consumption of
resources used in project operation, such as power
limestone and liquid ammonia. A review meeting is held
once a month and evaluation is carried out by relevant
project department. Energy saving tasks are delegated
to employees at all levels to ensure energy saving
targets are met.

3.2
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3.2.1. Energy

3.2.1.

The energy consumed by the Group is mainly the fuel

used by vehicles and equipment and the electricity

power consumed during the operation of projects.

During the Year, the total power consumption of the
Group was 1,228,855,982.64 kWh, representing a total
power consumption intensity of 6,466.82 kWh per ten

thousand RMB of revenue.

Types of energy
REREm A

Power

E)

Power consumption in offices
MAEREE

Power consumption for project operations

HERAREE

° Flue gas treatment projects

. fERREIAER

° Sewage treatment projects

. 757KERIETA R

° Hazardous and solid waste
treatment/disposal projects

. fEERE IR R EE B

o Dual-carbon energy saving projects

PrrPND)

o E e
Total consumption
HERES
Consumption intensity

HRATE

Fuel

Gasoline consumption
UREAE

Gasoline consumption intensity

BRERRE

Diesel consumption
SOmERE

Diesel consumption intensity

SHEREE

Unit
By

kWh
T LB
kWh
T BB
kWh
TRE
kWh
T FUB

kWh

TRE

kWh

TR

kWh

FHH

kWh/RMB ten thousand

of revenue

TR AREBETLE
Tonnes
8

Tonnes/RMB ten thousand
of revenue

WE, AREBITER
Tonnes
L7

Tonnes/RMB ten thousand
of revenue

W ARBETER

BEIR

AEEMNEFREREREEIEAEWER
WA AR & @18 B #R P A
MEN - AFE FAEBNBREEER
1,228,855,982.64 F EL i + BIEE LA

K 4EFEE R E 56,466.82 T R B o
2021 2022
20214 20224
819,121.63 760,451.92

1,740,677,505.50

1,730,658,429.50

10,019,076.00

1,741,496,627.13

8,324.55

156.81

0.00075

4.34

0.00002

1,228,095,530.72

1,203,108,005.12

12,627,658.60

494,247.00

11,865,620.00

1,228,855,982.64

6,466.82

160.98

0.00085

8.4

0.00004




As mentioned above, the Group strictly abides by
the codes of the state and relevant agencies on the
use of energy. Meanwhile, we have formulated and
implemented the Energy Saving and Consumption
Reduction Management System, with the primary goal
of minimizing energy consumption by establishing and
improving energy-saving systems, upgrading existing
equipment and promoting low-carbon life.

The Group has made energy-saving adjustments to
the demister, and modified the cyclone blades on the
intake side of the condensing and wet film layer of high-
efficient demister of absorbing column; transformed
some circulating pump motors into permanent magnet
motors; carried out energy-saving adjustment to low-
load and low-sulfur oxidation blowers; and applied
the addition of synergists to projects, so as to further
enhance the operating efficiency of power units and
reduce the carbon footprint.

In addition, the Group has undertaken the BOT project
of Tianjin lron Works Co., Ltd’'s CDQ work, which
includes three parts, namely coking CDQ, sintering
360m? waste heat power generation, and power
steam turbine. By using CDQ technology, more than
80% of the sensible heat contained in red coke can
be recovered for power generation which not only
enhances energy efficiency, but also improves coke
quality and productivity while avoiding pollution. The
energy-saving service industry is increasingly important
in the areas of conserving energy, improving energy
efficiency and reducing carbon dioxide emissions,
and has also made positive contributions to controlling
smog and mitigating climate change. This is the
first coke CDQ waste heat power generation unit
(25MW) undertaken by the Group. The successful
commissioning of this unit has laid a solid foundation for
the Group’s dual-carbon energy saving strategic layout.
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The Group’s new office decoration design also caters
to the needs of energy saving and pollution reduction.
We choose energy-efficiency luminaires (such as
T5 fluorescent lamps and light-emitting diodes) and
electronic equipment with safety as priority, reduce the
number of luminaries at places with low demand for
brightness and use natural light during daytime as much
as possible. We also avoid installing air conditioners
at locations exposed in direct sunlight to prevent the
sun from affecting the capacity of the air conditioner,
and clean the luminaries and electrical filters regularly
to maximize its energy efficiency. At the same time,
we also remind employees to turn off lighting systems,
air conditioners, electronic devices and electrical
appliances when the office is not in use, and allow
employees to dress in casual wear at work every Friday
in order to reduce the use of air conditioners.

AEBHHPRERMRT LS T HAE
FMRABRNFE - RAPEASERY R
MER (TSR ABREX_BE) RE
FRE TEAREREE  EEFX=
ERhRIEREE  ARERABRX
BAY  MRERREFNABLEEERR
SR E U ABTPEZFHNEH IR
EHEARARE EREBER BE
REHERME - AR - RMTREET
RAERMRAERERERA RS - =5
BETRE ERRERBRRATREED
FAHBEIFEEEERLE - AR
Bz



3.2.2. Water

resources

The water resources consumed by the Group are
mainly running water used in equipment cleaning,

project operation and daily office work. We have not

encountered any problems in the process of obtaining

suitable water sources. During the Year, the total water

consumption by the Group was 18,457,264.90 tonnes,

representing a total water consumption intensity of
97.18 tonnes per ten thousand RMB of revenue.
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3.2.2. XER

AEEMNKERERRREZARES
Y #EEE  WARARLEEFEANG
K o BT KEUEAKRBREFRIIEE
BIRAWEE - NFE - AEERBFEK
£518,457,264.900F - BNEE TL U
RIEKEE RI7. 130 -

2021
20214

11,849.00

18,943,387.30

16,830,664.30

2,112,723.00

18,955,263.00

90.61

Water resources consumption Unit
KERHEFE By
Water consumption in offices Tonnes
WAEREKE g
Water consumption for project operations Tonnes
EBEEFKE Mg
° Flue gas treatment projects Tonnes
o ERIRIEIEE Mg
° Sewage treatment projects Tonnes
o VSKERIEIER 148
o Hazardous and solid waste

treatment/disposal projects Tonnes
. EERELEEEER 7]
o Dual-carbon energy saving Tonnes
. SRR RS Mg
Total consumption Tonnes
FEAE RS Mg

Tonnes/RMB ten thousand

Consumption intensity of revenue
FAEE Wi ARMEETEW

2022
20224

6,386.00

18,450,878.90

15,682,338.90

2,063,936.00

10,754.00

693,850.00

18,457,264.90

97.13

We also adopt the following methods and measures to
promote water conservation:

Posting water saving signs in toilets to remind
employees turning off faucets after use

Regularly checking the water meter readings
and hidden leakage problems, and promptly
arranging maintenance services with relevant
department in case of leakage

Using faucets and toilets with water efficiency
labels and dual-flush toilets
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3.2.3. Paper consumption

3.3.

The paper consumed by the Group is mainly for
employees’ daily work, such as the printing of
documents, financial statements, and circulars.

We also adopt the following methods and measures to
reduce paper consumption:

o Replacing the paper-based office administration
system with an electronic office system (OA
system)

° Maximizing the reuse of paper, using smaller

fonts for the necessary printing of documents,
using electronic communication technology to
transmit information and regularly monitoring and
setting printing quotas for users to reduce paper
usage

° Posting notice in a prominent place next to
printers and copiers to remind employees of
double-sided photocopying or paper reuse

o Purchasing paper made of recycled materials

o Establishing a recycling station to collect paper
products such as waste paper, posters, letters
and envelopes. Except for papers containing
confidential information, all recovered papers
are sent to waste paper recycling companies for
recycling.

Environment and natural resources

As our main business is environmental protection
engineering, the impact of our business operation on
the environment is minimal. The main environmental
impacts of our business operation are emissions from
the consumption of energy, electricity power and paper
in project operations and offices.

3.2.3. ALEEH

3.3.
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The Group has reduced its impact on the environment
by adopting the emission reduction and energy
saving measures mentioned in the sections headed
“3.1 Emission” and “3.2 Use of Resources”. We are
committed to fostering an environmentally responsible
culture for all employees by promoting an environmental
friendly living. In terms of diet, we will choose low-
carbon ingredients or locally produced food to reduce
the carbon emission of food delivery, and try to avoid
the use of disposable cutlery or food packaging
in activities. In the meantime, we also encourage
employees to take public transportation. In 2022,
the Group frequently organized and participated in
environmental protection activities. On 12 March 2022,
Boqgi Environmental participated in the Arbor Day Event
to promote green production, energy conservation and
emission reduction, contributing to the realization of the
objective of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.
The Group also participated in the Earth Day Event and
the Environment Day Event on 22 April 2022 and 5 June
2022, respectively.
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3.4.

Climate change

Climate change refers to the increase in the overall
global temperature and the impact of extreme weather,
which has a profound impact on the earth and may
change our living environment forever, so it has become
an important issue today. Companies around the world
are taking actions to address climate change, and the
Group is no exception. We will actively respond to the
possible impacts of climate change in order to prevent
climate change from causing damage to operating
entities and the communities where our operations are
located. We will also pay attention to and meet the ever-
changing regulatory requirements for responding to
climate change, as well as monitor our own resources
consumption and emissions, with particular emphasis
on mitigating greenhouse gas effects.

The Group has identified the following risks related to
climate change:

o Physical risk: Situations such as flooding,
abnormal rainfall patterns, extremely hot weather.
The situations may lead to temporary closure of
office locations, and extreme weather such as
typhoons may cause casualties to employees,
sudden power outages at office locations and
facilities affected by floods;

o Transition risk: Failure to adapt to relevant
climate change policies and regulatory measures
strengthened by the state may lead to business
closure, loss of profits and reputational damage.
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The Group has planned the following measures in
response to the risks of climate change:

o For new and expanded projects, the Group will
promote the investment on the research of green
energy conservation and strengthen the ability to
tackle long-term climate change and respond to
climatic disasters;

o The Group will actively promote theoretical and
technological innovations such as green islands
and environmental management, in order to
reduce the impact of operations on the ecology
and the environment, so as to mitigate the
process of climate change;

o The Group will formulate measures to ensure
employee safety and strictly follow relevant
extreme weather guidelines issued by the
government;

° The Group will integrate climate change risks
into the decision-making process of the top
management, regularly identify climate change
risks and potential impacts and update its
management strategies on climate change;

° The international carbon emission reduction
regulations and best industry practices will be
adopted, and the Group’s carbon emission
information will be publicly disclosed regularly;

. The Group will maintain communication with
employees, customers, contractors, suppliers
and other stakeholders to promote and
encourage the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions from day-to-day operations where
applicable.
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4.1.

As a comprehensive environmental protection
engineering technology service enterprise, brand
integrity is an important consideration for the Group.
We strictly abide by the laws and regulations of the
state and regulatory agencies, adhere to compliant
operations and foster a culture of integrity. While
maintaining a safe working environment, we also attach
great importance to the rights and interests of our
customers and put great efforts to continuously improve
and enhance our service and supplier management
system. We are committed to providing customers with
high-quality comprehensive environmental management
services and continuously promoting the development
of the industry.

Quality management

The Group adheres to the principle of “sustaining
by quality, developing by reputation and benefiting
by management” to continuously improve the quality
management of its projects. We strictly complies
with relevant national and industry requirements and
standards such as the Building Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FEARZLFMBEREZEL) and the
Regulation on the Quality Management of Construction
Projects (EFxILIEEEEEEM). To this end, the
Group has formulated the Management System for
the Investigation and Control of Potential Safety
Accidents, the Management System for the Safe and
Civilized Construction of EPC Projects, the Engineering
Quality Management System, the Engineering Quality
Inspection and Acceptance System, the Safety and
Quality Management Reward and Punishment System,
the Management Manual for the Safety and Quality
Management Department and the Management
Regulations for Safety Education and Training
(Revised), thereby constituting a three-level quality
supervision and management system, with a view to
improving the internal quality management of projects
during the preparation, construction, inspection and
acceptance stages:

4.1.
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Preparation stage
BEKR

We have established a quality management system for each project department, and incorporated the
construction team into the management system to prepare construction and quality inspection plans; carried
out strict quality control measures in the design of project plans and in the tender and procurement process;
and prepared and approved the industrial guidance for various tasks.

BMRLTHENEEEERS  HEIROMATERGUREEIREERRAE  £HB D RRAMBER
BRITOHPETRBESEH TE  ETRENFHIBEITENIXESE -

Construction stage
TR ER

We will carry out quality inspection and technical guidance throughout the construction process, and
closely monitor the important processes and procedures of each project, including: strengthening process
management, inspecting the ongoing construction projects, preparing quality supervision and inspection
reports, reporting quality issues and corrective measures in a timely manner, and closely monitoring the
solution of quality issues; strengthening the management of personnel entering the site, requiring construction
units to be stationed with dedicated quality inspectors and workers with special duties must hold relevant
qualification certificates; and strengthening the management of inspection and acceptance of incoming
materials and equipment.

ZMg2RRETEERENENES  HEEABEENEZHENIFEAREER 81 - NRBEERE  BE
FEBRINIER  REESEBERERES  MNREZESRBNAUEER ZURIEEMBHMR © N EHES
AEMER  EXMIBNLFTRGEBRLZERRAS  BRIBABUTRHEFT LIERAXT © MREESH
ME - RENBRKER -

Inspection and acceptance stage
B Uk PRk B

We will carry out inspection and acceptance in strict accordance with the design plan and relevant national
and industry norms and standards; carry out multi-level inspection according to the inspection plan to ensure
acceptance at four levels; and rectify unqualified items and inspect the items again for acceptance to form a
closed loop system.

BMEBRBERRERA AR BRRITENEBRDANREETRE  RRRRASZ AR - BROKRRK - &R
WHBFHATENE  UAKBERMBRRBRY - AR -
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The Group has also obtained ISO9001, ISO14001 and
ISO45001 certifications for quality management system
and will regularly pay attention to the latest national
and industry standards to ensure the updating and
improvement of our quality management and assurance
system.

During the Year, neither did the Group experience
any major accident, abnormal shutdowns and unusual
operation events due to quality reasons and safety
and health reasons, nor did any products have to be
recalled due to quality problems.

In the meantime, the Group has formulated a
comprehensive operation assurance strategy to ensure
the normal operation of O&M services, facilities and
equipment. The strategy includes, among others,
team building, standardized management, inspection
and maintenance, material management and cross-
departmental collaboration.

AEENAEBTEEEEEXISO001
ISO14001 * 1ISO45001 3R + LA K E Hifd
FERHBERMITERE - UBERBEMI
B EEIENRE RGO E I AGE o

AER  AEERBREEAFH  RHE
ERARZTHEFEHERT L EHE
TBIEARFBHERETERAIEM -

R - AEBEGET2EAETRESR
B - DARECRIE S MAEEIRTS - Rk - RB
EFET B8 BYBK  RHBEE -
mEHE  WEEE - BEFIHRES -



Team building
2B

Standardized
management
REEE

Inspection and

maintenance

BREEE

Material
management
MEEE

Inter-
departmental
collaboration

B EB P s 1F

Duties/team members
RE,BEEKRE

Project manager
T8 B #8318

Dedicated management personnel
(including various functions such
as security, operation, inspection
and repair, materials, finance and
logistics)

EREBAS(BE 22 BT &
& W& - B 2H%)

Formulating rules and regulations
covering operation procedures,
equipment management, operation
management, recording, inspection
and emergency response
HEETRIZ  REBEE - BIEERE
R BBARRSEREESRE

Professionals on the fields of
equipment maintenance, electricity
and thermal control, etc.
HEEAS(BE - #%  ER - 24F)

Creating a material database
BUMEEIRE

Establishing a material procurement
team

WERE/ A

Back office
E=x-i!
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Main purpose

FEAW

o Carrying out management work in
collaboration with each other, with
each person assuming their own
responsibility

SIRERREEIE SBHE

o Ensuring normal operation of the
system
BREGETERE

o Carrying out 24-hour inspection and

maintenance service
R 24/ N AR E KIS AR TS

° Ensuring normal operation of
equipment
HERREBLETERE

° Providing required spare parts and

materials for the site readily according
to the planning of projects

RRIAB AR ARG IRHAFEZENY
BRI

o Providing labor, financial, material
and technical support and analysis of
difficult problems for each project
REFEBRMHET BB - Y& - BiffxX
BARRHEMES T IE
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4.2. Safe production management 42. REHEERE

The Group adheres to the safety management principle AEERAIZER  ZEE ZEETIR
of “zero accident, zero damage and zero casualty” and ZE2EBRA - THIESRE2EEETER
continuously improves the standard of safe production HEWRE - BMIBRREF(REARLMN
management. We strictly comply with the Production BlRaEEZE) (PEAREMBIBER
Safety Law of the People’'s Republic of China (FZEA boais) RaB & T IHEEERER - B
REFMBEZ 24 EX), the Law of the People’s Republic THERMERLZEZEE  AKBEREKE
of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational FIEMEBEEZ2ELELEHIIE - AT=18
Diseases (PEARIMBEBERAE) and the EHEMHEZRRIE -

relevant laws and regulations of the place of operation.
In order to effectively implement safety management,
the Group continues to promote the formulation and
implementation of safety standardization. The following
are the three main stages of our work:

The stage of formulating safe production standardization

FEREEERELEE

° Establish a safety and quality management system according to different professional processes
BRETRAZEIRF  HITX2EEEERA

° Starting with a detailed study on each procedure to enhance the overall level of safety standardization

HFARE-—TFFREFNE > URESBERBLEFEELKF

The stage of identifying potential risks on safe production

HERZEERRRERKR

The Safety Hazard Detection and Governance and Management System

(REEMEBHEMEIRERHE)

° Standardize the execution of a closed-loop safe process
REBFANT 2 RIE

The Special Weather Safe Production Management System

(EHRRALEEEEEHE)

o Prohibit operations under extreme weather conditions such as gales, heavy snow, earthquake, extreme

cold and scorching heat.

ZFERmARR NETIE - 84 AR - XS 1R - BR - KBE

The stage of ensuring employees’ safe production

HEEBTIRZZEERER

The Safety Education and Training Management System

(ZE2HEEINEBHIE)

° According to the needs of employees in different positions, formulate practical education and training

programs on safety to improve the quality of safe production of employees.
RBTAEAEUNEIRE  HITEAUNZE2HERI  MEREINKEEEER



Targets
HR
Administrative managers and project

managers
TREEABREREREAR

Safe production management personnel
TEHEEBEEAE

General employees
—MRET

Operating stage
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Contents of training
FIRE

Providing training courses on relevant policies and regulations
as well as basic management and technical knowledge
REBABRER - EAEIE R AZEIRIZ

Mastering basic safe production technology and safe
management methods
EREARZEERMMZ2ERNTE

Enhancing the management personnel’s understanding

on work safety, thus providing sound conditions for safe
production

REEBEASHRE2EETIENRE  RR2EERHER FEG

Providing professional training courses related to
regulations, policies, standards, safe production
management, technology, unexpected accidents, work-
related injury and occupational diseases
REHEFEXMRESR  BX  BE R2AEEE Bl - /&
BN TEEHRMBERFHEBOFIIRE

Improving the safety management level of professionals
RAZEABNLT2EERKF

Providing training on occupational health and safe
production for frontline employees through three-level
education, special projects and regular inspections
FR=BHE  HRER  THRE  AAGETREBER
BRMZ &£ E XIS

Serving to enhance employees’ safety awareness and
ability

EYRAEILZEZEHME

BITRE

The Safe Production Responsibility System and Job Safety Duties

(R2AEEERRELLZZRE)

° Implementing safety accountability
Bk 28 EH
o Adopting a two-tier and three-level management model

RAEE=REEERER
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Speech Activity in the Safety Month for Nanyang O&M Project

MEEABRER2AEREE

In order to further strengthen the concept of safety development, we adhere to the goal of “safety

in priority and prevention first”. The Safety and Quality Management Department has consistently
implemented the Group’s “Notice on Carrying out the 2022 Safety Production Month Activities”.
Through organizing various kind of activities, the Group has actively publicized national safe
production regulations and safety knowledge, improved the safety quality of all employees involved in
our projects, implemented safety management measures at all levels, and effectively prevented and
reduced the occurrence of production safety accidents during the safety month.

From 1 June 2022 to 30 June 2022, the department responsible for the Nanyang O&M Project
launched a safety production month activity with the theme of “obeying the safety production law

and taking primary responsibility “. The various activities of the “Safety Production Month” were
conducted under the guiding ideology of preventing and resolving major production risks, timely
eliminating potential safety hazards in production, effectively implementing safety responsibilities and
promoting safe development. The Group has organized and carried out a series of safety production
publicity and education activities that are both influential and effective. Through the participation of all
employees and comprehensive investigation on hidden hazards, we have eliminated the risks around
employees. The Group has continuously improved the safety and protective equipment for employees
to create a safe and comfortable working environment, as well as organized emergency trainings
based on the annual drill plan formulated for related projects and the actual production site on a
regular basis, so as to cultivate employees’ capabilities of self-rescue and mutual aid and improve
each employee’s sense of responsibility for safety.

RE—FZELZE2ERES  BRHUAIZE2E— BRI IRERE L2 E8E€RNERERZERE(H
RFEE2022F (R 22 EAR ESHHERN)  BEENSELEY ANEEBERLEEEZXZEMLEMH
REEBZBEINZE2RYE  RESALEEEER  AREHMELIUNLZE ARPONEERZ IR
T o

RS EHIE B S 2022F6 A1HE2022F6 A0 EME T BTLE2AEL  EFFEF—ETAIATEN

RELERERY c ARRELEERINZTREY  UHBELBEREERR - MEBEREERERE - A
RERZEM  HDLERRA/EEER - BEHR-—FZIBABENAERNLELESEHE LY - B
BEESE  2EEBEENREYHE  BREISENAR  THEZEILXE2HEARNER  8IBL2H
EOERRE  REBEEBHENFERRTEIMRBELEERSER CMABRRESE)  BEETAK

EREES  REBEEINLEEELD -



4.3.

Anti-corruption

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, and strictly abides by the natural laws and
regulations related to integrity operation such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (F
#EARKEMBARE) and the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F#E AR
MEREEEX). In order to implement honest and
ethical operations, the Group has established an anti-
corruption system which covers early prevention,
monitoring process of corruption incidents and post-
incident evaluation and handling procedures. In the
meantime, we have also formulated and implemented
relevant rules and regulations such as the Management
Regulations for Administrative Penalties, the Internal
Control Guidelines, the Internal Audit Guidelines, the
Administrative Measures on Anti-Money Laundering
(Trial), the Boqgi Environmental Professional Code
and the Officer Professional and Ethics Agreement to
regulate employee behavior, thereby promoting integrity
and self-discipline and requiring employees to sign
the related agreements for the strict compliance by
employees.

We also encourage employees and related persons
to report potential unethical and dishonest conduct
within the Group. Whistleblowers can report violations
of laws and regulations through e-mail and other
reporting methods. In order to safeguard the privacy
of whistleblowers, the Group has established a
dedicated investigation department responsible for
handling reports on corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. Upon receipt of the reported
information, the department head will immediately verify
the relevant information, arrange an investigation or
conduct an independent audit as appropriate and put
forward handling advice.

4.3.
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RES

AEBHEES  BH - IR - RFERAE
EREETRAKDMTRRAEE LEKE
FCREARAMBEARE) (FEAR
HKMBERERBEE) ERRLEEREE
EHRERDERER - RTETTRZBRE
B AEERIRERSRG  BEENRE
01 - EPEEMERFGEREERESF - F
B - HPITRHIE X B AR R EMGIE -
meKTHRESIEERE)  (AMESE
BHE) (REEAEEGE)  (REE
THEEEWE (A7) (BHFRERER
&) (BEIRERTARE)SHEET
TR REFRER  LERBTIHRTK
{5 K A8 ST

BATEBETREBALTRERAEER
MEBENTBREMBETR SBEAE
BEFEHENRESN - BRELRE
IR RTHEBETENEALRE - ~%

RUBPIHAESHMIEEREEEES
R R BGFRARESNER - &
BEWBBERESER  BFITESLARE
HEGEE  TRTBRLHFAT KRB
VER  ARRHEEER o
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During the Year, the Group organized anti-corruption
training activities for directors, management and
employees, which enhanced their awareness on
practicing integrity and established a strong ideological
defense against corruption.

Number of attendees

AEE  AEBEREF BEEENMEIR
WMTRESEIES - ERTESE  EF
EMETRERENER  £EREIGTH
BIBPIAR ©

ZmMAE Percentage of training
Training hours Directors Employees participation(%)
EHER E=x ] 2 iF L 2= (%)
6.5 hours 8 persons all employees 100%
6.5/ N 8A PREET 100%

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
lawsuits related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering brought against the Group or its
employees.

AEE  AEEWRBEBEEMHEAEHE

FETRENEMNAEERS  BH -
R BREFRARESFRARN -



4.4.

Promoting the development of environmental
protection technology

The Group has always adhered to the principle
of “innovation is an inexhaustible driving force
for enterprise development” to actively pursue
technological innovation, thereby driving the
advancement of environmental protection technology in
the Company and the industry and making contribution
to the solution of environmental problems.

4.4.1. Innovative development

The Group has actively invested in the development
of new technologies. Our established large-scale
construction projects have equipped with work
stations with simulation of different work scenarios,
laboratories for physical model and flow field, seawater
desulfurization thermal experimental platforms
and R&D test platforms, as well as an enterprise
technology center which was accredited by the Beijing
Municipality and a post-doctoral research station.
We have also promoted scientific and technological
achievements through technology introduction,
exchanges, cooperation, talent development and
scientific experiments. In addition, we have also actively
participated in the formulation and promotion of national
and industry standards to help improve the overall level
of the industry. Due to its superior R&D strength, the
Group has been rated as an “Innovative Pilot Enterprise
in Zhongguancun Science and Technology Park” and
a “Standardized Pilot Unit in Zhongguancun Science
and Technology Park”, and its R&D projects have
been acclaimed as “SCR Flue Gas Denitrification Key
Technology and Equipment R&D and Industrialization
Major Project in Zhongguancun”.
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4.4, HERREMBEERE
AEFEBKRIFFAFTELCEZENTIS
BHIMRE - BEREES R - A
FAEBMITEARFEME S @ FBRIR
BHBME T EE -

4.4.1. AIFTZ/E

AEBBBRREFRMER - LAEAX
REREERE 2 TR AEEIIEM
MERGARE  BARHBAERERF
aMmMEARTE  ARTRENEE
BT A R B R LR B TIET -
PITRRBRIMSIHE - 28~ &F - AT
B URMBER  REMBIRREK
AN - B AITREE 2 BB R ATTERER
I B HE R T - DA B IR THIT R K
FoARBEBREEBUNMEERN  ER
[FEMBXERAIFHEE] - [H T
RESE(CHARELN | A RHAEERES
[ B8 A SC R A% 5 fiF B 52 1l A0 2 4
BHEEXCEARRB | WFR -
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4.4.2. Protection of intellectual property rights

4.5.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection
of intellectual property rights, and strictly abides by the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (fF %
ARKEFBEESE), the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E ARKEMEIEIEE), the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF#E AR LA
B = F5%), the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China (FF#E ARZEFBEIZEE#E) and the Intellectual
Property Law of the People’s Republic of China (F# A
REFIE M ZEREX) and other laws and regulations in
the regions of operation. Besides, the Group has also
formulated and implemented relevant regulations such
as the Patent Application and Incentive Regulations and
R&D Results Delivery and Utilization System. The Group
regards trademarks, patents, copyrights, confidential
data and other intellectual property rights as our
important assets which should be safeguarded. In
order to ensure the orderly development of intellectual
property management, we have established a patent
management department, which is responsible for
creating patent management systems and strategies,
arranging patent applications and maintaining
independent intellectual property rights.

During the Year, the Group maintained a total of 67
registered patents and was granted 10 new patents.

Protection of interests

The Group attaches great importance to protecting the
rights and interests of customers, and strictly abides
by laws and regulations such as the Confidentiality Law
of the People’s Republic of China (1 AREFMERZ
%), the Consumer Rights Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZEAREMEEE B ERIRESE),
the Labor Contract (%8)&[E) and the Confidentiality
Agreement (IRZE1W&%). We have formulated and
implemented the Bogi Environmental Professional Code,
which requires employees to strictly keep confidential of
customers’ privacy and business secrets, and specifies
that “all employees are obliged to keep the information
related to the Group confidential, including information
related to the Group’s assets, products and customers,
and no information related to the Group may be
disclosed to third parties the Group’s authorization”. As
such, the rights and interests of customers are highly
protected.

4.4.2. (REHZERE

4.5.

AEESEERHNBEENGE  KIE
ET(REARKMBEESE)  (PEA
REMBEHRER) (FEARKXMEZERN
E) (REARKMBEZERZE) (P
FEARKMBEANBERSE) TELE N
ERER - BERELERAE G - 0
(EMBFLEBBRE)  (FFERRZMN
ERHE)E > GEE - B - 8l1F#E -
BEZEBEBEIEMANBERSRMNEENE
EXTARE - BTHRARMBEEEEN
BERFER  RPRZTEMNEERHM - &
BRIZENEE G EMERS - ZHEFE R
o REETANHERS

AEE » AEBXRFe7EFMER » Iz
FES10EFHEF -

EERE

AEEREERRETPOER - B
BT C(REARKMBEEREE) - (PEA
RAMBEBEERDREL) (BBHE
R) -~ (RE W) FEARER - RAIGIE
TEB(ETRRBERSL)  RBETY
EPMALBRAREEBRERE - AES
RIMEETAEEHEAREENEAEH
MIEE  WAKENEE EmMEFE
BETRE - REARKEFA - TRAX
T EBRAREENERGEE | ABETS
H R o



4.6.

In addition, the Group has formulated and implemented
the Owner Satisfaction Survey Form, established a
comprehensive customer communication and feedback
system, and actively communicates with customers to
enhance the level of customer satisfaction. At the same
time, we also require employees to seek satisfaction
evaluations from owners of projects every year, and
they have to interview with the owners to listen to
their evaluation opinions when project inspection and
guidance work are being conducted. We will gather
feedback from the owners and convene necessary
departments to develop improvement plans for specific
issues.

During the Year, the Group did not receive any
complaint about products and services, and received
a total of 45 commendation letters from owners, who
highly affirmed the Group’s project operation and
management in 2022.

Supply chain management

The Group believes that maintaining solid and
stable supplier relationships is critical to the quality
of its products and services. To this end, we have
formulated and implemented the Regulations for the
Management of Qualified Suppliers, the Regulations
for the Procurement Management of Engineering
Equipment/Material, the Project Tender Management
System and the O&M Tender Management System.
Through continuous improvement of cooperation and
communication with suppliers and its management
system, the Group has standardized its supplier
management work, thus ensuring that the purchased
products comply with contract specifications and
national or industry mandatory standards as well as the
stable and healthy growth of the Group’s business.

During the Year, a total of 643 suppliers from Mainland
China provided services to the Group, which can be
classified into suppliers of process equipment, electrical
equipment, thermal control equipment, denitrification
equipment, materials and spare parts.

4.6.
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When conducting supplier tenders, we will consider
various aspects of suppliers to avoid environmental and
social risks in the supply chain:

o Security management and corporate legal
credibility

o Industry performance

o Operation and market conditions, environmental

and social responsibility performance
° Financial, production and operation conditions

o Certifications on quality, environmental
management, occupational health and safety
system

° Technical standards

We attach great importance to eco-friendly and energy-
efficient products and actively promote such products.
Green procurement is an important consideration for
us. At present, all of the Group’s high-voltage motors
comply with the “Secondary Energy Efficiency IE3”
standard in the national standard “Minimum allowable
values of energy efficiency and energy efficiency
grades for small and medium three-phase asynchronous
motors” (F/NE=ZMHEFL SRR EE RERF
#) (GB18613-2012), thereby reducing the energy
consumed.

EETHERERR - RIS tHERN
ZHHEZERAER AL HEESD
FERIRAML AR -

. REEBEREELREE

. TRZER

. & mEER  BRIENLEETT
BEBR

. Bis - £EKLERN

. 8 REEE BERRLZEE
R

. BAMTHEAR

BMeEERAERRTR  SERER
WEBHEEELER - ZERBERMY
BEZZEAZ - BRASEEMBENRE
BERBFTERRZE(F/NEA=EESE
B e PR EE R AE N E R N(GB18613-
2012) My [ —4RBEUES J 124 - BRIK T Ak
TRIBRE o



In terms of supplier management, we will regularly
evaluate supplier performance based on the following
factors, and classify suppliers into different cooperation
categories according to the evaluation results. We will
also give feedback to relevant business departments
and supervise the progress of improvement, so as to
drive the continuous progress of suppliers:

o Contract performance capabilities

. After-sales services

° The quality of products, projects and construction
o Safe production and environmental management
° Integrity, honesty and cases of violations of laws

and regulations

The Group cares for and respects employees and
insists to share its achievements with them, so as to
continuously enhance employees’ sense of belonging
and happiness. Through the establishment of a human
resources system, we have rationally formulated
a human resources management platform and a
complaint management platform for employees, in order
to safeguard the rights and interests of employees and
establish good relations with them. The Group strictly
abides by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China (F#E ARLMEISSE))%), the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FREE AR LRI
& [RK), the Minors Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (& ARKMBEIANKF AREZL)
and the Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions (%21t
FRAETME) and other national and related laws
and regulations. Meanwhile, we have also formulated
and implemented policies such as the Regulations
on Recruitment and Employment Management, the
Regulations on Attendance and Leave Management
and the Professional Code of China Bogi Environmental
(Holdings) Co., Ltd., striving to create an ideal
workplace environment for employees based on the
principle of fairness, impartiality and openness. During
the Year, the Group had a total of 1,459* employees
and most of them are based in Mainland China. Our
workforce distribution is as follows:

The decrease in the number of employees compared to the last
year was due to the Group’s continuous increase in investment
in its information technology construction, which improved
the per capita efficiency of its projects and optimized part
of the personnel structure in line with the needs of business
transformation.

4
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Employee composition 2022

EEAERK 20224

Total number of employees 1,459

REEH

By gender

gl

° Male 1,098
S

° Female 361
i

By age group

RERA R

° Aged below 30 328
303 AT

o Aged 30 to 40 681
30-405%

o Aged above 40 450
4057 A 1=

By region

=

° North China 985
PEESL R

o East China 122
PEERE

o Central China 96
PEEPRE

o Northwest China 127
PRI

° South China 129

FEETER



Employee composition
EEAEK

By employment group

RERHE R

Concession operation management staff
SIS ETEANE

Engineering and technical staff
TREEMAE

Sales staff

HEAE

Research and development staff
HEAE

Administrative staff
THEEABR

Production staff

HEANEB

Employee type
FMEHER

Full-time
i
Part-time

i
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2022
20224

95
141
37
67
38

1,081

1,459
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The employee turnover rate for the Year by gender, age REFZRMR - FEAR - EBEFEAERE S
group and employment region was as follows: HESRBENT

Turnover of employees® 2022 (%)

EEBR = 2022 (%)

By gender

=15

° Male 21.52
Bk

° Female 8.36
pegi

By age group

REWRER

o Aged below 30 10.28
30T

° Aged 30 to 40 9.18
30-405%

° Aged above 40 10.41
407 A+

By region

i@

° North China 13.63
PEZESL R

° East China 5.48
PEERE

o Central China 2.19
PEERE

o Northwest China 3.90
PR

o South China 5.00
HPEETE

5 Turnover of employees = number of lost employees/total 5 EEBBE=-TRXEEAY FTEEEAH

number of employees at year endx100% x100%



Do1le

Employment management

We treat all employees equally and ensure fair
opportunities in areas such as recruitment, promotion
and career-related development. When recruiting
employees, we give equal consideration to every
job applicant, and prohibit any discrimination arising
from race, gender, marital status, religious belief and
other factors. We enter into the Labor Contract and
the Confidentiality Agreement with each employee we
recruited, which specifies the working hours, labor
conditions, labor remuneration, welfare benefits,
training and confidentiality of business secrets, so as
to protect the basic rights and interests of employees
and eliminate forced labor. Meanwhile, we will require
job applicants to verify identification documents to
eliminate any possibility of employing child labor. In
case of any violation, the Group will handle the case
in accordance with the Labor Contract and terminate
the employment contract immediately. In the event of
dismissal or voluntarily resignation of employees, we
will strictly complies with the procedures set out in the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China (F#Z A
REMBELE)E) and the Labor Contract Law of the
People’'s Republic of China (FEARLMELEHER
7%) and prohibit any unfair or unreasonable dismissal.
We will also arrange interviews with exiting employees
to understand the reasons for leaving and make
corresponding improvements.

During the Year, the Group did not violate any laws
or regulations related to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, prevention
of sexual harassment, violation of child labor or forced
labor.

5EIE
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I AR FE Y A

REE  AEBDRBE R M B B 5 B A
fRfE - MEMEA  TERRE - TE5H#
g Zuflt - RIER - BLEHRE  EBR
BT RREEHHPERIOER -

189



190

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEI#EZRR (EKR) ERLQF

ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - B REBRE (&)

5.2.

Benefits and caring

The Group has formulated its employee welfare
policy based on the principle of legality and fairness.
Employee benefit plans are established according to
legal and reasonable standards. We have developed
a salary structure of “basic salary + bonus +
allowance” coupled with an appraisal system guided
by “performance result”. We will consider group and
individual performance to ensure that employees
receive their fair remuneration on time. In addition, we
also provide equity incentive for core management
personnel and key employees to motivate them to
continuously improve their performance.

In addition to fixed remuneration, the Group also
provides employees with a variety of benefits to meet
the needs of different employees:

° Personal leave, sick leave, work-related injury
leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave

o Employees are provided with paid annual leave
based on their working experience and length of
service

o Pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, wok injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund
are paid for eligible employees

° Accidental commercial insurance and

supplementary medical insurance are purchased

for general employees

° Employees are provided with transportation
allowance, meal allowance and other benefits as
appropriate

5.2.

BAEE

AEERETRMBRELEREMNRF
MRAZ £ - B TR EREREIEM
EENRERERN - AR T [ELF
E+RS R IOHFMERE  LREK
RATERAER | RERNEZHIE - R
ZEERAMEANEYR  AREETFE
R - WIZESREFE o U -
MEARLEREMER A BRERER
BYSRES - DAUSKE A P NE SR THERIR -

BRTEEHMNN  AEERETRHESZT

R Ume TRETNFR

. ER -BRR -I6BRK -
R ERMEER

R ®

. RIBEE T TEERMRS FH%
BSHER

. REAKRENETIXNEERE -
EXBERRE  KERFRR - THRF
% EERBNEIEEES

. R—RETEEBINEERE M
TEERR

. BIBERME TEMEEER - F
BORBL M AR R



5.3.

In addition, the Group also pursues a democratic
management approach, respects the demands of
employees and strives to create a harmonious working
environment. We have established various mechanisms
to provide communication channels for employees to
protect their rights of expression and participation:

. Independent trade union branches

o Mechanism for the open discussion of corporate
affairs

o Mechanism for meetings of representatives of
employees

o Mechanism for communication between

employees and directors or supervisors

Development and training

The Group regards employees as its most valuable
asset. Adhering to the principle of “on-demand training
and serving the practical purpose”, the Group strives
to provide employees with personal development
opportunities and personalized development scope, so
that employees with different positions and functions
can continuously develop their careers and improve
their overall quality and ability, while at the same time
providing the Group with sufficient talents for the
implementation of its plan in the technology industry.
The Group has implemented its Training Management
Regulations and carried out its talent training program
based on internal management strategies, annual
management targets and various needs of employees,
so as to provide a diversified training plan:

. Corporate culture training

. Talent development and employee motivation
training

. Technology and knowledge training related

to energy storage for new business and joint
frequency modulation of thermal storage

° Training on general skills and management such
as ROE

° Training on key account growth

5.3.
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Meanwhile, we also pay attention to the career
development of employees, therefore we have
formulated and implemented the Promotion
Administrative Measures for the Engineering
Management Center, which regulates the basis and
standards for employee promotion. We have also
established the positions of R&D personnel and project
managers, laying out a clear career path for employees.
We have actively built a dedicated and professional
workforce by improving the talent development system.

During the Year, the training attendance rates of
employees by gender and employment group were as
follows:

Training attendance rate of employees®

EEIZIHFE L &=

By gender

RIE5

Male
Eefea
Female
7t

By employment group

R R

Concession operation management staff
R EERAR

Engineering and technical staff
ITREMAE

Sales staff

HEAER

Research and development staff
MEAE

Administrative staff
THEREAER

Production staff

HEANEB

R RPITMETETHBRESRR @ 6T
VEMCKIRERTOBREIE) - R
#T7TEINETKEMEE - L AFEFMK
YA BMIERKENRBAT c SETH
BURERET TRENRTE - HfP@8
EANTBERREG  BHREBEFERBEL
BB T -

AEE - BEFIHFE L ERERNFER
MR

2022(%)
2022 F (%)

100

100

100
100
100
100
100

100

Training attendance rate of employees = number of trained
employees in that group/total number of employees in that

group

6

EEHIILLE=ZHRIZHIEE AL ZHE
BB AH
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During the Year, the completed training hours per RNEE - RER REBARIZ S HFIIA
person by gender and employment group were as HEREEI NI
follows:

Average training

hours
Training (hours/person)’
IG5/
23 (& ER)7
2022
20224
By gender
gl
° Male 6.00
. ERfea
° Female 6.00
. g
By employment group
RIERAER
° Concession operation management staff 6.00
AR EERAR
o Engineering and technical staff 8.00
ITREMAE
° Sales staff 6.00
HEAR
° Research and development staff 6.00
fEAE
° Administrative staff 6.00
THERAER
o Production staff 8.00
£EANE
7 Average training hours of employees by group = total training 7 REFIEDHEER FHZIFE=1EES
hours of employees by group/total number of employees in that MEZIRE 2 ERE B A

group
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The Group’s 20th Anniversary

EE20BFEH

On 24 June 2022, Bogi celebrated its 20th anniversary with the theme of “Achieving its Goals with
Constant Efforts in 20 Years” in Beijing. Mr. Zeng Zhijun, Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
reviewed the Group’s 20-year history of ecological and environmental governance in the celebration,
expressed gratitude to all employees who have worked hard for the Group, and extended sincere
thanks to investors, owners and business partners for their caring and support. The Group presented
trophies to loyal employees who have served the Group for more than 15 years. The Group regards
employees as its most valuable asset and is always proud of them.

Through the 20th anniversary celebration activities, the spirit of Bogi has been further strengthened,
which is conducive to the Group's stable and solid industrial chain. Adhering to the attitude of
“being realistic, seeking innovation and pursuing excellence”, the Group will continue to strive for its
development to usher in an even brighter future for the next 20 years.

2022F6 A24H  BH[TATE @ TRIRE | TE20BFEHEH AL KN EMH - AEBEITHERE 2K
EEEEATRBOBEAKREELRRTAEER LW — 5B  UHMARKENLEINET - #ig
TAKREBONXFHHRESE XX AFBHRTIRONPFE - ARERARH TAFALNEHRE TR
BTRN - AEERKBETIRAEEZANOV ENGRHR -

BB TRFEARSHEIMERTIHAEN  ENRAKEREREESRE  BEATREAR - BRE#)
MRS REEEMAT —E_THFBREALER -




5.4.

Health and safety

The Group attaches paramount importance to the
protection of the health and safety of its employees.
The Group greatly emphasizes the safety and welfare
of its employees, and strictly abides by the Law on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the
People’s Republic of China (FZEAREFBERERE
%), the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China (F#EAREMEL 2 EE)X), the Provisions
on the Supervision and Administration of Occupational
Health at Work Sites (L{ESBEEEEBEERTE),
the Work-related Injury Insurance Regulations (T {5{R%
1&7]), and the Management System on Labor Protection
Products and Safety Tools (%58 ARMLZETEEA
EI2H|E) and other local laws and regulations, and
formulated its own policies such as the Occupational
Health and Safety Management System and the Notice
of Occupational Hazards in Labor Contract. To this end,
the Group will take various measures to establish a
safe working environment. We will establish emergency
measures such as fire or explosion response plans,
and conduct rescue and fire drills. In addition, our
management personnel are responsible for monitoring
the work environment, systems and equipment to ensure
that they are in a safe state. At the same time, we will
also provide employees with any information, guidance,
training and supervision needed to avoid work-related
injuries. We also abide by the national regulations
on the protection of employees, regularly distribute
effective and qualified personal protective equipment
to employees, and also issue notices to employees
to ensure that they are aware of the potential hazards
in the workplace beforehand. Besides, we conduct
occupational health inspections for all employees
every year, and regularly organize external and internal
occupational health and safety activities, to enable
employees understand their health status and help them
prevent occupational diseases.

During the year, no employees of the Group lost
working days due to work-related injuries.

In the past three years, no employee of the Group was
involved in a work-related fatalities.

5.4.
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Red Cross first aid skills training

AL+ FRE R R

On 21 July 2022, the Group invited instructors from Beijing Qiushi Vocational Skills Training School, a
designated institution of the Beijing Red Cross First Aid Training Base, to train the Group’s employees
on cardiopulmonary resuscitation skills and comprehensive first aid skills. The training content covers
first aid knowledge and skills such as sporting knowledge, on-site rescue concept, cardiopulmonary
resuscitation CPR+AE, trauma rescue, etc. In the training, instructors used simulators to conduct
on-site demonstrations, and demonstrate self-rescue and mutual-rescue knowledge on how to deal
with common emergencies in daily rescue, AED operation procedures, respiratory foreign substance
clearance, manual cardiopulmonary resuscitation compression techniques and implementation steps.
Through this first aid training, the employees of Bogi have mastered the necessary first aid skills in
the emergency rescue process, and can take on the ability to save themselves and others in work or
social life.

2022F7A21H - KEBFILRTA T FERSMET I EMIEERE —— L RTREBEREEEIIZRD
ERHEE 8 TETOMERRE LIRS RSMEREENE - BIATREL T TED AR - RSHED
2 DIFEEECPR+AE ~ AlBHES SAB MR - FIAERAETRERER RERTEERETER
REFEMHHRIETE - AEDIRIERE - RERWBE  ®FOMEERBFZNERSRE TENERER
A BBRREARSHEE - FETARKREE T ZESREEARTOLESRIRGE ETIEIHEE
A R BESAYEE — 1) B A ARIRE S ©

\ v IFRERLRE
ERMERRES AR
BRNE
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ERMBETRE,  apEmes SRR
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While endeavoring in its production and operation,
the Group will also continue to pay attention to social

public welfare undertakings to do charity works and
solve social problems, and make efforts to maintain the
harmony and stability of the enterprise and society.

(1)

.,,, S|NoPEc Eﬂ:

In February 2022, the Group invested more than
RMB110,000 in the purchase of Sinopec’s public
welfare agricultural products as holiday benefits
to employees. This served both purposes
of helping farmers to sell their products and
distributing holiday benefits. The revitalization of
the countryside brings great hope to the farmers,
while the heart-warming welfare makes the
employees feel happiness. Bogi Environmental
earnestly fulfills its social obligations and
participates in public welfare activities with

practical actions.

R ﬂ:
smopzc
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(2) On 24 March 2022, Boqgi Environmental actively
responded to the “Aiding Hong Kong in Unity
to Fight Against the Pandemic” campaign
initiated by the United Front Work Department of
Fengtai District, Beijing, to fulfill corporate social
responsibility, and donated RMB50,000 to assist
the grassroots communities in Hong Kong, thus
making contributions to Hong Kong in its fighting

against the pandemic.

F

B

(2)
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(3)

On 9 September 2022, the Group and the Beijing
Xiangrong Public Welfare Foundation jointly
launched a caring project on the Tencent Public
Welfare Platform, aiming to build book corners
for children in underdeveloped areas such as
Hunan, Gansu, Sichuan, and Henan so that
children in mountainous areas can have good
books to read. A total of 79 people responded
to Bogi Environmental’s call to participate in the
donation, which amounted to RMB27,140.10 in
total. Though the amount was not much, but it
represented Bogi Environmental's caring love,
which gave hope and a feeling of warmth for
children in the mountainous areas.

3)
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Environment aspect

RE#R

A1: Emissions

Al BB

General
disclosure

—RIEE

A1.2

A1.3

A1.3

A1.4

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and nonhazardous
waste.
BRABERIORERBHN - R/KREEEET -
BENEZREZVNELSN ()R R(b)
BTHETARBEAZENHBERNIRIINE
£t e

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BEnemiE R AR P R BE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (HBE1) RepRAE (BE2) AEREEEK
B(AWGE) X (ER) BE (MABESE
i« BIERMEE) -

Total hazardous waste produced and
intensity.

FIEXERERRNBERTE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.
MELABRERZVRERTE -

Related sections

MR E

w

w

3.1.2

3.1.2

3.1.4

3.1.4

3.1.4

3.1.4

Green operation
Emission

REEE
B

Flue gas treatment

&R IR

Greenhouse gas

B&
o
Eﬁm
fi

Waste treatment

R YR 12

Waste treatment

BEE YRR IE



Environment aspect

RIEEE
Al15
Al15
A1.6
A1.6
A2: General

Use of resources disclosure

A2 . BRER —RRIEE

A2.1

A2.1

A2.2

A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

Description of emission target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

PRI LB E B R R RERiE LR

ht:obg

R ER

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a

description of reduction target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

WA EIEAE R BEZERYNIE - RERAE]

SRR B AR K AiE

BE L B RATERERR P8R

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy, water and other raw

materials.

BRERER (BREER - KEEAMERME) 8K

Eﬁo

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by

type in total and intensity.
ERAESMERER K EES
E o

ERABRFEE R E

Water consumption in total and intensity.

REKENEE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

WA AR M BERE AR B R R AETE

TRFTERERH) B

LEH
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Related sections

MEEEH

3.1.1
3.1.2
3.1.3
3.1.4

3.1.1
3.1.2

3.1.3
3.1.4

3.1.4

£k

3.1.4

3.2

w

2

3.2.1

3.2.1

3.2.2
3.2.2

3.
3.2.1
3.
3.2.1

Green operation
Greenhouse gas
Flue gas treatment
Sewage treatment
Waste treatment
REEE
mERE
1R I
VIIKBRIE
REE Y ERIR

Green operation
Waste treatment
REEE

REZR YR IE

Use of resources

BIREM

Water resources
KEIR

Green operation
Energy

REEE

BEIR
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Environment aspect Related sections
RIRER HEEE
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in o, Green operation

sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 3.2.2 Water resources
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

A2.4 et REGERKR ERT AR - WRFTETY 3. REEE
BAKY @ B RERAEIELBZEMRRNE 322 KER
o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Not available, as packaging

products and the amount per unit produced. material is not involved in the
Group'’s business

A2.5 R MAABREMHNEERSEESBMGE - TER FEEEBISRBEMH
A3: General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant 3.3 Environment and natural
Environment and disclosure impact on the environment and natural resources
natural resources resources.
A3: —RRIFR BHEBTAHRERAARERENEATENK 33 RERRABR
BERRARER Re

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of 3.3 Environment and natural

activities on the environment and natural resources

resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

A3.1 HAEBIHERERRAERNEAZERE 33 RERRANER
KRERBMTENTE -

A4: General Policies on identification and mitigation of 3.4  Climate change
Climate change disclosure significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer. °
A4 RIREL —RRI R BAINEHELRAREHBETAEEFENE 34 RIEEL

AREHBEENERE -

A4 Description of the significant climate-related 3.4  Climate change
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them.

A4 A MMERRAGEEHETAEEZENEARIK 34 RIEE(
HEEE - RELH{TE o
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Environment aspect Related sections

RIRER HEEE

B. Society

B. #&

B1: General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 5 People oriented
Employment disclosure compliance with relevant laws and regulations 5.1 Employment management

that have a significant impact on the issuer 5.2 Benefits and caring
relating to compensation and dismissal, 5.3  Development and training
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
B1 : {Ef& —MRIFE ERFMLEE BEREN ITERE KR 5. AARBE
B PE#E  Zulb RIBEAREMESER 51 (EREERE
BN ()R R(b)BTHETABEARY 52 RIBAE

E0EBERRRDINER - 53  BEIIEI
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type 5. People oriented

(such as full-time or part-time), age group
and geographical region.

B1.1 LR EEER (MERIGRE) - FHRERR 5. AARBE
wEE D EBER -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 5. People oriented
and geographical region.
B1.2 BUR - FRAMNKRESNEERKLE - 5. AARBR
B2: General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 4.2  Safe production
Health and Safety disclosure compliance with relevant laws and regulations management
that have a significant impact on the 5.4  Health and Safety

issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

B2: @EHEZ2 —MEE FRAREZ2THEREMREBREEREBENRE 42 T24EERE
EH (EEK RO)ETHETABEATZE 54 EEELZD
HEREE LA DINER -

B2.1 The number and rate of work-related fatalities 5.4  Health and Safety
in each of the past three years (including the
reporting year).

B2.1 BE-F(RREERFE)SFRAITHOABE 54 RBEREZS
LEE o
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ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - B REBRE (&)

Environment aspect Related sections
RIRER HEEE
B2.2 Number of days lost due to work-related 5.4 Health and Safety
injuries.
B2.2 ATEBATERS - 54 REEHEZE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and 4.2 Safe production
safety measures adopted, and how they are management
implemented and monitored. 5.4 Health and Safety
B2.3 RN R R RET 2R - URIEER 42 LZ24EEEE
TREETE - 54 REEZE
B3: General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge 5.3 Development and training
Development and disclosure and skills for discharging duties at work.
Training Description of training activities.

B3 : #ERIFI —MREE FRARMEERTLEREMNMBRREENER 53  HRKIEI
;o MR ES

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by 5] Development and training
gender and employee category.

B3.1 RERIREEEAZESNZIEEER DL 53  EBEERE

B3.2 Average number of hours of training 583 Development and training

completed by each employee by gender and
employee category.

B3.2 RURNEEEMNE D -  BREETKXIINF 53  HRKE
R EL -
B4: General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 5.1 Employment management
Labor standards disclosure compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.

B4 : B T8I — R BEAMLEETSRGBIN : (BX: R(b)&E 51 (EREERE
SFHBETABERYENRBEERRONE
%
B4.1 Description of measures to review 5.1 Employment management

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labor.

B4.1 MR EEEANEEABRETREHY 51  (EREER
T o



Environment aspect

REHER

B5:

Supply Chain
Management
B5 : fEHRERE

B4.2

B4.2

General

disclosure

— AR ER

B5.1
B5.1

B5.2

B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

B5.4

B5.4

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when violation is discovered.
IR ERRERBERRERE @B RIS

B e

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

BRHERORE LM G RABEE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR DR EEEE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

WA B HERNED - mERTERES
BHRERHBE ANRBEEHNRITRERES

A o

Describe the practices for identifying
environmental and social risks at each
stage of the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

WA BRIt EREERENRERLERAR
MIER - ARBREAITRERTX -

Describe the practices that promote the use
of environmentally friendly products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

A REHERREES BRRE R RRER
BRI - ARMBERITRERAE -
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ESG Report (Continued)
R - tERERHRE (&)

Related sections

HEEE

B.1 Employment management
51 [ERER

4.6  Supply chain management
46 HREgERE

4.6 Supply chain management
46 HREgERE

4.6  Supply chain management
46 HrEgEER

4.6 Supply chain management
46  fEgER

4.6  Supply chain management
46 HrEsEER
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ESG Report (Continued)
R - HEREREE (&)

Environment aspect

REHE

B6:
Product
Responsibility

B6: EmEE

General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)

disclosure compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

—RRIER ERAMREERTREHRERLZE  BS &
BRALBEEARBRIEN : ()BX : R(b)
EBTHETAREATENRBEERADINE
£ o

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

B6.1 EEAEEXERBAT AL BEFEEHMA
BB DL

B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

B6.2 BRANEMMRBGHIRFE B AREE AL -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 Fii it B A o I AR PR AN EE R R 1B 001

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

B6.4 MG ERTRERERBIKER

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B6.5 it E B E BIBRRE RALBEER - ARARERT

REFRITE

k) BRAE

Related sections

HEEES

4.1 Quality management

4.2  Safe production
management

41 ESEE

42 REEEER

4.1 Quality management

41 HBHEER

4.1 Quality management

41 HE2EE

4.4.2. Protection of intellectual
property rights

4.42. REMBERE

4.1 Quality management

4.2  Safe production
management

41 HESEE

42 LTERHEEERE

4.5  Protection of interests

45 RE=RE



Environment aspect
RIRER

B7: General
Anti-corruption  disclosure

B7 : RES —REE

B7.1

B7.1

B7.2

B7.2

B7.3

B7.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI LIRS - BIR - BGERARER : ()}
R RO)BTHRETABEAZE

BB ER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the Reporting Period
and the outcomes of the cases.

RERMAHZETALHEERLYCELENE

SRR EE RAFRAER o

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

Wy g R BRI - ARBBERITRER

& o

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and employees.
fatmES R E TIRHENRESE
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ESG Report (Continued)
R - tERERHRE (&)

Related sections

MEEEH

4.3 Anti-corruption

4.3 Anti-corruption

43 RESF

4.3 Anti-corruption

43 RESF

4.3  Anti-corruption
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ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - B REBRE (&)

Environment aspect Related sections

RIRER HEEE

B8: General Policies on community engagement to 6. Supporting agriculture and
Community disclosure understand the needs of the communities public welfare

investment where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

B8 : HERE —RRI R BRNME2ERTREEMEHLRFTEZNHER 6 El N
HEBEBHEEEHBRMNEABR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 6. Supporting agriculture and
public welfare
B8.1 BRI AR - 6. BE 2%
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas. 6. Supporting agriculture and

public welfare
B8.2 EEIHRMEBAER - 6. )N
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M B B R

Emst & Young R AT Tel EiE: +852 2846 9888
EY 27/F, One Taikoo Place  &HB#ilf AR EEO79%% Fax EHK: +852 2868 4432
979 King s Road Kby —RBE27 ey.com
571 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong AT /
Independent auditor’s report B ZEE®RE

To the shareholders of
China Boqi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 217 to
412, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHEBEFRRE (ZER) BRLF
(RAEHEZMA LA ERLA])
BRER

BMBEBEZE7TE2412EHEPRBTIRR (I
fR) BRAR(EAF]) REMBAR (5B &
58] 2R eBmEk - BER2022F12 A 31
AZGREMBHRAREEEZBLEFEZFAE
BRREREGHER  GEERZDERREERS
MERURGEMBEBRENT HAREXES
SR E o

BMRAE  GREMERERECEREKSFERES
Ee((ERETEAZES ) BHOBKRTK
HEER((ERMERSEERDN ] BT AFHR
M EEEPN2022F 12 831 B 258 MR
UREREBEEZBIEFEZREMBRRAKREL
EREMNE  WERBEBRRGOAZHKERTE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2 BEHRE (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

and we

with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

HMPERREESAMAS ([EREFMAE])
BB BRBCEN ((ERGBER ) £17F
T - RfR CAERMBETOHEEE T
N & BB E A & I SRR B B AF —
f o RARBEBFA S ASBE S AEET
A& BN BE5E  WEREZTH
BITHMBERET - HfIEE - RAIMEREHE
RREMREEGERERME BRI LRE -

RERMANERAE  BREZFALSEMAER
AHRNGEAMBHREATREENEHE - RME
ERERBRAVBRR LI ERE RREE I
EFE2H MIERLETEREFERER - 3L
TERME @ AREMNEZOAREEBRER
G SURSINI R

BPEBITARE A [ 2B B ZAR A M58
RAFENRT] —HMANEE  BRELES
FHBZELT - Bt - RPINBEZBERES R
ClER M & E M B HRETERERRMAR
HENREFNERR - EXEF (BERSRE TS
FRMETOREF) MERSRMMBEM &G R
BHRRERBLZERIREER -



Key audit matter
BREREE

Revenue from construction contracts
EEA AN

We identified the revenue from construction contracts
as a key audit matter due to the fact that the amount
recognised was significant in the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting treatments
of which required significant estimations made by the
directors of the Company.

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts
is recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the contracts, which is determined as
the proportion of the costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs to complete the contracts.

The directors of the Company estimate both of the
profit margin and contract costs at the beginning for
each contract, revise the estimations of both profit
margin and contract costs through regular reviews
when the directors of the Company consider there are
changes in the assumptions throughout the contract
period.

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

AR ERCBEHZSERAMBRRTEERN AEEHE
BARASR BEAREFTMEARGFEE - BtRMAKE
BERHNWSRERBEBREZFA -

BEREENZERORENRBEADTREERER MK
TERK B BRAZ P EE A OB AN MG E R & KOO fh 5HAR K AR 9 Ee 71

EIE e

BERREFENBHEAONENXRRAHNKRAIEL MG
it BERREFRAREANNENBRERELZL
B - BB TE HIRE RIEFT B BEN R RA QKA E -

BEHER  BEEMFREEREHNESMBRRME
24 3N5-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR E ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMNETNAEEBREELRSEE

Our procedures in relation to revenue from construction
contracts included:

° Evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of controls relevant to our audit on budget
preparation and revenue recognition of
construction contracts;

° Recalculating the proportion of the costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs to complete
the contracts on a sampling basis;

° Evaluating the key assumptions adopted by the
directors of the Company in determining the profit
margin and total contract costs by cross-checking
to the corresponding construction contracts and
the respective budgets;

° Examining construction costs incurred during the
year by tracing the supporting documentation on
a sampling basis; and

° Reviewing the adequacy of the related
disclosures included in the consolidated financial
statements.

B ERES ORERITOREFREE

o HREHEAWEERERERIGIEROBLAARNOE
2 R BB ER R TITE

o IWMEEEENEMELNKRAGEEKE MG
R AR Z L)

= N\

e BBXXREREEEIRZNEMEAE  FE &4
AEENEESNMERSOKRANEBERANTIER

s MHMREEEBMEAXMN  BRFANELEMNRZENX
ZANEN3

s RIKSMBHBBERANMBBERERSED -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2 BEHRE (&)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

k) BRAE

BERREBERAHHEMEHNAE - HUEH SR
REBROEFR - ETBIERS M HRER RIS
SHEI RS -

BRHGREMBERRFLNERAYERER A

£ MEMATEHEBEREREMEANEE
e
REZGAMBHREAME - WANEERMER
fER - KMEREMENREBFEMBRER
FRMEEZERETEENERNEFEERTR
HUFFEEABERBRANER - HERPIER
BETHNTERREMERFEE AR -

BPARSEBREER - plikm 5 - VLB EM

HE e
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

BB ®RE (&)

BERREFARRBARSTEAPES RN 2 H
BB RELENREFERREHINBERE - &
ERBFLHEERTFRBRZEEMBERSEK - A
REBESRRIREG AV BRRVEZEH
M ERESHE » DARAR A BTSRRI & B K3 AR Bt
(T imERRFEREERR) ©

EREEEMBHRRE - ERREFAAER
fh EXEEFELLENRN  UTHREEFEL
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@?lﬁ(ﬁﬂLFﬁ)"%\# BERAEEH
# BEEEFRAFILEE IR ZITER
L ERAITHHE - TﬁlJéﬁ%ﬁHLA%?ﬁ%%%ﬁ%
MEOEHE -

BERREFHEZZEEWYETEE BE5H

G REBRENEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2 BEHRE (&)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

BANEBEBRRAERESAVBRREREMS
TEeFEARNAFRERMEBNERERR
At WERLFHARMBROZBE RS - RIE
[ AT (ERRE)|E - Rtz - HFIRR
ETEEMAR - I TIRARENATEE
MEM AT B ESARERMEE -

ARRBEBREKTHRE - HREEBZIER
ETNBH THETEHRBRERBFRFENEA
BRI o RPN M A - I
Rl E A B EMIER TR EEAE RS
SEAMBRAFENEEATE  ARRAE
AEERBE -

ERBEEEZBCEAETEERES - BMAE
REEHE - RIEBXEREE - RN

. a8 Bl K 5 (E R S ARG SR R T B BUR & B
BHREAFEERHERRANER - ReT R
HITEEFAREZERR - ARER
FREMEENRERE - ERRMANER
RERE - ARNVRFFRIBES RER - R -
ERER  ERRASREAMEIZNGE
S R REEERRARFMEHNEKXE
AR B = I R BE B IR R 85 RR T 8 3L
RYE A SRR R o

o TRREHEANOABEE  ARTES
WERTREEOEES - e E
8 ERENBBEOTRERRER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

BB ®RE (&)

FHAEEEMRA S BENSE ERIED
SEHATMERREN SR -

HEERAKBELESEMNREEE
HiEwR - WIRBFMERNERE - BE
EEFERSHRYBNEBOEATETE
M MRS BERENFELE
ENELEEARE - HERMABSFEEKR
THEEN AV EEZBMBRSHIES
EREIEFAMBRRPOBEBHE -
HERBETR  METRMANER - &
PR D ERE =R EAE RS B A LA
MEHEEE - AW - RRFREKBER
AREEY BEREELFELE -

AR EMBREANEBE2 RS - G
ERE  BREEEER  UREGEAMBR
EETERRBEIHNER -

# EEEANERIXBIINUBEH
EEGE R LEE B RE - WEHERA
MBHRRERER - RMIBEKEETHN
FE - BEERST o HAIEHRMNES
BRAERE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2 BEHRE (&)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheong Ming Yik.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023

k) BRAE

BMREZZE G (R E1E) FErtrstEld®
B REZHEREAETHRRR ZFERE
ERRMEZ RPN NAMEZNTAEX
RIS o

BFITAEZZESFHER  BHEMEFTE
BB EMARBERER  WRKFEBAEE
HEERSEXERMNB L ENMERELE
fEE - UKk (ER) SERBEMERTTE
kAT R P EBHE 1 ©

N

EEZZEQBAENTRYT  RMBETHAH
W%Aﬁﬁﬁ%m%ﬁi@ﬁxm$ﬁ ESHing
FXBR 8 F AT 08 o T PIAE A% BREM 3R 5 R X
FE2E BRIFEBIERTAFRABEZS

B RERBFLNERT - HEEEHERM
MBRETABRFRENN TR RRBHELED
ARNE - MBEMARETEERETEEZE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meEER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
ora ARET T

Revenue WA 5 1,900,248 2,092,172
Cost of sales and services HE K ARFS KA (1,509,470) (1,704,613)
Gross profit EAH 390,778 387,559
Other income and gains H At A R U 7 6 214,861 151,137
Other expense and losses HEmm MEiE (247,092) (14,574)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HEMAX (19,910) (30,189)
Administrative expenses THHAX (89,726) (89,546)
Research and development expenses e Y (58,662) (40,040)
Impairment losses on financial and SHMEERENEERN

contract assets WIEEE 7 (15,078) 892
Share of profit of an associate D —REEE R B m A 7 14,395 30,601
Finance costs B 7% A AR 8 (13,667) (9,786)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREL AR R 7 175,899 386,054
Income tax expenses FS®iF = 10 (20,241) (37,652)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRFA 155,658 348,402
Profit attributable to: AT (R R A -

Owners of the parent ISYNEIETFEWN 151,749 348,239

Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 3,909 163

155,658 348,402

EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREREREREEA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EheRET

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12

- Basic (RMB) —H R (ARK) 0.15 0.35

- Diluted (RMB) — 8 (ARK) 0.15 0.35
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RElmk

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 155,658 348,402
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hft 2 HE K
Other comprehensive income that will ~ REZRHBTEEHFHES
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BaEaE 2 EEs
subsequent periods:
Equity investment designated at fair EERARBE AHAM
value through other comprehensive ZHBRMRERE
income:
Changes in fair value ~RrEEE 916 =
Net other comprehensive income that REEBRTEETNHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1Bz AE fib & M W5 F 58
in subsequent periods 916 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAHMBE K -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX KHBRBIE 916 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREZENEARE
FOR THE YEAR 156,574 348,402
Total comprehensive income ATEEEEREERE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ YN 152,665 348,239
Non-controlling interests e 3,909 163

156,574 348,402
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARR R

31 December 2022
2022F12H31H

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
Wit ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BRE L& E 13 627,349 590,267
Investment properties KEYE 14 9,627 10,271
Goodwill EES 16 6,488 147,957
Other intangible assets HEthEEERE 17 576,797 650,714
Receivables under service concession RIS E L BB T
arrangement 7 FE R TR 18 492,005 316,691
Investment in an associate BN RIRIRE 19 63,895 80,101
EERAMEBEGTAR
Equity investment designated at fair value 1’@£ﬁﬂﬂlﬁuﬂ’\]ﬁ§ﬁ%&
through other comprehensive income & 20 5,166 -
Long-term receivable KHIEIN IR 49,254 45,548
Contract assets BHEE 24 16,785 202,027
Amounts due from related parties FEUR 83 7 FE 43 138,125 138,852
Deferred tax assets RIET IR & B 32 45,656 33,158
Other non-current assets BEMIERBEE 55,046 98,606
Total non-current assets EREEELRRE 2,086,193 2,314,192
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Receivables under service concession RIS E L BB T
arrangement /Y FE R TR 18 49,762 24,865
Debt instruments at fair value through other RAREBE AHME
comprehensive income mREmESE T A 26 287,538 284,168
Inventories FE 21 33,129 29,549
Financial assets at fair value through profit R4 EBEAERES
or loss TRVEE 25 24,661 178,771
Contract assets BREE 24 420,655 240,308
Trade receivables B Z WA 22 872,121 885,420
TEIFIA - e REM
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEM R IE 23 217,946 157,426
Amounts due from related parties JE I B8 5 FR0E 43 232,545 177,547
B E BT SR R ERTT
Pledged time deposits and bank balances ER 27 98,266 142,009
Cash and cash equivalents ReNRLEEY 27 402,488 342,958
Total current assets BN A EAATE 2,639,111 2,463,021
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
B o RENFRIER
Trade and bills payables R 28 1,134,240 1,136,336
Other payables, deposits received and Hv B 5IE - BiliR
accrued expenses & MERTHY 29 341,495 392,200
Contract liabilities aHaE 30 109,009 116,197
Income tax payable JE SR PIS 44,890 26,222
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5T BR17 M E M 1E 5K 31 92,108 82,566
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 3,529 3,264
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~} B sE 5 71l 43 7,249 15,701
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEI#EZRR (EKR) ERLQF

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

REVBRRE (&)

31 December 2022
202212 H31H

2021
202145
Notes RMB’000
Wiz ARETTT
Total current liabilities BB ELRRE 1,732,520 1,772,486
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 906,591 690,535
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERRBERE
LIABILITIES 2,992,784 3,004,727
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T BR17 R E &K 31 82,029 83,399
Lease liabilities HEBaE 15 35,092 35,020
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE 32 26,735 28,942
Contingent consideration HARE 33 - 10,060
Long-term payable RARFERSRIE 34 - 99,420
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERTE 143,856 256,841
Net assets BEEFE 2,848,928 2,747,886
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SR aEA ARE(REZ
Share capital [ 36 67 67
Treasury shares EFERG5 (1) (1)
Other reserves HE MR 37 2,834,437 2,741,045
2,834,503 2,741,111
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 14,425 6,775
Total equity ERBE 2,848,928 2,747,886
Zhijun Zeng
A3
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BAIREARG

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other ~ Statutory Non-
Share Share  Treasury Merger Other comprehensive ~ surplus  Retained controlling Total
Notes capital ~ premium shares reserve Teserve income. reserve profits ~ Subdofal interests equity
RIAEE
iARH2E
i LT EE
firid s REE  ERRR  GHRR  AMGE NOAEERR  EERE  REM N fEREE  #88E
RMBOOO  RMB00  RMB'0O0  RMBO00  RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMBO0  RMB'0O0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBY0O
ARETL  ARETn  ARETR  ARMTn  ARBTZ  ARBTZ  AREBTx  ARMTn ARMTR  ARBTn ARz

(Note ) (Note i} (Note i)
(H1) (i) (K

At1 January 2021 HANE1R1R b7 861,562 () ams0 (28 167) - %6170 1080776 2451907 (1089) 2450818
Proftfor the year ERgH 2 S 2 5 5 - - 348239 38,239 163 38,402
Total comprehensive income for the year  ER2FREAS - - - - - - - M M 18 s
Trnsfer o Satvory suplusresene. A ETEHGE - - - - - - BB (B s 5 5
Fil 2020 idend declaed EsRANERERE - - - - - - SRM @M )
Renurchase and cancellation of EORaEER

ordinary shares - (1.486) - - - - - - (1.486) - (1.486)
Share-based payments N EERAR % 5 45 s s s s s s 45 5 45
Acquistion of a Subsidiry JE-7HELR % = = = - - - - - - 3701 3701
Capital incton fromnon-convolling. S ARRREE"

sharefolders™ - - - - - - - - - 4000 4000
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 W20 E12B31AR

ANEIF1A 67 864,600 () 500 (128167 - W21 134839 27410 6,775 2,747,886

Proftforthe year g - - - - - - S W I ] 3909 155,658
Other comprehensive income for e year:  FREHBENZ !

Equiy investments designated at fair value K ARAR EEHA

through ofher comprehenshe ncome, A4 2EAENRERE

et oftax e - - - - - 916 - - 916 - 916

Totalcomprehensive income forthe year A2 B 2£8 - - - - - 916 - B 182685 3900 1565M
Transfe o staiufory surplus eserve ERTERRNEE - - - - - - s (1528 - - -
Fiel 2001 didend decled RE i - - - - - - - B e - ()
Requtchase and cancellaton of onery ~ EERE AR
shares - (60) - - - - - - (60) - (60)
Share-based paymens HROBERMH % - 43 - - - - - - 433 - 4,33
Partaldisposal of a subsidary PALERELA - - - - m - - - m 1.1 1515
Capllinjecton fromnon-contoling - RS ARRRAEE
sharefolders™ - - - - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
At 31 December 2022 HARENENA 67 eagna (1) iS00t (farges) 916t 0653 1414508 2,834,503 14425 2.848928
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other  * SERERORERESEAMBRARANGESH
reserves of RMB2,834,437,000 (2021: RMB2,741,045,000) in o5 AR HE2 834,437,0007T (20214« AR
the consolidated statement of financial position. #2,741,045,0007T) °
o In 2022, Beijing Boqgi Tiangi Environmental Protection  ** R2022F Ikt REHFRAMBREEEERA
Technology Co., Ltd received a capital injection of TR —ZBEERBRBERIITESEARE
RMB2,000,000 from a non-controlling shareholder, and Handan 2,000,000 ' MPEHETFRERFZERA
Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. received a capital AR —ZBIEERBRREREIESBARE
injection of RMB500,000 (2021: RMB4,000,000) from a non- 500,0007T (20214 : AR¥4 000,0007T) °

controlling shareholder.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
FEERREBR (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Other reserves mainly represent the distribution amounting
to RMB130,310,000 made to the shareholder in the form of
settlement of a bank loan for the shareholder during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after
tax as per statutory financial statements determined under PRC
laws and regulations for the statutory surplus reserve fund until
the reserve reaches 50% of their registered capital. Transfer
to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to
equity owners of the subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up for previous years’ losses, expand the
existing operations or converted into additional capital of the

respective subsidiaries.

The Group did not have material non-controlling interests
during both years and hence disclosure of material non-

controlling interests is not made.

Hiat -

(if)

(iii)

HEEEERREE20165F12A31HIEEF
BUABRREERTERFEARBRRIELESHE
A ARE130,310,000TTH DK ©

RIBRAPEARKME ([HE ) KZWHRE K
BLRMBMEZME - PEMERRARE
TE B TS $RER PR R IR T BDE B ROR R E MRR
BREMI0%BEEERANRFEES  EEHE
EIEZMERS0% ° ROIRKE THEQA
REEA ARNALERNZEEBR  AERBRE
BAANEHBEFEEE  BRRAELER
ERQERMBRRNFEINER -

AEBRRE MO BEERERER - FHit
WA EAER S RE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERESRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
B AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RERKETF 2 HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax & R A e ) 175,899 386,054
Adjustments for: THEE
Finance costs 2 I %N 13,667 9,786
Share of profit of an associate DR E R A A (14,395) (30,601)
Interest income FlEUA 6 (11,064) (15,660)
Profit from construction service R &2 E R m T
under concession operation (375) (849)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREETE
equipment 7 42,585 35,620
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE 7 644 808
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB REERE
equipment 7 - 479
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hitnmp & =i 7 72,084 57,169
Impairment of other intangible assets HitnmpEEREA 7 27,612 =
Amortisation of other non-current assets ~ EMIERBIE E# 7 8,115 6,514
Impairment of other non-current assets HIEmBEERE 7 - 3,513
Impairment of goodwill A RE 7 141,469 —
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B S EWHIERE,
of trade receivables CRERE) 7 11,188 (5,382)
Impairment of other receivables H b B U SR RLE 7 3,758 859
Impairment of long-term receivable R EAEWGRIE R E 7 294 1,072
Impairment of contract assets SHEERE 7 148 1,915
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) P LAY A 32 75 TR
of amounts due from related parties B CRERR) 7 926 (1,735)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of PRAGHrEF R E I T
receivables under service B FE IR ORiE &
concession arrangement @),/ FiE 7 (1,236) 2,379
(Reversal of provisions)/provisions for FE (BERE), /&
inventories = 7 (190) 160
Gain on disposal of an investment HERBERRNKE
in an associate ZWEs 6 - (1,101)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of non-current HEFRBEENE
assets 18 (Was) 2,437 (153)
Loss/(gain) on fair value changes in BRAnBEFABRS
financial assets at fair value through CRMEEZAREE
profit or loss ZE)EE () 9,536 (106,362)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of equity HEZRARBERA
investments at fair value through BRI RERE ZE
profit or loss 18/ (Was) 63,134 (4,586)
Dividend income from financial assets BRAnBEFABERE
at fair value through profit or loss PRMEECKREBA 6 (1,533) (4,423)
Gain on fair value adjustment of FEFAREBHALE
contingent consideration U 6 (10,060) .
Gain on adjustment of acquisition FARWEREN KR
consideration (160,921) -
Share-based payment expenses AR n R ERE R R X 7 4,334 4,524
Foreign exchange difference, net M ZE XA EEE (11,930) 6,965
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mEBRERER (H)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
Bz AREFT
Operating cash flows before BEESBBAIZ
movements in working capital HERSRE 366,126 346,965
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,390) (1,659)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEMN (134,465) (296,700)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 EWRFIER D
(1B n) 113,195 (167,825)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BNRA - mE REM
and other receivables PRI 10,479 65,228
Decrease in receivables under service RIS E T HER
concession arrangement JE W IR A 19,274 23,479
Increase in debt instruments at fair value RARBEFALMEE
through other comprehensive income W R ER T AN (3,370) (98,812)
Increase in amounts due from related JiE s B 2 75 SR I L BN
parties (55,637) (43,429)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills B SR FIE R ENEE
payables B (3E ) (2,096) 102,259
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, HEAsIE - BUUES
deposits received and accrued K ERTRZ &M,
expenses CR) 20,704 (16,074)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #J&E G4 ) /10 (175,436) 44 324
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FE - B8 07 3R
related parties CRid),/ #m (8,452) 8,095
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & &F15,/(FTA) R 146,932 (34,149)
Interest received BEYFE 6,431 10,092
Income tax paid B PSR (16,319) (31,808)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating K& EZEfE (FiA)
activities BEEEE 137,044 (55,865)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERSRER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
Note RMB’000
K AREFTL
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETDHZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Placement of pledged bank deposits GEABEBIRITER (345,667) (763,277)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B EPRITIER 389,410 714,171
Interest received B WF B 860 1,568
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE QRIS RIE - 3,980
Dividend received from an associate BB N B AR 2 19 30,601 17,573
Dividend received from financial assets at EIZ AR BEFTABZED
fair value through profit or loss S RE EWEUR S 1,533 4,423
Proceed on disposal of financial assets at H&EE AL BEEF AER
fair value through profit or loss K& @b E EFTS IR 84,493 11,5672
Purchase of property, plant and EEME - BB NEE
equipment (84,892) (64,376)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEKR
plant and equipment FEFTSRIE 398 221
Purchase of intangible assets and cost EEELEEMRBEES
capitalised under service concession KEZHMEREER
arrangements (25,408) (3,006)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair BERARBES AER
value through profit or loss HeREE (3,054) (33,797)
Purchases of equity investment BEREREANERE
designated at fair value through other ST AH AL 2 E Y ERHY
comprehensive income iR & (4,250) -
Decrease of advance to related parties M & BFR L 440 313
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1 B BT S R ) 38 (49,690) (5,662)
Purchase of other non-current assets BEHMIERSEE (17,679) (12,906)
Net cash flows used in investing RETHFAESFE

activities

(22,905) (129,203)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mEBRERER (H)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
Note RMB’000
liotZ3 ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETDH2RERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings raised MEBRITREMEK 73,500 50,000
Capital injection from non-controlling A FIERRRAEE
shareholders 2,500 4,000
Proceeds from discounted notes RITEMIREREE
receivable from banks PS8 22,313 50,009
Repayment of principal portion of lease EEHEEENASED
liabilities (1,722) (1,722)
Repurchase of ordinary shares LA 5l Y (60) (1,486)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (87,641) (14,898)
Interest paid BRFLE (11,608) (7,967)
Dividends paid B AR B (63,821) (62,073)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing B EE (FTH),~
activities FrSRE&FE (66,539) 15,863
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN REeRESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®gmORd) B8 47,600 (169,205)
Cash and cash equivalents at REAZRER
beginning of year ReZEY 342,958 519,128
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEE o HEFH
changes, net 11,930 (6,965)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZEREER
END OF YEAR RE%EY 27 402,488 342,958
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

China Boqgi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
30 January 2015 and its shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
16 March 2018. The addresses of the registered office
of the Company and principal place of business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Flue gas treatment business

o Water treatment business

° Hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal
service

o Dual-carbon energy saving business

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), there is no single entity that could be
considered as the ultimate holding company.

e ISR AR

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

FREEAFRE (BER)BRAR ([ERA
A1) R2015F1 A30BEM S S EMAK
URERRBERAT  HERHMN20184F3
RA16BEEBHMERZFBRARER L
o AA BRI FEMIF =R R AR R R EM
BAT (5B AEE])HEZLE XN
BN FRI ABIER ] —& -

RRRBREEBR AT - FR - AEERK
EUATEERR

1% SR BRI 7S

. R

. fo [ B B T e B 5K 7%

il

ARRER(EE)RA - UEE—HE
WR D ERIER AT

k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Information about subsidiaries

HEf B AT NER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

B
BRARRREIEZMBARZFENT :

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML,/ BRTZER/
8 dREREH ERE RAEREERER L TEXR
Direct Indirect
E# ik
CBEE Holdings Co., Ltd. (‘CBEE")* British Virgin Islands - 100% - Investment holding
(“BVI")
RERRES RERR
Beijing Shengyi Tiancheng PRC/Mainland China RMB521,500,000 100% - Investment holding
Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Shengyi")*
IREBRAERMEERAT TE/HEAE  AR¥S521,500,0007T RERR
([kREE])"
Beijing Bosheng Environmental SCI - PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
TECH Co., Ltd.
I REERRRBRERAA hEl/ hEIKRE AK%10,000,0007C REER
Beijing Boqi Electric Power SCI - PRC/Mainland China RMB550,000,000 - 100%  Environmental protection
TECH Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Boqi") facilities engineering,
operation and
maintenance services
IRBRENMRARAR (L RET]) T8/ HEAE  AR¥550,000,0007T RIREIEIE -
EERMGERT
Jiangxi Jinggangshan Bogi PRC/Mainland China RMB81,000,000 = 100%  Concession operation
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. services
(“Jinggangshan Bogi")
TEARLBERRMEERAA hEl/ hEIKRE AR#81,000,0007C BHRE RS

([HRALEE])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE SRR MIEE (&)

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) HEMEARNENE)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued
ordinary/registered

Percentage of equity

Name business share capital ~ attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR,/ BRIZER/
£ AR E R EMRE SN SR TERH
Direct Indirect
Ef 3

Shanxi Puzhou Bogi Environmental PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100%  Concession operation
Technology Co., Ltd. services
(“Puzhou Boqi")

WEBN B RRNRERAA hE/ HE AR AR #55,000,0007T FHEE RS
(IAMER])

Shanxi Hejin Bogi Environmental PRC/Mainland China RMB25,000,000 - 100%  Concession operation
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hejin Boqi") services

WET A SRR RERAR hEl/ REIKE ARH25,000,0007 HRE RS
(MTeEs))

Anhui Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Sale of coal and

chemicals

RHRERHARLR hE/hEARE AR%20,000,0007 BRi2RiHE

Shanxi Bo Yuan Qi Cheng PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Operation and
Environmental Equipment Service maintenance services
Co., Ltd.

WEBRSRRRRXERBERAA hE/ REARE AR#10,000,0007T BLRGERY
Changjizhou Bogi Environmental PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100%  Environmental protection
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Changjizhou facility engineering,

Bogi’) operation and
maintenance services,
concession operation
services

EEMBERRMEARAR hE/ hEIKEE AR 140,000,000 RRFIELE Bk

([BEMEE])

TR - HEHEE RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

L

Beijing Bogi Environmental
Remediation Tech Co., Ltd.

IREFRRERERAR
Huainan Bogi Environmental

Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Huainan Bogi’)

ERBEREMEERLE ((EEER))

Laibin Bogi Environmental Technology

Co., Ltd. (“Laibin Bogi")

REBSREAMRARLR ((REHF))

Changzhi Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Changzhi Bogi")

BRBSRANRARAR ((RAER))

Tangshan Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.

EURSREMEARAT

Place of

incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered
business share capital
HMRL/ BRALER/
ERREELY BTN
PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
el /R E AR AR%10,000,0007C
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
e/ hE AR AR¥50,000,0007
PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000
hE/ REAR AR%80,000,0007C
PRC/Mainland China RMB128,000,000
WE/REAE  AR%128,000,000T
PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
e/ hE AR AR%30,000,0007C

FRMBRRANERE)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company  Principal activities

ARRREEERAAL FEEY
Direct Indirect
B# B

60%  Technology services,
engineering and
exploration services

RS - TRRORRS
- 100%  Environmental protection
facility engineering,
operation and
maintenance services
RRREIE
E2RBERYG

- 100%  Environmental protection
facility engineering,
operation and
maintenance services

RRERIRE

ELREERE

- 100%  Water treatment business

KEBER

- 100%  Hazardous and solid
waste treatment/
disposal service

REERERERE



Annual Report 2022 F ik 231

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

L

Handan Bogi Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Handan Bogi")
HBETRERMEERLE (HBER])

Qinghai Bogi Ecological Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Qinghai Boqi")
EERTERRANRARRA
([EsE7))

Beijing Bogi Tiangi Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd
I REERRRRHEERAA

Place of

incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered
business share capital
HMRL/ BRTZER,/
dREREH ERE
PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000
HEl /A AR AR¥75,000,0007
PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
e/ HEARE AR%30,000,0007C
PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
hE /T E AR AR10,000,0007

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

FRMBRRANERE)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company  Principal activities

KAFAEERRE D TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
- 70%  Dual-carbon energy
saving services
SR
- 92%  Hazardous and solid
waste treatment/
disposal service
GEERERERY
60%  Water treatment business

KEBER

Except for CBEE and Beijing Shengyi, all of the above

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

- BRCBEERILREERS - LA E
NEIBEARREEERE

ERIMESTRREIBFEFTARMANME
RAEBEEFEEANBDY 2 AR AN B
NE - BEERR - WMIEEMHE QR
B eEREANITE
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for debt investments, contingent
consideration and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

AMBHERDREBE ST ENESS
(ERETENEEE]) RN BEEREM %
WMEER ((ERMBRERER ] BIEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS Standards IFRS 9, lllustrative
2018-2020 Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with
a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should
refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by IAS
2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for
use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the
purpose of assessing whether a contract is
onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS
9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendment that is
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies
the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. The Group
has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Group.

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.
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Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts™ ®

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current (the "2020
Amendments”)? *

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the 2022
Amendments”)?
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Policies’

Definition of Accounting
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Deferred Tax related to
Assels and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17
issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend
the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of IFRS
17

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when
it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of an associate is included
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in
an associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group’s investment in an
associate.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating unit (the “CGU”), or groups
of cash-generating units (the “CGU groups”), that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU (or CGU groups) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or a
CGU group) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt and equity investments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’'s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or the
CGU’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. In testing a CGU for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
CGU if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Related parties (Continued) B (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item
of property, plant and equipment is classified as held
for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for sale and Discontinued Operations. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated by the units-of-production
method to write off the cost of each item of landfills
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
estimated landfill volume are as follows:

Rigid landfills
Flexible landfill

50,000 tons/each
500,000 tons/each
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Except for landfills, depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Owned properties 14 to 30 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures and equipment 2 to 20 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
lands and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold lands and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
lands is presented as “property, plant and equipment”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold lands, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold property held as
a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
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Investment properties (Continued)

The investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the rate of 3.17% per annum with
the estimated residual value of 5% of the cost.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, other than
service concession arrangements as set out in “Service
concession arrangements” below, that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

When the Group has a right to charge for usage of
service concession infrastructure (as a consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession
arrangement), it recognises an intangible asset at fair
value upon initial recognition. The Group’s intangible
assets represent operating concessions and are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses, if any. Operating concessions are
amortised over the tenure of the service concession
arrangements and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using straight-line method.
The residual value is estimated by the Directors for
the amount that could be recovered when the relevant
contractual party is obliged to pay the Group for the
transfer of infrastructure (which is built by the Group
for obtaining the operating concession) at a price
appraised by valuer upon the expiry of the service
concession arrangements (if not extendable by the
relevant contractual party) in accordance with the
relevant service concession agreements. The estimated
useful life, residual value and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis. Further details of operating
concessions are set out in “Service concession
arrangements” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Service concession arrangements are amortised on
a straight-line basis, over the remaining concession
period. Other intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis based on their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 5 years.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain owners of the
power plants and other entities (the “Grantors”).

Under these service concession arrangements:

o the Grantors control or regulate the services the
Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price;
and

. the Grantors control, through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure
at the end of the term of the arrangements, or
the infrastructure is used for its entire useful life
under the arrangements, or both the Group's
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure
is restricted and continuing right of use of the
infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout
the period of the arrangements.
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Service concession arrangements (Continued)
Consideration given to the Grantor

During construction stage, a contract asset is
recognised to the extent that the Group has a future
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from the Grantors for the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantors upon completion
of the construction of the relevant infrastructure, that
is a condition for granting such unconditional right.
The contract asset is transferred to financial asset
(receivable under a service concession arrangement)
when the construction of the relevant infrastructure
is completed. The Group has unconditional right to
receive cash if the Grantors contractually guarantee to
pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall (the “Guarantee”), if any, between amounts
received from the users of the service and specified or
determinable amounts.

The financial assets (receivables under service
concession arrangements) are accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
at amortised cost below. An intangible asset (operating
concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group
receives a right to charge users of the service, which is
not an unconditional right to receive cash because the
amounts are contingent on the extent that the use, and
is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out
for “Intangible assets” above.

If the Group is paid for the consideration partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of
the consideration.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Leasehold lands
Leased properties

50 years
1to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
leased machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets,
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, receivables under service
concession arrangement, long-term receivable, cash
and bank balances, and time deposits) and contract
assets. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

Simplified approach

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and amounts due from
related parties-trade portion without significant financing
component. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. Except for debtors including
which is credit-impaired is assessed for impairment
individually, the trade receivables, contract assets
and amounts due from related parties-trade portion
are grouped under a provision matrix into internal
credit rating buckets based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure for
the new customers.

General approach

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’'s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, or the length
of time or the extent to which the fair value
of a financial asset has been less than its
amortised cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(b)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when the
contractual payment is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)
(c) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liguidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

To measure the ECL, contract assets, trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties-trade portion are
grouped based on shared common risk characteristics.
The Group believes that most of the customers of trade
receivable, contract assets and amounts due from
related parties-trade portion are the same in nature,
who are power plants, and treats all customers as one
single group. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
the Directors to ensure the constituents of the Group
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, contract assets, amounts due
from related parties, receivables under service
concession arrangement, long-term receivable and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as contingent consideration, loans and borrowings,
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories mainly include supplies and spare parts in
relation to the Group’s environmental protection facility
and operation and maintenance services, and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories is calculated using the first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash and bank balances, time deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the
non-monetary assets and released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal
annual instalments.

Frig®t (&)
BEXEHRBREERAGBNIZAERNERARER
BEESFEABHRANKRE - REXHRS

HARAMERMAEL FERMOREK (R
PR FHE -

EREZEAKEEN AN TEMGAH
BEEERINHARGERE  BEER
HEERREHARGEERR —HHEEY
Fl—ERHERBAN S ARPARBHEX
ﬁ L EHBREREERTBZEENE

RRFREEAEGENNNERERE
Fﬁﬂkmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmTﬂfﬁ
MEBEROMEHAER - AEEHIAE
EIFEER AR EREE -

B 5 BY

WA I EE K WA/ A& P
B GS - RIEEEDBIRAAEBET
LARERR - BN IRE B - BIR R
18 B R B 32 85 B ) 1 3 A 1 W 58 S R
A e

HWEAEBKEEEREENFE - AIF
A MFEREENAABELEA

C WHABEENTERERFRASF
ﬁ%%ﬁkﬁ§%°



Annual Report 2022 F 3}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Groups
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an

asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Revenue recognition (Continued) WARR (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EF &R Kt ()

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable EANRERSNESHE  REMGFA/E
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated E@L%Eﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁ&%%ﬁEfﬂ#ﬁ%?‘%ﬂ
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for e o AIERERE DR LR EMAET I
transferring the goods or services to the customer. ZRE - EECHRNRFBRASEIKN
The variable consideration is estimated at contract AIREH IR BB AW AR L - B A ZAER
inception and constrained until it is highly probable MR HEE I BE RN AR A

that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component EaleamBEMANSy HREFREH
which provides the customer with a significant benefit AN - REBREVRRE TLEF R
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the EBE—F A ARBEFRSENE
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured BFFE @ URAOERBAREEZE
at the present value of the amount receivable, FPEHNEBRER S RRNITREH
discounted using the discount rate that would be B-BANEEREMAKMY  EAXE
reflected in a separate financing transaction between BiRHEAMBINSBE—F  MAOT
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When ERNBABRRBRERANFETANAEN
the contract contains a financing component which FMEXH - HREFNREBBRAERY
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit KERF 2 MNEREERR—FXUTHE
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the % BRI HREERFEIRNER
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the A AR SZERTRENEE A D
contract liability under the effective interest method. For B EFHRAE

a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services
is recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of
the service, because the Group’s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs
and margins for scope of works not included in the
original construction contract. Claims are accounted
for as variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the amounts of
claims because this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, including certain concession agreements
that include “Build-Operate-Transfer” (“BOT”) and
“Build-Own-Operate” (“BO0O") contracts, the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a
stand-alone selling price is not directly observable,
the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
construction services before payments from customers
in which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The Group
recognises interest income during the period between
the payment from customers and the transfer of the
associated services.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Interest income generated from service concession
arrangement is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the receivable under service concession
arrangement.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

AR (&)
A MFIFHI KA

R BAFRERFELNNERAERE
BN EZBBRAREB T ANTETFH
S ERBE (ER) BEEARRREIA
MR ERBRFFEE LR T R AER
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A& WAIRTE B AR R L PR RR - 0 IR
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SR MR BUA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.
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Contract costs (Continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract
costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 36.

The fair value determined at the grand date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest.

The impact of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share premium.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group's subsidiaries operating in PRC except for
Hong Kong (“Mainland China”) participate in a central
defined contribution retirement benefit plan managed
by the local municipal government in the locations in
which they operate. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the companies’ payroll costs and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
services provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Hittfe S8 F
RERN B

AEBEESTE (FELRFIRIN ([HE
M) EENHMB AR 2EELSEME
Ho RO 35 BT B BE A P R SE HBURINAR
MEE - BEHFRTIREARHFEEAN
XBEDLEE  WAREHRFAEHRFCRIK
wAFEIMARA - EERNBERETX
8 °

SRS &

MMB TRANBEBAFRERETE - I
RABBRBRERT AR -

fHAEE R E TR ERMHO RS A E
EHEEEF LS - BAEBHERN
AL RAREEHR SRS B
TITH#IrEIR AR T NS BB RE
T AR -

RER A
BEBENNAKRE TV RTZER
MR ARERRSENBERENNE
MR (AP E RE) HER o

291



292

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEI#EZRR (EKR) ERLQF

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is RMB. In
preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Progress of completion of performance obligations

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contract, which is determined as the proportion of
the costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
to complete the contract. The Directors estimate both
of the profit margin and contract cost at the beginning
for each contract, revise the estimation of both profit
margin and contract cost through regular review
when the Directors consider there are changes in the
assumptions throughout the contract period. The actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and
this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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Progress of completion of performance obligations
(Continued)

In addition, the Group makes provision for expected
loss on construction contracts based on the estimation
of the outcome of the ongoing construction projects by
the Directors’ prior experience and industry averages
for similar projects. The Group assesses periodically
the expected return of construction contracts and if
the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the expected return in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets and amounts due from related parties-trade
portion

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables, contract assets and
amounts due from related parties-trade portion based
on provision matrix through grouping of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering
ageing, internal credit ratings of trade debtors,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. In addition, trade receivables and contract
assets that are credit-impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of the
trade receivables, contract assets and amounts due
from related parties-trade portion is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit losses. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and amounts due
from related parties-trade portion are disclosed in notes
22, 24 and 43 respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Provision for customer claims

The Directors estimate the results of relevant events
based on the information available upon 31 December
2022 and recognise accrued expenses at a most
probable amount. Actual results may be different
depending on the future progress.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2022 was RMB6,488,000 (2021:
RMB147,957,000). Further details are given in note 16.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or the
CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Business combinations and goodwill

When the Group completes a business combination, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value. Management
estimation is required to determine the fair values of
the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and the
purchase consideration, and on the allocation of the
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and
liabilities. The fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are determined
using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable market where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement and estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Management must
estimate the expected future cash flows and discount
rate in order to calculate the fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on their products and services

and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Flue gas treatment business

Environmental
protection
facility
engineering
(“EPC”)

Operation and
maintenance
("“O&M")

Concession
operation

Others

project design, procurement of
equipment and materials, project
construction and equipment
instalment and testing services

operation service and regular
maintenance service for
desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and dust removal
facilities

construction of infrastructure
or acquisition of existing
infrastructure from grantor,
operation and maintenance of
flue gas treatment project for a
pre-defined period according
to the concession contract and
transferring the ownership of the
infrastructure to the grantor at
the end of the period

sales of by-products and others

(b) Water treatment business mainly involves the

sewage treatment for industrial parks in coal

chemical, coking, steel and pharmaceutical

sectors

(c) Hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal
business, the new business of the Group in 2021,

mainly involves in the detoxification, reduction
and resource treatment and disposal of bulk solid
waste and industrial hazardous waste

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE
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ERHREE K
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AEEEWRMEH
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(d) Dual-carbon energy saving business mainly
involves project engineering and design,
procurement of equipment and materials,
project construction, equipment installation and
commissioning services

For the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance, the executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), regularly review types of goods or services
delivered or provided by focusing on different
business models. CODM assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
“reportable segment profit”, i.e., “revenue less cost
of sales”. The Group does not allocate depreciations
and amortisations other than those presented in cost
of sales and services, impairment of other non-current
asset, impairment losses on financial and contract
assets. The Group also does not allocate other income
and other gains, other expense and losses, selling
and distribution expenses, administrative expenses,
research and development expenses, finance costs
and share of profit of associates to its segments, as
the CODM does not use such information to allocate
resources to or evaluate the performance of the
operating segments.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
CODM does not regularly review segment assets and
liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE SRR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &&5qER(E)
(Continued)
Segment revenue (Note 5) Segment profit
AUk (HEES) AEEF
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20216 2022 20216
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFTT
Flue gas treatment business ERAEEK
EPC EPC 568,083 715,703 33,804 50,976
O&M B 400,429 394,927 113,971 91,757
Concession operation Hige 504,104 582,157 128,126 138,071
Others it 36,500 58,802 35,744 58,584
Water treatment business KEBEHR 270,878 100,286 58,084 36,815
Hazardous and solid waste TERREREEY
treatment/disposal business 11,717 20,062 (935) 4,386
Dual-carbon energy saving business  SHREAER 107,637 220,235 21,984 6,970
Total @it 1,900,248 2,092,172 390,778 387,559
Unallocated other income and gains RO BEM A
Lz 214,861 151,137
Unallocated other expense and losses AP EEMER
LE#E (247,092) (14,574)
Unallocated selling and distribution KA EHEE
expenses A AT (19,910) (30,189)
Unallocated administrative expenses AOBETHAX (89,726) (89,546)
Unallocated research and development  RAEHEHS
expenses (58,662) (40,040)
Unallocated (impairment losses)/ ADEEREAH
reversal of impairment losses on BENCAEBR)
financial and contract assets / REBBER (15,078) 892
Unallocated share of profits of an APBAE—R
associate =Ny 14,395 30,601
Unallocated finance costs RO R A (13,667) (9,786)
Profit before tax BRAL AT AN 175,899 386,054

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue

generated from external customers. There were no

inter-segment sales for the year ended 31 December

2022 (2021: nil).

EXEFH D W EIER B INBEF AU
e HE2022F12A31B I FEHED
EREIEHE (20214 : ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT
(Continued)

Other segment information

INFORMATION 4. gEq

Httm

3z
]

BER ()

PE R

Total depreciation and

amortisation

mERBHARE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Depreciations and amortisations EHERBRHEREFTIHRN
presented in cost of sales and TEREH
services
Flue gas treatment business ERRIE
EPC EPC 65 52
O&M B 6,441 8,195
Concession operation IR S 61,086 57,867
Water treatment business IKBRIBHETE 24,922 15,601
Hazardous and solid waste treatment/ EEEREEEFT
disposal business 4,469 2,182
Sub-total NEE 96,983 83,897
Unallocated depreciations and ROBMITEREH
amortisations
Other than those presented in cost of  BR7EHE K RISEAF 5|
sales and services RAE I 26,445 16,214
Total ey 123,428 100,111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT
(Continued)

Geographical information

INFORMATION 4.

The Group primarily operates in PRC. Substantially
all non-current assets and revenue of the Group are

located in and generated from PRC.

Information about a major customer

There is no customer contributing over 10% to the total

revenue of the Group in 2022 and 2021.

fRE SRR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

ReEsBWER (&)

i & E R

AEETERTEEEER - AEELT
FRASERBEE MmN PE kAP
BEL -

IERFENR

R2022F K 20214 - BIETEIAREERE
WZFHE10% A ERES °

REVENUE 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: W s
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers B FE &Lk 1,857,797 2,068,258
Revenue from other sources 2R B H At 2ROR A Uz
Interest income generated from RIS E THETE £ 1)
service concession arrangement FBUEA 42,451 23,914
1,900,248 2,092,172
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RR M (8D

31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31BIEEE

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers

5.

Wz (&)
EFEEHNWE

W a5 B 5
BZE2022F12A31HLFEE

(a)

Flue gas treatment business Hazardous
BRAEER and solid
waste  Dual-carbon
Water  treatment/ energy
Concession treatment  disposal saving
EPC operation  Others business  business business Total
EERE
EPC B e Bt KEEEE - REXR SREEEE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AEBTL ARBTL ARMTR ARMTn ARBTR ARETR  ARMTR ARET:R
Types of goods and ERREHER
services
Rendering of servioes RULR% 568,983 400429 461,653 - 20878 717 107,637 1,821,207
Sales of goods HEEm - - - 36500 - - - 36500
Total revenue from contracts  BPANINKEE
with customers 568,983 400429 461,653 36,500 270,878 1,717 107,637 1,857,797
Geographical market HETS
Mainland China hEAKE 568,983 400,429 461,653 36,500 270,878 1,717 107,637 1,857,797
Total revenue from contracts  EFA#MEEE
with customers 568,983 400,429 461,653 36,500 270,878 1,717 107,637 1,857,797
Timing of revenue BRUENEEY
recognition
Services fransferred over R —REHER
time KR 568,983 400429 461,653 - 210,878 1,717 107,637 1,821,297
Goods transferred at a point ~ REEBLERHE
in time m = - - 36,500 - - - 36,500
Total revenue from contracts  BFA#INEL
with customers 568,983 400,429 461,653 36,500 270,878 1,717 107,637 1,857,797
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEE#HWE (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) U=HH7 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BIE2021F12A31BLFE
Flue gas treatment business Hazardous
ERRRER and solid
waste  Dual-carbon
Water  treatment/ energy
Concession treatment  disposal saving
EPC O&M  operation  Others  business  business business Total
BEERE

EPC  BE HAE  Ab KRERE  REXE RROERE A
RMB00O RMBO00  RMBOOO RMBO00 RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO
ARRTT ARBTL ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTRL  ARRTL ARETR

Types of goods and ERREHER

services

Rendering of services RIS 715703 394927 558,243 - 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,009,456
Sales of goods HEER - - - 58802 - = - 58802

Total revenue from contracts  REAXNEEE

with customers 715,703 394,927 558,243 58,802 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,068,258
Geographical market HERE
Mainland China HERE 715,703 394,927 558,243 58,802 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,068,258

Total revenue from contracts  REAXNEEE

with customers 715,703 394,927 558,243 58,802 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,068,258
Timing of revenue BRUENEEY

recognition
Services transferred over I —FEREEBRR

time % 715,703 394,927 558,243 - 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,009,456
Goods transferred at apoint  REBHZEH

in time HE® - - - 58802 - - - 58,802

Total revenue from contracts  REAXINEEE
with customers 715,703 394,927 558,243 58,802 100,286 20,062 220,235 2,068,258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. W@ (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEAHWE (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) W=EBHH (&)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue INTAREFPEHNWEEDFERF
from contracts with customers to the amounts HESRE R
disclosed in the segment information:
Revenue from contracts with
customers
EEEHNE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Flue gas treatment business ERVRIEETS
EPC EPC 568,983 715,703
0&M B 400,429 394,927
Concession operation BERF A 461,653 558,243
Others Hth 36,500 58,802
Water treatment business IR TS 270,878 100,286
Hazardous and solid waste EEEREEEXER
treatment/disposal business 11,717 20,062
Dual-carbon energy saving LHRENRE TS
business 107,637 220,235

Total et 1,857,797 2,068,258
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

BEFEEHNWE (&)

Wz B9 ()

TR IR RA R S BRI A R 5t
AREBYHADEEZ KES

were included in the contract liabilities at the B
beginning of the reporting period:
2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFTT
Revenue recognised that was FAREHUNENEEN
included in contract liabilities eERlE
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Rendering of services TR RS 103,461 60,952
Performance obligations (b) RBEHEMF

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

()

Flue gas treatment business
EPC services

EPC services primarily involves project
engineering and design, procurement
of equipment and materials, project
construction, equipment installation and
commissioning services in relation to
desulfurization and denitrification and dust
removal for coal-fired power plants.

The Directors have assessed that the
Group’'s performance creates and/or
enhances an asset that the customers
control as the Group performs. Therefore,
the Directors have satisfied that there is
only one single performance obligation,
and the services are satisfied over time.

BRAEBERBANFETHERB N
T :
(i) NEG G TS

EPCHRT

EPCARREEZE S K A E
RE AR © A B B BB SR 4t
THE TR - REEMH

REE - HER®R  RELE
EERTAKENEOASE

FRIEEER HIEREP
THIMEE - Hitt - BFR
RRBE-BEHNEMLE TR
TR —ERIFREIERK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
EPC services (Continued)

Accordingly, revenue from EPC services,
which are generally under project-based
development contracts, is recognised
based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation
which is determined as the proportion
of the costs incurred for the works (i.e.
subcontracting costs, material costs and
direct staff costs incurred) performed to
date relative to the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project, to the
extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its recovery is considered
probable.

The Group's construction contracts
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the construction
period once certain specified milestones
are reached. The Group requires certain
customers to provide upfront payments
range from 10% to 30% of total contract
sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount
of the deposit.

BEFEENWE (&)

(b)

BHYEE (E)
(i) TERBEF(E)
EPCHR# ()

Hit - EPCHRT (—RRIE
HEARESOETT) K
7 RIRA TR R
R AR BIZEIAR
S BEK TIEFEERK
KA BAA - BRI
REZB THRA) 16 K&
F RIS (A ET RN H0 L3 7
BILL DIEETE - MHEZEIARER] 52
AAEAARKEMNESES
BB -

REBOEEESDBEN
Bk - HiE—BET
TREMNBERE FEZ
HEEREDBNRK - A%
BEkETEPZMAEH
REEANBENI0%E
30% ' BEAREEREEMS
AIEIRE - AHBEBE
BHRRRES  HEHT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
EPC services (Continued)

About 5%-10% of the contract price is
withheld by the customers and will be
released upon completion of the warranty
period (normally 1-2 years after the date
of the completion of the construction).
Retention receivables, prior to expiration
of the warranty period, are classified
as contract assets and are reclassified
to trade receivables when the warranty
period expires. The Directors have
assessed the effects of the financing
component is not significant at contract
level and therefore revenue is not adjusted
for the effects of time value of money.

O&M services

O&M services mainly include the
provision of operation service and regular
maintenance service for desulfurization
and denitrification facilities and dust
removal facilities owned by their
customers, where the Group’s work scope
includes the full operation, testing and
repairing, upgrading and maintenance of
flue gas treatment system/facilities owned
by these coal-fired power plants.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

BEFEEHNWE (&)

(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(i)

ESORTERTE (B)
EPCHR# (%)

BRIBIRA5%-10%H TP
RE - XERNRETER
(—RABTEAERE B HIRA
E2F) B - EREHER
Al - RERUWHIBBDERE
WEE - WRREHERE
EMHBEEHEWFR -
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AR DR EL TEX
Rt T EER 2 A
Yz o

BHIRF

BHRERGEERRYEFH
B O BB R A AR bt % B EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
O&M services (Continued)

Pursuant to certain contracts of rendering
related O&M services, the transaction
price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring O&M services
to customers. Additionally, the O&M
services typically meet the criterion where
customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits of the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
Therefore, the Directors have satisfied that
the performance obligation of rendering
O&M services are satisfied over time and
the revenue is recognised over the service
period.

For certain O&M services and the
O&M service under service concession
arrangements, the Group applies the
practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed as permitted by IFRS 15.

BEFEENWE (&)
(b) BEHEMFE(E)
(i)  TERREEFH(E)
BHRR (E)

RERFERBERRTNS
# - RHEHAAEETES
A& P RHE RS
RAE - teoh - BRIRGBE
HEBEFPRRESRERR
SEBEAMENEER -
At - EFRREMERR
BHBRABEEFTE—RERHE
SERK W AR HARERR -

BhoE T8 S B RS KR
B ERBimE L Hig
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
Concession operation

In a typical BOT and BOO project, the
Group is responsible for the financing,
investment, construction, and operation of
the projects according to the concession
contracts with their customers. After the
completion of the constructions, the Group
operates and maintains the project for
a pre-defined period, which is typically
15 to 20 years, when they are entitled to
collecting revenues generated from the
projects during the terms of the contracts.

The Directors have assessed that BOT
and BOO services comprise two separate
performance obligations, the construction
of the facilities and the operating and
maintenance service upon the completion
of the construction of facilities, equivalent
to a combination of EPC service and
O&M service. Revenue recognition for
each performance obligation follows the
comparable stand-alone services specified
above in EPC and O&M.

Others

Other revenues from sales of by-products
and others are recognised at the point
of time when the control of goods is
transferred to the customer.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE
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(b) BEHEMFE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Water treatment business

The water treatment business mainly
involves the sewage treatment for
industrial parks in coal chemical, coking
and steel sectors. The Group’s work scope
includes the full operation, testing and
repairing, upgrading and maintenance of
water treatment system.

Pursuant to certain contracts of rendering
related water treatment services, the
transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring
water treatment services to customers.
Additionally, the water treatment services
typically meet the criterion where
customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits of the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
Therefore, the Directors have satisfied that
the performance obligation of rendering
water treatment services are satisfied over
time and the revenue is recognised over
the service period.

EPC services in water treatment business
primarily involves project engineering
and design, procurement of equipment
and materials, project construction,
equipment installation and commissioning
services in relation to industrial wastewater
treatment for metallurgical plant. Revenue
recognition for relative performance
obligations follows the comparable EPC
services of flue gas treatment business
specified above.

BEFEENWE (&)

(b)

BHYEE (E)
(i) IKEERFE
KEIEERE B W RIRA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)

(iii)

Hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal business

The hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal business mainly involves in the
detoxification, reduction and resource
treatment and disposal of bulk solid
waste and industrial hazardous waste. It
mainly includes the provision of operation
service and regular maintenance service
for relevant facilities owned by the Group,
where the Group’s work scope includes
the full operation, testing and repairing,
upgrading and maintenance of hazardous
and solid waste treatment system/facilities
owned by the Group.

Pursuant to certain contracts of
rendering related hazardous and solid
waste treatment/disposal services,
the transaction price is the amount
of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring relevant services to customers.
Additionally, the hazardous and solid
waste treatment/disposal services typically
meet the criterion where customers
simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits of the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Therefore, the Directors
have satisfied that the performance
obligation of rendering hazardous and
solid waste treatment/disposal services
are satisfied over time and the revenue is
recognised over the service period.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

BEFEEHNWE (&)

(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(iii)

JEBIER T &R

EEEREREXBEEY
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BEEEEES e 7t
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REAAEEEHRTPRM
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e ISR A ()

31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(iv)

Dual-carbon energy saving business

The dual-carbon energy saving business
mainly involves in project engineering and
design, procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction, equipment
installation and commissioning services in
relation to BOT project.

The Directors have assessed that
BOT services in dual-carbon energy
saving business comprise two separate
performance obligations, the construction
of the facilities and the operating and
maintenance service upon the completion
of the construction of facilities, equivalent
to a combination of EPC service and
O&M service. Revenue recognition for
each performance obligation follows the
comparable stand-alone services specified
above in EPC and O&M.

BRQE

BEFEENWE (&)
(b) BEHEMFE(E)
(iv) EBIREIFEFRTS

EWMMEERETESIRE
EﬁBOTIﬁE 718 B Ih&

AT EREBRME R
BEk - fEL ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%
j\’%o

BEECAH  BWREEED
BBOT AR % &2 5 M I8 & 51 &9
BHEME - BRI E TR
BERIEIER  EBE REE
R - HHEREPCHR K&
BRENES - SEHNER
Ry a5 ERR B 8 = X EPC K
EMFTEAR AT LR A B L
BR7% °
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(b)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

BEFEEHNWE (&)

BIRAE RS ()

Performance obligations (Continued) (b) EBHEML(E)
Dual-carbon energy saving business (iv)
(Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance

W12 A3 EDEESRTE
NEML (KRBT DEIT)

obligations (unsatisfied or partially MR ZERSEIAT :
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as
follows:
2021
20214
RMB’000
ARET T
Amounts expected to be FEHRBTRERYE
recognised as revenue for the THEPCHRIE R 2
EPC services and construction  #BRF AR B HxET 4L
services under concession (BBEIBBENSE
arrangement and dual-carbon -
energy saving business:
Within one year —FR 470,783 476,928
More than one year but —FLEETBBR
not more than two years F - 36,009
470,783 512,937
Amounts expected to be EHRABESNEE
recognised as revenue for the HE#REER RN
O&M services with fixed total HHEEH
contract amounts:
Within one year —FR 47,514 37,167
More than one year but not more ~ —%F LA HERBIBM
than two years it 26,461 23,229
More than two years MF A 7,472 3,525

81,447 63,921
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARBTT
Gain on adjustment of acquisition FRBERE W
consideration (note) (FsE) 160,921 =
Interest income FE WA 11,064 15,660
Gain on fair value adjustment of IARELRBERAR 2 K=
contingent consideration (note) (Ff3E) 10,060 =
Government grants BT 48 B 7,087 3,446
— Taxes refunded — R EIFIA 5,005 2,581
— Compensation for expenses incurred —EERYNEE 2,082 865
Dividend income from financial assets at & QAR BEFFAEZRNEF
fair value through profit or loss BE 2B A 1,533 4,423
Gains on fair value changes of financial EAREEFABENSHE
asset at fair value through profit or loss ~ EZ Ak BEWE - 106,362
Gains on disposal of financial assets at HEZEAABEFFABGHNS
fair value through profit or loss BE E 2 W - 4,586
Other operating income and expense, net 48 & U A K 57 548 - 1,557
Gains on disposal of an investment in an HEREE R R E 2 W
associate - 1,101
Gains on disposal of non-current assets HEIETREE E 2 WEH - 153
Foreign exchange gains, net P Uy 2 ) 5B 11,930 =
Others At 12,266 13,849
Total st 214,861 151,137
Note: On 12 July 2022, Opinions on Strengthening Bzt : R2022F7 A 128 SE8EARBF

Environmental Supervision on Strict Prohibition of
Cross-Province Hazardous Waste Transfer for Disposal
(KFARBREERENBEEBAREE —PRICRREEN
Z5)) was issued by the Qinghai Province People’s
Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-province
transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous waste for
incineration and landfill disposal. Considered that the
specific assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
entire interest in Qinghai Bogi as at 30 June 2021 had
changed significantly, the Directors and the original
shareholder of Qinghai Bogi agreed to renegotiate
and enter into the supplemental agreements to revise
the total consideration for the entire equity interests of
Qinghai Bogi from RMB230,000,000 to RMB50,500,000.
Therefore, the management reversed the long-
term payables and contingent consideration initially
recognised on the acquisition date and recognised
a gain on adjustment of acquisition consideration of
RMB160,921,000 and a gain on fair value adjustment
for contingent consideration of RMB10,060,000.

NE(EREEERENEEEARS
HE—PRIEBRBEENER)  BEEB
EEENTEKEREY R RESE
BE ERINTEHEITE2HEZR
202146 A30 AWM EFTH A/ A8
BRECHLEERES  EFTHEEHT
MREBREREEFEM LI LT
W BEEEFTEIREENBERE
i AR#230,000,000 TETEARK
50,500,0007¢ ° Al - EEED HER
Uz 8 B HA ) 25 SR B I E R 1 3RIE R Bk
RRE - HAERABRKEBREN K
ABR#160,921,0007T R K ARBEH A
R EEAZKZE AR 10,060,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

AEEONKRBAENE MR (GEA) T3
RIF :

2021
2021%
Notes RMB'000
iF3 ARETTL
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRI ERA
(included in cost of sales and services) (FABERRBHER) 658,110 763,923
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRENE 13 42,585 35,620
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE 14 644 808
Amortisation of other intangible assets* At B AEAE" 17 72,084 57,169
Amortisation of other non-current assets H bR EES 8,115 6,514
123,428 100,111
Impairment of goodwill™* EEAE 141,469 =
Auditor's remuneration ZEMME 3,351 2706
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ and EERFAFES (TORESREEAH 9
chief executive's remuneration (note 9)): NBEEM (#:29))
Wages, salaries and other benefits T& HFERAMEN 156,236 207,420
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme KRR 8l 13,175 17,017
Share-based payment expenses IR BERMATES 36 4,334 4,524
173,745 228,961
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of financial £BRANEERE /(HEEE) :
and contract assets: ‘ \
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade ESENGERE / (RERR) 20
receivables ‘ 11,188 (5,382)
Impairment of other receivables AR RAE 3,758 859
Impairment of long-term receivable RBRMSARE 294 1,072
Impairment of contract assets ANAERE \ 23 148 1915
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) amounts due  EWEE HZUERE / (REEE) 43
from related parties \ ‘ 926 (1,735)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of receivables RIHTAEZH TRYGE(HER 16
under service concession arrangement |)/ B (1,236) 2379
15,078 (892)
(Reversal of provision)/provisions for inventory S (RRER) /B (190) 160
Impairment of other non-current assets AR A ERE - 3,513
Impairment of property, plant and equipment WX BELRXEAE 13 - 479
Impairment of other intangible asset™ EEEERE" 17 27,612 =
Gross rental income from investment properties ~ REMEFESUAEE (767) (582)
Less: Direct operating expense B FREERSMANRENR
(including depreciation) incurred for ELMBRLERY
investment properties that generated (RERE) GEARM
rental income during the year (included EERARAZFE)
in other operating income and expense, net) 644 808
(123) 226
Share of profits of an associate AME—FEE R RET (14,395) (30,601)

The amortisation of other intangible assets for the
year is included in “Cost of sales and services” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The impairment of goodwill and the impairment of other
intangible assets are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*%

- FAEMBLEER BT AGABRRR
WA [ $H & RARTERCA

~ R E R B EEREFALZS
BaERAN [ HbRA] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE B R M (4)

31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31BIEEE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B 78 B A

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Interest on bank loans and other RITER R EMEROTE

borrowings 11,608 7,530
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF B 2,059 2,256
Total 5T 13,667 9,786

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EBERFETHASHM
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the RIEETRA - FBARAEAISE383(1)
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section (@)~ (b)~ () (N ER AR (KEEFF
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies HER) ROIF A WBEZFNEZREE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of TTBRABFMMT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments HEmie
Salaries and other allowances e L E MR 1,781 1,700
Pension scheme contributions RIRBET B 57 52

1,838 1,752

2,138 2,062
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

9.

fRE SRR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022512A31BIEEE

EERTETHRASHM(E)

(a) BIFATES

ERENTFBIENTEE S
mF

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Mr. Liu Genyu BB SRS AE 100 100
Mr. Xie Guozhong HEB L 100 100
Mr. Lu Zhifang BEEF T E 100 100

300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2021: nil).

FERWEEN FIBILIERNITESEH
EMENS (20214 « ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RR M (8D

31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31 B ILEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. BEERTETHRAEEFM(Z)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITEE FIATESBERIETH
and the chief executive ABE

Salaries Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fee allowances contributions Total

B2 HeRkHtRRE RASTRMK EH
2022 20224 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETR ARBTR

Executive directors: WITESE
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (i) B2 BEREN) - 931 57 988
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard BEREE - 850 - 850
- 1,781 57 1,838
Non-executive directors: FERTES
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo BihxE - - - -
Mr. Zhu Weihang REMEE - - - -
Mr. Chen Xue BRE S & - - - -

Total 5 = 1,781 57 1,838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors

fRE SRR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

EERTETHRASHM(E)

(b) HTES - FUATESRIFETH

and the chief executive (Continued) AB (&)
Salaries Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fee allowances  contributions Total
2021 202145 BEMe HFoREMER RIKRSHEIRT FCE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: WirE=E:
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (i) B 2BREEN) = 850 52 902
Mr. Cheng Liguan Richard BERELE - 850 - 850
- 1,700 52 1,752
Non-executive directors: ERTES
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo i B7a - - - =
Mr. Zhu Weihang KEMEE - - - -
Mr. Chen Xue st = = = =
Total @t - 1,700 52 1,752
(i) Mr. Zeng Zhijun is also the chief executive (i) BRI TBITIHARH

officer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. BEERTETHRAEEFM(Z)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the
year included two directors (2021: two), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 (b)
above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining three (2021: three) highest paid

(c) ITEBSHHMES

FAREBRRFMEEREMA
(20214 : M%&) EFE - HFHMF
BER EXHFEI(b) s FRBT=
Z(2021F : =& )BRIEARAE
ENFERRTBITENRSFHE

employees who are neither a director nor chief BZHBFRWT

executive of the Company are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Equity-settled share-based
expense

e REMEF 2,301 2,256
RIRAEFET SR
114 105
A E RN AERFAX
1,566 1,516

3,981 3,877
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees whose

fRE SRR MR ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

EERTETHRASHM(E)

) TEBEHFMES(Z)

FEFRIEERITERA B M H B
NFUTHENESHTHER ZA

remuneration fell within the following bands is as g
follows:
Number of employees
BEAH
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 8LE
3,000,000 7T 1 1
3 &)
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FBHEX

PRC income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
(2021: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in PRC during the year.

FREASHRIIEFEFRNEPREENGEE
BEREM - AR R25% (20214 : 25%)
VERE -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HiiE AR¥T R ARBTT

Current income tax BIERFTIS 34,946 29,519
Deferred income tax EEPTSHL 32 (14,705) 8,133
Tax charge for the year FRBIBR 20,241 37,652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to
profit before tax at PRC statutory income tax rate and
the income tax charge at the Group’s effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows:

FieBimE (4)

BPBATEMB R XA EERRERH AT
MEBHRFAX  BRAKENERMFAS
BERFENAERAS ZERAT

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T T ARBTT
Profit before tax B B A& 175,899 386,054
At PRC statutory tax rate of 25% BHREEERER25%FE
IR (i) 43,975 96,514
Effect of tax rate differences MEZENTE (i) (23,165) (59,602)
Tax effect of share of profits of an  JE{h—FKEE & A B1H FI &Y
associate s -2 (2,159) (4,590)
Tax effect of disposal on an HEREE A RIMIEE
investment in an associate M E = (165)
Tax effect of super deduction T 5 S BB R N M B S
of research and development o
expenses (1,861) (1,633)
Tax effect of non-deductible TAMBRAZ OB G TR
expenses 459 1,078
Tax losses utilised from previous &) A LT B e R TE B 18
periods (118) (103)
Tax losses not recognised RERHBIEE 18 106 118
Withholding income tax on earnings Z&|HFEHIATER 2,654 6,035
Temporary differences utilised from  # LA B3 &) A &9 & B
previous periods Gt 350 -
Tax charge for the year at the RERBREFENF AR
effective rate ST 20,241 37,652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to

profit before tax at PRC statutory income tax rate and

the income tax charge at the Group’s effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows: (Continued)

(1)

The Company and CBEE were incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, respectively. Both entities
did not have tax assessable profits in the Cayman
Islands, BVI or other jurisdiction during the reporting

period.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT
Law’) effective on 1 January 2008, Beijing Boqi
obtained a "High and New Technology Enterprise” (the
"HNTE’) certificate in 2008 which Beijing Bogi was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2008
to 2010 and could be re-applied every three years,;
the current active HNTE certificate is effective until
December 2023.

In October 2015, Hejin Boqi obtained the approval
for being designated as the HNTE for the year ended
31 December 2015 which Hejin Bogi was entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017 and
could be re-applied every three years, the current
active HNTE certificate is effective until December
2024.

In November 2016, Jinggangshan Bogi obtained the
approval for being designated as the HNTE for the year
ended 31 December 2016 which entitled Jinggangshan
Bogi to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2016 to 2018
and could be re-applied every three years, and the
current active HNTE certificate is effective date until
November 2025.

In December 2017, Puzhou Boqi obtained the approval,
by which the desulfurization program in Puzhou Boqi
was fully exempted from income tax for three years
starting from 2017, and thereafter will be entitled to a

three-year preferential rate of 12.5%.

e SRR AL ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BILEFE

BPBAEMB R XA EERRERH AT
MEBHRFAX  BRAKENERMFAS
BMEFENAERAZERAT  (£)

AARFRCBEED IR S H B REE
BLXHBIAMKL - REZH  ZE5E
BRASHE  EBEELFEXAMA]
JE RN I E R B 5 P o

RIFR20084F 1 A1 AL 1 AT1Z
FE([LRFEBZE])  AREFZR
2008 F {7 [m ATt ([BH#E
B ) RE - b R FF IR 2008
FR2010FHZH15% ) EEHFA
A EfE = FEFHGE - HATEE =T
RNt R RE BB L 2023F 124 »

R2015F 104 » A EEEGFREHX -
REBEZE2016F12A31HILFELAE
BRETFEMEE - W EE T EUR
2015F 22017 E /2 H15%H7 BB
KAR = FEFHE B AN
BRI E R EE U E2024F 12
H o

R20164F 118 + H 1 18 2 BiZHE
X REFE2016F 12831 HILFES
B BEAT M E - HR L1 I
R2016 FZ2018F ZH 15% Hi BB
K AR = FEFHE B ATERA
BRI F R B THE2025F 11
ﬁ °

R2017F 128 » HEMEEFREHX -
HENE TR EI 2017 FZE S
HM=FEHER  RAE=FrZH
12.5% BB EHE -

323



324

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEI#EZRR (EKR) ERLQF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILEE

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to
profit before tax at PRC statutory income tax rate and
the income tax charge at the Group’s effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows: (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Changzhi Bogi obtained the approval, by which the
water treatment program was fully exempted from
income tax for three years starting from 2018, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In January 2019, Huainan Boqi obtained the approval,
by which its desulfurization program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2019, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In May 2019, Laibin Bogi obtained the approval, by
which the desulfurization program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2019, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In January 2020, Changjizhou Boqi obtained the
approval, by which the desulfurization program was
fully exempted from income tax for three years starting
from 2020, and thereafter will be entitled to a three-year

preferential rate of 12.5%.

Qinghai Boqi obtained the approval, whereby the
industrial solid waste utilisation and disposal project
and hazardous waste utilisation and disposal project in
Qinghai Boqi were entitled a full exemption of income
tax for three years starting from 2018, and preferential

rate of 12.5% for three years thereatfter.

Handan Boqi obtained the approval, by which the
environmental protection program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2022, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

BPBATEMB R XA EERRERH AT
MEBHRFAX  BRAKENERMFAS
BERFENAERAZERAT : (£)

(%)

BB REERRIE B 5 M5 KGR
Bt BIE2018F FHERR = F A28
HER  RE=FAZH12.5%4EF
B -

R2019F 15 - EHE & EHIREHE
A E B EE2019F FH 2
ZFRENER  RE=FAZFH
12.5%HEBRHE -

R2019F5H - KEFZERRKEE
AR B EE2019F FH 2
ZFRENER RE=FAZFH
12.5%HERHFE -

H2020F 15 BEMBZEMREF
M IE & B IR F B E B H2020F FH
BH=FHEHNER AE=F1Z
B125%AEEHF

BB 1B 5 B B A 18 7 0 T R Bl
HBREERAREEFHAREERAH
2018FEZFRM=F I ZHAIER -
BE=FAZH125%0EEHE

HE #5183 25 EH R IR (R 5T B 5 2022 F =
BERY=FAEHaER R =Fr
ZE12.5%H1BFRFHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

11. DIVIDENDS 11. KA
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Proposed Final — HK3.00 cents (2021: ##RAKHKE — Sl E B
HK7.40 cents) per ordinary share 3.00/81l (20214 : 7.40%8
ili) 26,542 63,821

AERZBRAMRBBAFTARABRRERN
BRITHBRRBEREG LI -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BARZEREZZEAEGERE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT F

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per ERERREFEFNDBEAT ER G

share are based on:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, used in the

27
FEESREAR S EERTE
(EENSINCIE S 6l S

basic/diluted earnings per share A AL
calculation 151,749 348,239
Number of shares
REEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary TR B RERZ R A
shares in issue during the year FREBEITE B INE
used in the basic earnings per share T8k
calculation 996,690,125 995,113,089
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEn 2 — TmR g
number of ordinary shares 8
Award Share Scheme Petn 22D =t & 4,170,911 5,584,290
Share Option Scheme FEARAEET & - 169,196

1,000,861,036 1,000,866,575
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31ALLFE

Fixtures
Owned  Leasehold Leased Motor and Construction
properties lands  properties vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BENE  AEtw  HENE RE RERRE  REIR gt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR
CosT B
At 1 January 2021 R202151B1R 143798 17894 40,528 18698 244823 10354 476,09
Acquisition of a subsidiary (nofe 38)  WEMBAE (H:238) 80,911 1833 - 1263 10,451 19,500 113,958
Additions TE = = = 1,245 145% 109906 125683
Other decrease Ry - - - - (12,762) = (12,762)
Disposals i - = S (808) (7,799) = (8,607)
At 31 December 2021 20218124318 224,709 19727 40,528 0398 249245 139760 694,367
Additions T2 - = = 351 12926 71,880 85,157
Transfer g 38,123 = = = 7725 (115381) S
Other decrease Kt (5,369) = = = = = (5,369)
Disposals HE - - - (1,566) (4.120) = (5,686)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 257,463 19,727 40,528 19,183 3352309 96,259 768,469
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ EHFEREE

AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2021 202151418 (13,386) (669) (2757)  (13721)  (44,076) = (74,609)
Charge for the year ERyit (8,202) (51) (4,006) (2,105 (21,256) = (35,620)
Impairment HE - - - = (479) s (479)
Elimination on disposals it BB 189 - - 768 5,651 - 6,608
At 31 December 2021 2021512318 (21,399) (720) (6763)  (15058)  (60,160) - (104,100)
Charge for the year ERgif (7,152) (395) (4,003) (872)  (30,163) = (42,585)
Elimination on disposals it SR - - - 1483 4,082 - 5,56
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 (28,551) (1,115)  (10,766)  (14,447)  (86,241) - (141,120)
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2022 R2022512831R 228,912 18,612 29,762 4736 249,068 96,259 627,349
At 31 December 2021 2021512318 203,310 19,007 33,765 5340 180085 139760 590,67
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

RMB’000
ARETT
COST A
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, and R2021%F181H ~ 2021F12A31B K
31 December 2022 202212 A31H 20,871
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R E
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1/81H (9,792)
Provided for the year FARE (808)
At 31 December 2021 2021812831 H (10,600)
Provided for the year FAEE (644)
At 31 December 2022 7"2022%12A31H (11,244)
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12H31H 9,627
At 31 December 2021 2021812 531 H 10,271

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 15 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's investment
properties with a carrying value of RMB8,240,000 were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 31).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2022 was RMB58,540,000 (2021:
RMB49,399,000) which was determined by the Directors
by using the direct comparison method based on
observable market transaction prices of properties in
similar locations. The fair value hierarchy is level 2. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

REMEDRELEHERTE=S A
BRI B A 7 R M 515 -

R2022%F12A31H  AEERKREEAA
R¥8,240,000tREMECEA - 1E
BAREBERBITEENER (HFE31) -

R2022F12A31H - REEREWED
NABEEAARKES8,540,0007T (2021
F . AR#49,399,0007T)  HEE®IB
F FAE 5 L BUE IR IR AL R AR DA o 2 60 4 %
WA EBEMIERHERETE - AAEES
MABEZR - NEFTZENENAAEE
B ZE5WErse kaERAsAHEA
WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold lands and leased properties used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold lands from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leased
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and
10 years. The lease contracts of buildings include

FEBEREEA

AEERELEETERANZHEEEL R
HEWETEHESY - REBALIELE
SNFARETBSHE L - HHAR50
F MRBZFLHEENGR  HES
BIIXA3E - HEYMEOEH KA1
E10F - BFNHESN BB RE L
RUBEEHE - —RME - ANEERR G HE
EEERASEBIINEER DM -

extension and termination options. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

RAEEE

EREEEFAZEMBNRNEKA
MImE - BERSRE] AKH
MEMEEERTENRFAZSH LI

amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and N

(a) Right-of-use assets (a)

Right-of-use assets are included in “Property,
plant and equipment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The carrying

the movements during the year are as follows:

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HEL i HEWME st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFTT AREBTT ARETT
As at 1 January 2021 7202151 81H 17,225 37,771 54,996
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEH B A A 1,833 = 1,833
Depreciation charge WERX (51) (4,006) (4,057)

As at 31 December 2021 120215128318

and 1 January 2022 }2022F181H 19,007 33,765 52,772
Depreciation charge WERX (395) (4,003) (4,398)
As at 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H 18,612 29,762 48,374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE&E (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERABEA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEAENERAEIRFANZEZHN
movements during the year are as follows: S &

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1TENEREE 38,284 37,750
Accretion of interest recognised FRNERHF BIEE

during the year 2,059 2,256
Payments (NEN (1,722) (1,722)
Carrying amount at 31 December  ®12 831 HRRMEE 38,621 38,284
Current portion BIEREL 5 3,529 3,264
Non-current portion JEBNHEREL 2 35,092 35,020
38,621 38,284

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEABENIH AT TP B ERERNT46

disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements. " o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE(#)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERABA(E)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) HERBFREEEZGZEHEUT -

relation to leases are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) ME B EHN & (H1:18) 2,059 2,256
Depreciation charge of right-of-use EREBEMTERS
assets 4,398 4,057

Expense relating to short-term EREAEENRE
leases (included in cost of sales  (FFASHE RARTEAA)
and services) 2,836 2,159

Total amount recognised in profit  7E 1Bz R FERH 50

or loss 9,293 8,472
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (d) HEWEELTHEBEHNBEREN

in note 39(c) to the financial statements. i#39(c) 5 5E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

LEASES (Continued) 15. MHE (&)
The Group as a lessor TEBEAEBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note AEBBESCEHELCHEREEREY
14) of commercial properties under operating lease ¥ (3E14) - HEBRR—REKBRLX
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require HIRFES - WHRTARBERMISKLE
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide HEHES AR - AEEFAERNES I
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then ABANRET67,0007T (20214 : ARK
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised 582,0007T) °
by the Group during the year was RMB767,000 (2021:
RMB582,000).
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted minimum lease M2022F12 A31H » NEBERARERH
payments receivable by the Group in future periods BB REGERERERF RN R
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants AR ERSARAT
are as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Within one year —FA - -
GOODWILL 16. BHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1B/EREE 147,957 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) WS B A/ (A77#38) - 147,957
Impairment during the year FARE (141,469) =
Carrying amount at 31 December P12 31 BMEEEE 6,488 147,957
Cost B AR 147,957 147,957
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (141,469) =
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31 BREREE 6,488 147,957
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In 2021, Beijing Bogi (the “acquirer”), a subsidiary of
the Group, acquired a 95% equity interest in Qinghai
Bogi (the “acquiree”). The business acquisition gave
rise to goodwill of RMB147,957,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the CGU of Qinghai Bogi for impairment
testing.

On 12 July 2022, Opinions on Strengthening
Environmental Supervision on Strict Prohibition of
Cross-Province Hazardous Waste Transfer for Disposal
KEAREREREYBEAE A AREE —TRICREEEN
& 7)) was issued by the Qinghai Province People’s
Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-province
transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous waste for
incineration and landfill disposal. Considered that
the specific assumptions adopted for the valuation
of the entire interest in Qinghai Bogi as at 30 June
2021 had changed significantly, the Directors and
the original shareholder of Qinghai Bogi agreed to
renegotiate and enter into the supplemental agreements
to revise the total consideration for the entire equity
interests of Qinghai Bogi from RMB230,000,000 to
RMB50,500,000. Due to the expected decline in future
revenue of Qinghai Bogi, a provision for impairment of
RMB141,469,000 was made this year.

The recoverable amount of Qinghai Bogi has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13.00% (2021: 12.76%).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

R2021% - ARENKE AR REE
(TWEFHEESEES ([REEBS D)
MO5% g - EBAHELBREARE
147,957,0007T °

B R E R

BREGKAHRSNEHECSHIEEFTEE
TR EELBMIAEITRER R -

R2022F 78128 - 58E ARBTE
B(ERBREERENBEEEALE#E—
PEREBRBEENER)  BREBEEE
TR EREREDRIERBEREREE - Z&
I E BT HERN202146 A30
HREEMEANEBRRCEETAE
B E=UEEETNRARRRAESEH
ERTFI VTS BEEETE R
mHRREHR ARK230,000,0007TIE5]
Z AR#50,500,0007T - AR AT EE
ARREWER LD ERFAEL AR
141,469,000 7T HY BB S -

SEETNAIRESENERAERSRE
BEEMAENAFHUBREESENESR
EERAETFEREEHEMNEST - EHA
RBREERAABATAIIE X A13.00%
(20214F :12.76%) °
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Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use of

calculation as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December

2021. The following describes the key assumptions,

based on which management prepared cash flow

projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

a)

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin
achieved in prior historical years, adjusted for the
expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

Disposal volume — The basis used to determine
the disposal volume is the disposal volume in
prior historical years, adjusted by expected
growth rate taking into account the industry
growth rate, past experience and the medium or
long-term growth target of the CGU.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market

development of hazardous and solid waste treatment/

disposal business, discount rates and disposal volume

are consistent with external information sources.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

BERENR(E)

K2022F 12431 A %2021412A31H
ETHEREEHETEARLERR - &
BEMKRAAGRRE 2R ERIAET
EEREAGNEZERGANT

a) FEEMNXR-RAUBEIEKEERE
ENEMEEZEERBEFEM
ZRFHENE (RBEHAMEHN
E1EHE) -

b) RMEX-FAEANEHAMEEX
Wi AR B3R & E A BB R E
MRS TR

c) WEE-ArEELEENEEs
BEFEMHES  BEHRTE
BEE  BEERRRSEE B
e RS A R AR AT TE
(R -

PEZCEEREREXGHMSEE -
MERRHEENT ERR ZBERING
BRARARTT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

Patents and Customer  Concession
Software  trademarks  relationship arrangements Total
g4 ERREE EFEE BEgeEd @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTL AREFTL AREFT ARETTL
COST AR
At 1 January 2021 1202151 A1H 17,005 28,774 - 960,094 1,005,873
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) NG
(H£38) - = 35,400 = 35,400
Additions RE 1,179 = = 28,065 29,244
Transferred to the non-current assets ~ EEAZFRHEE - - - (74,554) (74,554)
Disposals & - - = (4,253) (4,253)
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12 4318 18,184 28,774 35,400 909,352 991,710
Additions NE 1,321 = = 24,458 25,779
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12 4318 19,505 28,774 35,400 933,810 1,017,489
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R BH
At 1 January 2021 1202151 A1H (13,760) (28,774) = (265,683) (308,217)
Charge for the year FRYH (1,341) = (590) (55,238) (57,169)
Transferred to the non-current assets ~ EREERHEE = = = 21430 21,430
Disposals & - - - 2,960 2,960
At 31 December 2021 M2021E12431R (15,101) (28,774) (590) (296,531) (340,996)
Charge for the year FATH (1,297) = (4,425) (66,362) (72,084)
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 (16,398) (28,774) (5,015) (362,893) (413,080)
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ZiRE
At 1 January 2021 and R20211A1B R
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H - - - - -
Impairment during the year FRRE - = (27,612) = (27,612)
At 31 December 2022 #2022E12831R - - (27,612) - (27,612)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 120225123318 3,107 = 2,773 570,917 576,797
At 31 December 2021 M2021E12431R 3,083 = 34,810 612,821 650,714
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The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain power plants in
PRC on a BOT basis in respect of its desulfurization
and denitrification construction and maintenance
services. Pursuant to the service concession
arrangement contracts, the Group (i) is responsible for
the construction of the desulfurization and denitrification
facilities; (ii) has the contractual obligations to maintain
the infrastructures at a specified level of serviceability;
and (iii) is entitled to operate the facilities upon
completion for a specified concession period from 15
to 20 years by receiving the monthly fees, which are
determined by on-grid tariff subsidies on a per kilowatt
hour basis for power generated by the power plant
and settled with the customers on a monthly basis. The
Group will not hold any residual interest in the facilities
upon expiration of the concession period.

As such, these contracts are accounted for as service
concession arrangements and intangible assets were
recognised upon the completion of construction at
the amounts equal to stand-alone selling price for the
provision of construction service.

On 12 July 2022, Opinions on Strengthening
Environmental Supervision on Strict Prohibition of
Cross-Province Hazardous Waste Transfer for Disposal
KEAREREREMBEAE A NREE —FPRICRBEEN
E5)) was issued by the Qinghai Province People's
Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-
province transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous
waste for incineration and landfill disposal. Therefore,
the customer relationship is indicated to be impaired.
Due to the expected decline in future revenue of
customer relationship, a provision for impairment of
RMB27,612,000 was made this year.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

AREEIHEBOTEEGER G ML TENR
RIS TEMET L BRBITTL
R BERBHTLERHESYH K
SE()BERERT RBAERME (i) FFE
REERERBSKEHEEERLI NS
KET  R(ii)BERTREN15E204E
AR ERTEERERTARNERL
e - mE AU B R T 5B ERRAT
BRENRSTER EHAEERNET - I
BRARRFPHA#HE - AEBERFEEHE
MIET BB RBEAAR TR

At - %F A IR TREERARIIER
BRIRELHREREE - YIRASFN
REZERBOBL L EBRIER

R2022F7 4120 A ARBTHIE
(ARBREEREYEEAEAREE—F
BIELRBEEMNER) BEBELEEET
e ERENIICRIEEES - Bt

EFPBEERENRELIRRE - BN TEEHRM
BEFBRELENRREZRD ERFA
e AR 27 612,000 T RIFE B -
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In June 2017, the Group entered into a service
concession arrangement with a state-owned power
plant. Through the arrangement, the Group is involved
as an operator (i) paying a specific amount for
purchasing the relevant infrastructure for operation
under the service concession arrangement; (ii) using
the existing infrastructure and upgrading the acquired
facilities for the provision of services under the service
concession arrangement; and (iii) operating and
maintaining the infrastructure for the period of 15 years
(the “Service Concession Period”), and the Group will
be paid for its services over the Service Concession
Period at prices stipulated through a pricing
mechanism. The Group is entitled to use all of the
related infrastructure, however, the power plant, as the
grantor, will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure. The
construction and upgrade of this service concession
arrangement have been fully completed in December
2018.

The service fee is charged by reference to on-grid tariff
subsidies determined on a per kilowatt hour basis as
set out in the service concession agreement. However,
the Group is entitled to a minimum guaranteed service
charge, which is calculated based on the minimum
guaranteed on-grid tariff per year and the price agreed
in the service concession agreement. Accordingly, the
receivables under service concession arrangement
was recognised based on the consideration paid by
the Group upon the completion of the construction or
upgrade of the infrastructure.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2017566 A - A& B E— A SHE]
T RBFITEERE - BRZEHE A%
BLELRE SN2 E() B ERBREAL
ERPIE MBI RE R
T2 (IVERAEEBREEMREULR
BUSFTUUE R IE - MR IRB T EE R
BB THR » AR (i) 28 R #5187
EMmEISTF ((RESTL&EH]) -
MAREFR RS EEHAZREAE
HORBIEBIATEERBIFTEIANERE
EXERE o AREEE B EE AT EERERR
M - MEERRAG AR T A F S 16348 A
SEANEAERRBRENREEHE
ZRBFTCERENEERRERZR
2018 F 12 AZHEFEM °

RSB IHERERRIGHFITCEREATET
NS TERNEESEN EREEEK
o Rifl - AEEHEZAKKERRE
ER MZERNBRESFREERLP
BERRBHTCEHAMREHNEE
B Al BB CERTHENEKRIE
REKER R EEEKSER A EBATR
RE®ER -
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In July 2022, the Group entered into a service
concession arrangement with Tianjin Iron Plant. Through
the arrangement, the Group is involved as an operator
(i) paying a specific amount for construction and
purchasing the relevant infrastructure for operation
under the service concession arrangement; (ii) using
the existing infrastructure and upgrading the acquired
facilities for the provision of services under the service
concession arrangement; and (iii) operating and
maintaining the infrastructure for the period of 10 years
(the “Service Concession Period”), and the Group will
be paid for its services over the Service Concession
Period at prices stipulated through a pricing
mechanism. The Group is entitled to use all of the
related infrastructure, however, Tianjin Iron Plant, as the
grantor, will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure. The
construction of this service concession arrangement
has been fully completed in 2022.

The service fee is charged by reference to an agreed
price determined on a per kilowatt hour basis as set
out in the service concession agreement. However,
the Group is entitled to a minimum guaranteed
service charge, which is calculated based on the
minimum guaranteed power generation per year
and the price agreed in the service concession
agreement. Accordingly, the receivables under service
concession arrangement were recognised based on the
consideration paid by the Group upon the completion of
the construction or upgrade of the infrastructure.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

R2022%F7H - AEEEXFEHBR] AR
BRI L BULAREESELE()
RBIRFSHELLERMBEREE
SHRBEERREN XN EFESE : (i) E
FAER A B R T AR P EE B AR M A LR
HEIRMB LR TORS - R(>i) R
10 B ([RBISFFH ) ELMEER
R - MARE R EEEEBRNIERTE
ERRS R RENREES N E
- REBEBEERMAERBERRE -
BRFHB ((ERERTA) BHEH M B A
SENBERREAIRENREHEE - R
BT RETHENER TIREN2022F 280
SERK °

R B IRIBERG A ERRATSEATT
ERESEEBTNHEER MUK - A
o AEEARRERERERGER -
ERESFRERZZEERRBRER
BiHZEABTENERSE - Bt - REH
AARERPFR T RUGAER R TR HE
R R T AR B AR IR AN R 1B P S A 0 (R (B
BAFR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

18. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 18. BB iEH&Ke R ETHNERIZIE

ARRANGEMENT (Continued) (#)
The receivables under service concession arrangement HEMRENKERSEAEE ZRBE
arose from the minimum service charge guaranteed by ST PFIE TR EIGRIAE T ¢

the power plant was as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T

Current portion BIERER 5> 49,762 24,865
Non-current portion FEBNEAER 492,005 316,691
541,767 341,556
Expected collection schedule is TERTW RO T -
analysed as follows:
Within one year —FR 49,762 24,865
More than one year, but not more —F LA ETBIBRE
than two years 43,960 24,079
More than two years but not more MELA BT BIBRF
than five years 149,153 81,839
More than five years FFENE 298,892 210,773
541,767 341,556
The Group accounts for the receivables under service RNEE SRS IFET L R P T EYRIE
concession arrangement based on the present value ERBETKEHNEAFERERBE
of the estimated annual minimum service charge in MRERAERGNTEESNEARE R
the Service Concession Period by applying an implied DETERBEEFIR6.37% K%6.15% A8 °

interest rate of 6.37% and 6.15% which are calculated
based on the significant financing component implied in
the contract.
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The grantor under service concession arrangement is
a state-owned power plant in which the default risk is
generally perceived to be low. The Directors consider
that there was no significant change in credit risk
during the year ended 31 December 2022, and thus
measure the loss allowance for receivables under
service concession arrangement at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL, which is RMB5,102,000 (2021:
RMB6,338,000). While the Company considers the
credit risk is low, the collection of receivables under
service concession arrangement is closely monitored
by the Company in order to minimise any credit risk
associated with the receivables.

Movement in 12-month ECL that has been recognised
for receivables under service concession arrangement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

RBFTEELRHBTIHNRTARBELNR

SHREERBBRENBEEER - EFR
B BE2022F12A31HLFENEE
EIwEERNEE Bt REFTL
BB THEREEBBETRER
12 AEHEEEBEENSRE  IARK
5,102,0007T (20214 : AR #6,338,000
L) c BEARARBEERABRERE @ &
ARAIEYERRBFTCERTHE TR
FE &9 MRS S AR R A fr] ER R U SR IB R
HREERRE -

REZE2022F K2021F12HA31H Jt¢
& RS ELTHE T E W
RZ12EAEHEERBLT -

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2021 120211 H1H 3,959
Impairment of receivables under service Pl 75 45 B A8 S 2o R IE T 19 JE WRIB DR E

concession arrangement 2,379

At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 72021412 A31H &2022F1A1H 6,338
Reverse of Impairment of receivables under FRFEHFFFEE 2 HEA T B JE UK IER (B

service concession arrangement = (1,236)

At 31 December 2022 M2022F12831H 5,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost of investment in an associate R &R RIS E R A 33,000 33,000

Share of profit of an associate, net of D EEEE R E)E T
dividend received (BREWAR E.) 30,895 47,101
63,895 80,101

Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as AEEEBHERRMFEOT
follows:
Percentage of
Place of ownership
Particulars incorporation/ interest
of issued registration and attributable Principal
Name shares held business to the Group activity
HEMRL, rEEEN
a8 BRECRITROFE AMREXBHE FEEERAEIHL TEEK
2021
20214

Guo Neng Long Yuan Bogi  Registered capital of PRC/ 30 30 Operation of

Environmental Technology RMB1 each
(Han Chuan) Co., Ltd.
(“Han Chuan Long Yuan’,
formerly known as Han
Chuan Long Yuan Boqi
Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd.)

ReRERIE HIRRRI R OF
N BR A (EIEE
R RITREE) RIS S
RARBMKEERAA)

A
BRARKT

Mainland China

E o E AR

environmental
protection facilities

RERIRRIE

The shareholdings of the associate is held through a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method

in the consolidated financial statements.

BEE
Fo 8 2
528 2

°
iR

REANBRETVBEBARE —HE2E

RESEEI
BIRGRAMBRERTFEMREDZEA
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fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. REEQATINKRE (&)

The summarised financial information in respect of a FEBENTE)|FRA B E R i an
material associate, Han Chuan Long Yuan, is set out ™
below:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Total assets BB E 306,516 311,735
Total liabilities wmaeE (93,533) (44,732)
Net assets BEFE 212,983 267,003
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest ERINCSEN S N o i
in the associate: ZHER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REERFBHEADL 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment HERBE 63,895 80,101
Revenue Wz 233,522 252,753
Profit and total comprehensive income
WiaF| k2 E 85
for the year FRaHEEE A 47,983 102,004
Dividend received from the associate
FRBEEE R FERARE
during the year rEs 30,601 17,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

20.

21.

22.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

20.

BEERBRAABEFSAHMZEKSE

HRERE

2022
20224

RMB’000
ARBT R

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
Beijing Ruichuchuangyuan Technology

Center (Limited Partnership)

FEMBRERE - BAR(EE

Beijing

Ruichuchuangyuan
Technology Center

(Limited Partnership) 5,166

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARBT T

The above equity investment was irrevocably

HAAEER A LRREBRELE -

R EER

designated at fair value through other comprehensive I 2 % & R ] B[O 35 T AR
income as the Group considers this investment to be AHMEEWA -
strategic in nature.
INVENTORIES 21. ®&
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Equipment, supplies and spare parts B ME REH 34,086 30,696
Allowance for inventories GERE (957) (1,147)
33,129 29,549
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, EBEZRERWIRIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
Trade receivables 2 Z WA 918,149 921,266
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (46,028) (35,846)
872,121 885,420
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The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 90
days which are agreed with each of its trade customers.
The extension of credit periods to the customers may
be granted on a discretionary basis by considering
customer type, the current creditworthiness and the
customer’s financial condition and payment history with
the Group.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

AEE-RELNEPEEHNFI0E0
B HREEZEEZEFHE - AKEZE
BEPZER - RBAEBRMBHOR - K
REEREE 2 BENFRLEMRBRE
FRETEREEDR -

R ERRRIFET BB RSB B 1R 5
BB SRR Rk DT

2021

20214

RMB’000

ARETTT

1to 90 days 1£90H 420,120 497,717
91 to 180 days 912 180H 110,363 107,758
181 to 365 days 181£365H 74,948 140,689
1to 2 years 1224 203,426 96,172
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 45,089 23,470
Over 3 years BiE3F 18,175 19,614
872,121 885,420

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB444,830,000 (2021:
RMB368,957,000) which are past due for more than
90 days and are not considered as in default because
these customers are sizeable power plant, state-owned
or listed companies with strong financial position. The
Directors consider the trade receivables to be in default
when the debtors do not repay any trade receivables
through the Group has pursued for several times,
which indicates the Group may not collect these trade
receivables.

MR2022%F12A31H8  BERAEE
ESRBFBEBLEHRNABREREAR
#444,830,0007T (202145 : ARH
368,957,0007T) HIEIE ARG - B 8 B
BOOHM T HRAEELN  REARELR
FAEBREMNER LRI BEHKRNER
B LTRF - BEERA TAEED%S
REREFMEBANKEZTWESE
WHIE  BRAEBAMUAINEZEES
EWHEBEBOBRT ZEESEWHRIER
WIRBEL -
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As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB49,909,000 (2021:
RMB50,903,000) which are past due for more than 90
days and are considered as in default. The Directors
measure the expected credit losses for these balances
separately and the loss allowance of RMB23,093,000
(2021: RMB20,519,000) was recognised.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

MR2022F 128318 ' BENAEE
BZRBFBEEGANAEBEREAR
#49,909,0007C (20214F : AR
50,903,0007T) WEF AR - 2@ HiER
BOOHMERBEEY - EEMZSEAH
BUTERAEEEBE  WORRAEER
AR 23,093,0007T (20214 : AR
20,519,0007T) °

AR B L L F A AR A R R

BoRIGRRERBREEEBMT

2021

20214

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

At beginning of year FH) 35,846 35,639
Allowance for trade receivables B S EIGRIE R 11,188 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1 )=PNG] - 7,273
Reversal of impairment losses REE R = (5,382)
Write-off as uncollectible YE A7 m] W [ o Hift 85 (1,006) (1,684)
At end of year FR 46,028 35,846

The increase in allowance was mainly due to the
increase in long-aged of trade receivables during the
year (2021: increase of allowance was mainly due to
the acquisition of a subsidiary, resulting in the increase
allowance for trade receivables with an amount of
RMB?7,273,000 during the year).

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

BEENEZEENFTFRNESRIGENE
HABR A1 N (20214F « BB IMNEEHR
FRKRB-RHMBLAR  EHE 5 ERK
TH RIS I AR 7 273,0007T) °

RERESAHRBBEREETRED
i U EBEHEEER - BEXER
AAHUEBEBREANZEETF D AR
HBLH B BT - et B RR B X i 4E
R EEREMMBRSEHAISHERB
EEM B AT B R AR AR I T8 B
RERAEEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

22.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

2

e B RR M (8D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

EE L e

TRBJIERRBEEAFEAKEE SR
WM EE R A B

022 2021

20224 20214
Gross
carrying

amount
HAREE
RMB’000
ARBTR

Individual evaluation of

ERFFETRBEREER

Expected Gross  Expected
credit carrying credit
losses amount losses

bl | AREE BHEEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

N Ee | ARBTT ARE®TT

expected credit losses 49,909 23,093 50,903 20,519
Assessment of expected EERBAA TN
credit losses by credit TEEEEE1E
risk portfolio 868,240 22,935 870,363 15,327
918,149 46,028 921,266 35,846
As at 31 December 2022 120225124318 Ageing
iR
Less than
1year 1to2years 2to3years Over3 years
SME 122% 223% 3FENL
Expected credit loss rate BEEEREX 0.78% 4.43% 13.63% 35.06%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  &B@EME (ARETT) 610,172 199,462 52,202 6,404 868,240
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEFE (ARETT) 4,742 8,835 7,113 2,245 22,935
As at 31 December 2021 20215123318 Ageing
i
Less than
Tyear  1to2years  2to3years  Over3years Total
SIE 1526 2E3E 3ELE &5t
Expected credit loss rate BEEEREX 0.74% 4.75% 14.67% 51.01%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) & @EE (ARETT) 751,695 100,964 11,080 6,624 870,363
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEERSE(ARETTL) 5,531 4792 1,625 3,379 15,327

345



346)

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEHFERF (ZEKR) GRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FEfFIE  RE&RHMEWKIE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Prepaid value added tax FEfHGER 69,018 80,792
Prepayments TETFRIA 33,937 31,339
Other receivables H b eI SRR 120,772 42,993
Prepaid income tax TR ETISHE 40 4,365
223,767 159,489
Less: impairment losses on other W A EREIEREEE
receivables (5,821) (2,063)
217,946 157,426

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with
suppliers. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering expected credit losses,
which are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 December
2022 was 4.80% (2021: 4.79%).

HMERRIE X ZEFREHRERNIR
T REEREBHEREREHEE
BIEAETRES N  MBEHEEESR
NEAZEAEBEBRTBBRIENEIER
FOEEME c BREEDEAR - UIRBR
IR B AR T I 3 R 2R A AR R A TR (40
) > R2022F 12 A31 HEAMEIEBR A
4.80% (20214 1 4.79%) °
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The Group has rights to considerations from customers
for the provision of construction, operation and
maintenance services. Contract assets arise when the
Group has rights to considerations for completion of
such services and not yet billed under the relevant
contracts, and their rights are conditioned on factors
other than passage of time. Any amount previously
recognised as contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.
Remaining rights and performance obligations in a
particular contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract
liability.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to considerations for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s
future performance. Usually, the contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically reclassifies contract
assets to trade receivables on the date of issue of
invoice or billing with the customers when such right
of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

AEBARMRERTRE - 28 MRS
AEFKEAKE SHNEERASEARE
SEXRBRREE R RRERABEAOKE
WERNR B EL - M HEENABZRRER
AN R FE B IGMT - AR BENE
ERE R RN A B A A RIS 88
BRESRKFOR - ERA AR T
MEBHNEERFRELEARLZINRE
MEEREBHERE-

BHMEETEMNASENE TKARK
BN TREDMKENEN  LIRRZF
BMAREERKHBITIERSENS - —
RS ANEERZSENERER
HREELSEHEKFR - AEE—8R
BHBEZANKETFFHERAY  NERX
5 W o] SRIAHE I IR BE 2 B R A 2 R SR AR
HE - BEHNEEENHDBEE HRUK
H o

31 December 1 January
2021 2021
20214 20214
12A31H 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Contract assets arising from WIS PR TS B 8

construction services BHEE

Current portion BNER 423,950 242,089 127,446
Non-current portion JEENHR 16,917 203,525 21,468
440,867 445,614 148,914
Impairment NERIE! (3,427) (3,279) (1,364)
437,440 442,335 147,550
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The decrease in 2022 was the result of the increase in
completion of rendering the installation services at the
end of the year (2021: The increase in 2021 was the
result of the increase in ongoing installation services at
the end of the year.).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, RMB 148,000
(2021: RMB1,915,000) was recognised as an allowance
for expected credit losses on contract assets. The
Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers
are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for contract assets in accordance with the simplified
approach set out in IFRS 9 is as follows:

At beginning of year F1
Impairment of contract assets, net

BRBEERETFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

R2022F G HEERL + TIARFRET
FR) 22 8 RIS AN (2021 4F © )R 2021 F &
WEEEM  THERFREFEETHR
ARG M) o

REE2022F12A31BLEEE - ARE
148,0007T (20214 : AR® 1,915,000
L) BRBEHNEENTHEHEESER
o AEEETFPOESBRAREERR
TER R M 2244 58 o

ERIEBR Y BHREER FEIHETH B
GHERBHEERRNPEREES
BEEWMT ¢

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARET T

3,279 1,364
148 1,915

At end of year FR

3,427 3,279

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets are
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract
assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets
are based on days past due of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

RE®REBHRAEFREETRED
i LA EBRHMEERR - fEANEE
EHEEERENBEXLIERINEANE
ENESREFRNEER - MEHRK
FRBRDLKEHERAEFE - ANEENBE
ENERAEABUBBRANZETF D
ERARRIM E B W TR A BEE - %
AERBRBENESR  BERERNR
SEMASNARBESMN - BRI R
ARRGERATBR AR R A SEEF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 24. BHREE(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TERETEARBERAERAEHENE
exposure on the Group’s contract assets using a EFERRNER

provision matrix:

2022 2021
20224 20214
Non- Non-
Current current Current current
portion portion portion portion

BNAAER D JRENFAEDD AL 31 ki)

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIE R 0.78% 0.78% 0.74% 0.74%
Gross carrying amount RERE(AE

(RMB’000) (AE®ETFT) 423,950 16,917 242,089 203,525
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE

(RMB’000) (AR®TIT) 3,296 131 1,781 1,498

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. BEAREBEFABZENEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT

Listed equity investments, at fair value IR ERE - A EE

China Risun Group Ltd. FEBMS EEBR A A 21,607 75,871
Global New Material International IRIRETM BIBR IR B R A A
Holdings Ltd. - 102,900
21,607 178,771
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~ HfbIEEMRE - AR BE
W-startech (Beijing) Environmental K2z (bR RB R
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAFA 3,054 =
24,661 178,771
The above listed equity investments were classified as R L EmRERE R EES - Bt
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were SDEARARBEFABZNESREE -
held for trading. Other unlisted equity investment represented EAb3E FT SIS SR EKEZ (b R)
investment in W-startech (Beijing) Environmental Technology EIERIMT AR A THIEE o

Co., Ltd. (B7k 22 (LR) BRI BRAR)).
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e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

26.

27.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 26. BRAAEBEFAHMZEWZNER
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TH
The amounts represent notes receivable. The Directors EHSBERKEE EZKERENE
recognised the notes receivable, with fixed rates and REISENERZERRAE AL EER
maturity date, as debt instrument at fair value through AHME2ERENERLE  REAFE
other comprehensive income, as they held these notes ZEZBENENAKEIRE RAE - EE
for the purpose of cash collection and discounting. BERKZENEREEBRERRBRRIE -
The Directors assessed the expected credit loss risk of FEZRAAEBHEEARNRITERER
notes receivable as low, mainly because the notes were EAHRBREIE -
secured by the drawer’s bank deposit and the default
risk was low.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 27. BHEeRESESEYRCHEHFETHENK
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK RIRITHEER
BALANCES
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Cash and bank balances e RIBITER 319,680 470,189
Time deposits E BN 181,074 14,778
500,754 484,967
Less: Pledged time deposits and bank & : 2K TEHER K
balances (note) R1THER (MFE) (98,266) (142,009)
Cash and cash equivalents ReReEEBY 402,488 342,958

Note: Pledged time deposits and bank balances represent
amounts held by banks, which are not available for
the Group’s use, as security for issuance of bills to
the Group’s suppliers, letters of credit and letters of
guarantee relating to the EPC contracts and the O&M
contracts signed with customers and lawsuit freezes
funds. Upon maturity of the letters of credit and letters
of guarantee, the deposits are released by the bank
and become available for general use by the Group
except the lawsuit freezes funds. Pledged bank
deposits of the Group carried interest at market rates
which ranging from 0.00% to 2.75% per annum as at
31 December 2022 (2021: from 0.00% to 2.75% per
annum).

Wiat - BEBEH LR RITERIEHRTI
BT AR EEE G - (ER3RFEE
REFZLHZE FHEPCE AL H
B RFAFEEDFITHEHESLIH
15 A R IEIR AT IEIE (RS 248 © fifls
M RIEREIF B - BRI 5 R
TR AT AR EE (BRFAREES
SN FBE—R % o R2022F 12 31
A XEBGEBFRTFXIETF
0.00%ZE2.75% (20214 : 7} F0.00%
22.75%) B)TTEFFIFEEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES (Continued)

27.

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

BeRkBESEEYRCEATHER
KR1THE

/43
v (15 /

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
The above balances denominated in: LA TS T EHE -
- RMB - AR¥ 439,345 468,896
— United States dollar (“USD”) —=ESTE 2,638 12,403
- Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") — BT 56,075 1,045
— Euro (“EUR") — BT 2,696 2,623
500,754 484,967

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash
held by the Group and bank balances that bear interest
at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.00% to 1.3%
per annum as at 31 December 2022 (2021: from 0.00%
to 1.15% per annum), with an original maturity of three
months or less.

ARETIEmABRREMEY - BIRE
o B K B Y SN I R ) R AR EE - BIER
NEEERTE  AEEAEAERELETT
SMNEEXBORITEARBABLREMBE

AEBBTEBKRASEEAEEZEN
PRI e RIRTTH S - 12022912 A 31
A ZSERITEHEBILNTT0.00%6E1.3%
(20215 : N F0.00%E1.15%) FIRTT
MHFREF S BERIBHEA=MEA KU
T o
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mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

28.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

28.

ESRARERESERE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMT T ARETTT
Bills payables EREE 287,494 303,862
Trade payables E HENFKRIE 846,746 832,474
Total Ry 1,134,240 1,136,336
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as B SN FIEREMNERN RS A RRE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice ZHAZERRTAT
date, is as follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR¥ETTT
1 1o 90 days 1290H 409,766 466,320
91 to 180 days 91&180H 265,540 277,646
181 to 365 days 181E365H 115,173 113,611
11to 2 years 1E24F 172,004 107,132
2 to 3 years 2E3F 57,154 71,447
Over 3 years HBiB3F 114,603 100,180
1,134,240 1,136,336
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are BB A - —f&IE30E90

normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

BEEEHEE -
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OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 29.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

HEARE  SREREFHAX

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary Uiz BE Bt BB N ) B At k8 - 103,266

Accrued payroll JEETTE 58,466 59,575

Accrued expenses FERTRX 110,890 57,878

Accrued liabilities (note) st E (M) 50,076 52,516

Other tax payables E A FRIE 78,251 51,865
Borrowings from non-controlling R B FEFEAR AR R A K

shareholders 6,100 29,700

Guarantee deposits from customers BREFWINRES 27,178 22,844

Others HAh, 10,534 14,556

341,495 392,200

Note:

Accrued liabilities mainly represent the disposal

expenses of the two landfills in Qinghai Boqgi which are

accounted at present value, and the expected loss for

onerous contracts recorded when it is probable that

total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

30.

31 December

Construction services

BIER

Wit - EEFTRETEEHE S GIE 5 mEEE
BRI (KB EALR)  URFEFEE
A9 B] BERE B AR & HI W a8 B ETIE & 4T

HITEEIET1E ©

BHAaE
31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
2022% 20214 20214
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT ARBTT
109,009 116,197 71,873

Contract liabilities represent advances received for
the provision of construction service. The decrease
in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the
increase of the completion of construction services (The
increase in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to

the increase of the construction services).

B R E1E 5L e AR E IR 5 P R By 2
e R022FAMAERYD - TEHRT
AR E RIS IZ AT B (R 2021 F R WA
RIRIN - ERMREERFIBINPIE) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. stES{ITREMMER
BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
R2022€E12 8310 2021812 A31H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity RMB’000 JEEECEEH)] Maturity ~ RMB'000
ERA= ERFIE
(%) AMA ARETR (%) F#A ARETR
Current b
Bank loans - unsecured RITES - EHA 3.70 2023 24,000 3.85 2022 2,000
Bank loans - secured WITER - BEA 2.80-3.95 2023 38,313 2.80-3.95 2022 64,009
Current portion of long-term REERMNALH
loans - secured - BHA 5.85-7.71 2023 29,795 7.82 2022 16,557
92,108 82,566
Non-current FEENHR
Bank loans - secured RITEZ - BHEA 3.95 2024 20,000 3.95 2023-2024 36,000
Loans from other financial KEEMBEREEN
institutions - secured EF-EHE 5.85-7.71 2024-2026 62,029 782 2023-2025 47,399
82,029 83,399
Total st 174,137 165,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: JEEEMIRITERNESY :
Within one year —&FR 62,313 66,009
In the second year FE_F 20,000 16,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEFERF
(BREEEME) - 20,000
82,313 102,009
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEMEMBER
Within one year —FR 29,795 16,557
In the second year EF 31,702 17,877
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FEFRF
(BREEEMFE) 30,327 29,522
91,824 63,956
174,137 165,965

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment

dates set out in the borrowing agreements.

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings from other
financial institutions of approximately RMB47,431,000
(2021: RMB63,956,000) were secured by Beijing
Bogi's equity interests in Jinggangshan Bogi and of
approximately RMB44,393,000 (2021: nil) were secured
by Beijing Boqi's equity interests in Handan Boqi.

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings from banks of
approximately RMB36,000,000 (2021: RMB50,000,000)
were secured by the Group’s investment properties.

AHIFRBESER B R GEAHEEER
B -

R2022F12A31H  KEEt & b
BEERHARE47,431,0007T (2021
F: AR¥63,956,0007T) it HEF R
FHELEFTOREERR  MHOARE
44,393,0007T (20214 : &) AL Ri1EH
FURER 1 2 B AR EVEHE IR o

M2022F12H318 » SRITERHA
R#36,000,0007T (20214 : AR
50,000,0007T) AAS B R IZE MBI
ﬁa
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RR M (8D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. s ESRTREMMERE)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Interest on bank and other borrowings denominated AR EHER)F B 8RTT R HL b 5 KA Rl
in RMB at floating rates is calculated based on the BEPBRARRITAMOEBERMETE -
borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of RITERMERNRIZ2.80%27.71%
China. The effective interest rate bank borrowings are (20214 : 2.80%%7.82%) MR ITHIHF
charged at the prevailing market rates at 2.80%-7.71% R UYER -

(2021: 2.80%-7.82%).

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EELEHE
The components of deferred tax assets/liabilities EREMBRRENERNELEH AR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial E/REBORFNEBHNOT
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:
Deferred tax assets BEREEE
Losses
Impairment available
Allowance for for other ~for offsetting Provision Depreciation
creditlosses ~ non-current  against future  for onerous Accrued offied  Right-ofuse
and inventories assefs  taxable profits contracts expenses Patents assets assets
RigFREEE  TREEEAR
RRES HHE ERREANER  BRAKER ; Bl  HEEENE  GREKR #it
RIB'000 RIB 000 RMB000 RIB'000 RMB'000 RIIB'000 RIB'000 RIB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTm  ARMTR
At lanuay 2021 RO0AEIRIR 15,354 1064 - 2782 10948 4413 - - 34591
Acquision of a HENELT
sibsidayme ) (FE%) = = - Gl . . . . il
Crediedcharged) o HFA(TRA)
proft orloss il (973) 5 - (1251) (2266) (528) 162 758 (2104
At31 December 021 R021512A31R 14381 1581 - 2182 8,662 335 162 758 3158
Creditedcharged) o TACIRE)
proft or loss & 275 - 1217 35 7,91 (602) - 695 12498

At 31 December 2022 202212431 R 17,183 1,581 1217 2,567 16,633 3443 1629 1,453 45,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

EAEBIHE B
Withholding tax Fair value
on the earnings adjustments

anticipated to be

arising from

distributed by acquisition of

subsidiaries a subsidiary Total
FEHIME A WEEKI B A Al
1% 2 Tk B B F 59 EEXENAR
EH BEERAE gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 202141818 (17,114) = (17,114)
Acquisition of a subsidiary  UEERI B A A
(note 38) (H71:£38) = (5,886) (5,886)
(Charged)/credited to profit (5t A), /BB
or loss (6,035) 93 (5,942)
At 31 December 2021 K2021F12 A31H (23,149) (5,793) (28,942)
(Charged)/credited to profit (5t A),/ kBB
or loss (2,654) 4,861 2,207
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12831A (25,803) (932)  (26,735)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the following items:

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax
loss of RMB12,532,000 (2021: RMB8,652,000) available
for offset against future profits for the consecutive five
years and will expire between 2023 and 2027. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB8,109,000 (2021: nil) on which deferred tax
assets have been recognised. The tax losses arising
in Mainland China are available for a maximum of five
years to offset against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

According to the relevant tax law in PRC, dividend
distributed to foreign investors out of the profit
generated from 1 January 2008 onwards shall be
subject to withholding tax at 10% and withheld by
PRC entities, pursuant to Articles 3 and 37 of the
EIT Law and Article 91 of its Detailed Rules for the
Implementation of the Regulation.

EERIRE E EpL 5118 B R

20224128318 » AEBBE RS AR
HEEE AR 12,532,000 (20214 : A
R #8,652,0007T) @ AIARNEHEERF
B 2R A% F A 7 2023 FE = 2027 FF B RS
FE - AEESBEFRAEEENTIE
B8 AR #8,109,0007T (20214 : #) I
ERHERELERBEE - TP R AEE
EMHEBEBRERZ AFANA AEREA
EEBERARNARRERFEF

BIEFEBERE  REEMBREES
RI7THEAREBEEGOMAEIE -
Bl ERARE2008F 181 HNAREER
w ARG IME B E 5 IRE R BB 10%K)
TR o
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mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised the
relevant deferred tax liabilities of RMB25,803,000 (2021:
RMB23,149,000) on earnings anticipated to be remitted
by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. At the
end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised was RMB1,446,155,000

(2021: RMB1,262,732,000)

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

32. EEBIE ()
EERHEESE ()

1,262,732,0007%) °

33. HANKE

R2022F 128310 » AEE BB T
Bt /B8 X B AA AT T8 LR 2R A% BE I ) 28 1) B 3R
HENERLEFRSH B EARK 25,803,000
JL (20214 :« AR¥23,149,0007T) ° I
WEHR  WTEBRECHREBGENHNE
NAIRDERFHENEREZ2LEAA
R¥1,446,155,0007T (20214 : AR

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T

Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary WEEMTB R B ERE
(note 6) (Hi:z6) - 10,060

34. RHAEMNRIE
34. LONG-TERM PAYABLE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR ARBT T

Payable for acquisition of subsidiary U BE T 8 1 B FE A 3R
(note 6) (H1:z6) - 99,420
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T

Issued and fully paid:
5,000,000,000 (2021: 5,000,000,000)

ordinary shares at US$0.00001 each

BEITRAR :
5,000,000,000f% (20214 :
5,000,000,0000%)
ST {E0.000013ETT

B E R AX 67 67
A summary of movements in the Company's share ARERAZEEFRIMT -
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares Share
in issue capital
ERITRAHE R 2
RMB’000
ARE
At 1 January 2021 7R2021F1H1H 1,007,106,799 67

Share repurchased and cancelled
(note)

BB E Rk (AZ)
(1,330,000) -

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Share repurchased and cancelled
(note)

R2021F12A318 K&
20221 A1H 1,005,776,799 67
B e RIAHENRGD (Mi2)
(56,000) =

At 31 December 2022

M2022F12H31H 1,005,720,799 67
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mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 35. RRA(#&)

Shares (Continued) R4 (&)

Note: During 2022 and 2021, the Company purchased its own Htet : R2022%F K20214F + KL Al & & H
ordinary shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as KATBEIE ZER - FIET -
follows:

2022

20224

Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares consideration
Date of repurchase of HK$1.35 each Price per share paid
BREE
1.35 8 T/
BERAH EEREA BRER ENRERE
Highest Lowest
RS =&
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT THET
31 March 2022 20225638318 56,000 1.32 1.32 74
2021
20214
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares consideration
Date of repurchase of HK$1.35 each Price per share paid
BREE
1.35 8T/
BEAH EBEREAE BREX ENRERE
Highest Lowest
-1 RIE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHT
29 September 2021 202149 A29H 30,000 1.35 1.33 40
30 September 2021 202159 H30H 600,000 1.39 1.32 816
06 October 2021 20214 10H6H 500,000 1.37 1.30 671
15 October 2021 2021 10A15H 200,000 1.34 1.28 262
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or RERN - ARRIMBARBIERES - HEX
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FERIARA R LS (20214 « &) o

the year (2021: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme 2020”) on 29 December 2020, i.e
the date on which the Scheme 2020 was adopted
by resolution of the Shareholders at general
meeting (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose
of the Scheme 2020 is to enable the Group
to grant options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme 2020
include any eligible employee, any independent
non-executive director and chief executive (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any subsidiary, any director (including
independent non-executive director) and chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
any invested entity, any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business
or business development of any member of the
Group or any invested entity, any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or
any invested entity, any customer of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, any person
or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member
of the Group or any invested entity; and any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity. The Scheme 2020 shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the
Adoption Date.

(a)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

R 42 A Rt &

AAEIR2020F 12 4298 ([ #
WA )R, — B H RS
([2020F % 81]) - WEHB - 2020
FEERREARS LERFRBR
HERIRM o 2020F 5T EI B EEAE
ErmaER2mER L HE £
AESHAEEEL BB 2 RE)%
Bl - 20205t EIME BEEL2HE
HERE ANEERKEER  ARQF
s LA B B R R T I IB S FE AT
EZRERTRAB(EER L™
RA  FAHEETEENTAE
= (BEEYINTES) RESTT
HBAB(EERLEWHA) : A&H
ERKE RS EAEIREEED
I EB SIS L ES RN AR
M (BEERHEMFE) BB
M S B R B QR S E %
BEEREIREE R IR T HLE
7 ANEBEAKE R R KA
REBERBNINER  MAKEMT
]k B A Bl Sk E I 1 18 & a8 iR it
e - PR R E A BT IR A E A
ATHELE  RAKEETMFKER
AR E BB EARR
5% B AN B AR B A RSl 1
BREBRHITENIFNEMAEE
A ° 2020 EHEI B ERA A BAE + 5
WA BFIER T
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e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme 2020 must not
exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (which
were 1,007,106,799 shares) unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must
not exceed 30% of the total number of the
Company’s shares in issue from time to time (or
such other percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules).

The maximum number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant under
the Scheme 2020 or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates, would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant: (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares at the offer date
of each offer, in excess of HK$5 million; such
further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

(a)

IR0 HRRESH &I (42)

EITEARE 2020 F 51815 F &% H
RFTH M Al e ITH AR A
BrhsxmE B @ THRBRAKNAF
REMNBHERITRHEE (B
1,007,106,799 /%% 15 ) H110% -
HEE SR AL E AR AN - TR
BART @ LR &8 E NMSH
BARNB TR E BEITRMDEEHD
30% (sk_E TR B AT RE A SR A E A
B e

RER 1218 8 83R - BR 12020
FETEI R AR RER AR K (o] K b AR
MNEETEMEBREERREER
HHHEE (REETE - BEEHK
MARITER EARE) BITHEmMBEITR
BTFEITHROESEE - TF8
BANBEEITROBEMN1% o
F 48 5% LR A — SR PR G5
EARE R IR SRR R K& LU -

(RIDRAVNCIES -3 E 8% hvie 22 K
EEYNERANEMABBEART
g BHERATIRBEZHER
HER(BHEZA) T @AM
NAECEBR L BERNEE (2
BETTE EEHARFERTED
) BTERES BT RS TE?T
R - (a) ARG HITRNE
0.1%: M(b)ERSXAELHAEER
MW EERERASAS
BT AIARE - SRIEBEAR
NAREBRAE LHLE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Any grant of options under the Scheme 2020 to
an independent non-executive director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates
(each as defined under the Listing Rules) must
be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who or whose associate is the
proposed grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The period within
which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than ten years
from the relevant date of grant. The board may
also provide restrictions on the exercise of
an option during the period an option may be
exercised.

The share options shall vest in four tranches on
the following vesting dates provided that the
vesting conditions applicable to such eligible
participant are satisfied:

first 40% of the options are vested on the
one-year anniversary from the offer date;

° next 25% of the options are vested on the
two-year anniversary from the offer date;

° then 20% of the options are vested on the
three-year anniversary from the offer date;
and

° remaining 15% of the options are vested

on the four-year anniversary from the offer
date.

(a)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

IR0 HRESH &I (42)

RIZ2020F 51 & M AN 2 B 8B
FHTER  TBTHRABRTE
BRRIWESBNEABEA (X
ARER R EMARR) X E AT
% AHRBUFNTES (TER
AGHEEBMBARRERERTE
MBI IENITES) #f -

FTERHNRGOEBETBZLA M
F21BA - BEABRAZINEH®1E
THRBARE FAER - HEAE
FITER AR BB AR TR LR
BE - ZHMEATEREEREL
HHifstm+E2EER -EFE
J5 AT pA HARE B T 17 9 HA RS R 9 R
R TTEHEIBR B o

Befn BRI A T ER B B B 0 Uit
ﬁ%*ﬁéiﬁk%#ﬁﬁAﬁﬂ

o BHH40% B R 24 A HiiE
hm—RERE

. Ri25%MEAE0ABE
HAMBERE

o HIXH20% EiE B B4 B A
HBM-REERE &

. FR N 15% Mt B B4 B HiE
HmNBERE -
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e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) RiPHEIREETEI(E)
The subscription price in respect of each share E R 2020 FF 5T 8145 H 1Y HARE &1 T
of the Company issued pursuant to the exercise FMBEITHARR B FRE M HRE
of options granted under the Scheme 2020 shall B EHESSETILAKDBRE
be determined by the board and notified to an FRBMEERSHE  MRABET
eligible participant at the time of the grant of BLRUTESE ()RBITES
the options and shall be at least the highest of TERUBAEREHENBE (L
(i) the closing price of the Company's shares as AREFER)([REBH]) EHBZ
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation Frea BRERFTYIAARR G MG
sheets on the date of the board approving the mE: (NEEREBHAESEE
grant of option, which must be a business day HEBZMEREREXRMIOAR
(“Date of Grant”); (ii) the average of the closing AR T ERFHE  K(iii) &
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the NEfRHEE -
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders RO TETHEAZERE
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. FERRARE FIRERET -
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the P HR & BA R i AR AT (50 B0 AR 1) A /)
share options outstanding as at the end of the TTERERITESNT :
reporting period are as follows:
2022
Exercise price
Number of options HK$ per share Exercise period
TFEE
HREEE BRERT TEH
3,120,000 1.51 7 April 2023 to 6 April 2033
2023F4 A7HE2033F4 A6H
9,350,000 1.88 28 June 2023 to 28 June 2033

202346 H28 HZE 203346 H28H

12,470,000
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

2021

Number of options

Exercise price
HK$ per share

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

MRADEREEH &I (2)

Exercise period

365

TFEE
HEHAE SRBT 1TEH
3,120,000 1.51 7 April 2023 to 6 April 2033
2023F 4 A7H=2033F4H6H
11,100,000 1.88 28 June 2023 to 28 June 2033
20236 H28 HZ=203346 A28 H
14,220,000
The fair value of the share options granted during RERREORODBAEILEE
the year was nil (nil each) (2021: RMB 14,179,000 BE(BHAZT)(2021F : AR
(RMBO0.67 each)), of which the Group recognised #14,179,0007T (B AR¥0.67
a share option expense of RMB2,439,000 (2021: L)) MAKERILREZE2022
RMB2,847,000) during the year ended 31 F12A31BIEFE BRI B
December 2022. M AR#2,439,0007T (2021
F: AR®2,847,0007T) °
The fair value of equity-settled share options F TR R A S 4 B R R (D B4
granted during the year was estimated as at the ZARBEIAREHBHFER IR
date of grant using a binomial model, taking into BT - B IR B IR
account the terms and conditions upon which the KA o TRIIRFERERH
options were granted. The following table lists the A -
inputs to the model used:
Dividend yield (%) BB (%) 4.32 4.21
Expected volatility (%) TE AR 1R (%) 61.62 61.57
Historical volatility (%) J&E 52 1R (%) 61.62 61.57
Risk-free interest rate (%) ER R TR (%) 1.38 1.37
Expected life of options (year) TEETERRE B F R (F) 10.00 10.00
Spot price (HK$ per share) BE(FRAET) 1.51 1.88
Exercise price (HK$ per share) TR E (BRABT) 1.51 1.88

The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future

T B R 8 2 Bt JRE 2% 8 A B R oK 2R
: BYEERR - BEWEMBRLEER
trends, which may also not necessarily be the HaER - BERITEERES AR
acltual outcome. The spot price and the exermsye ATRAREE B B TE -
price both are the closing price of the Company’s

shares at the grant date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) RiPHEIREETEI(E)
Movement of the share options: IR EARE R B -

2021

20214

At the beginning of the year REF] 14,220,000 =

Granted during the year FREH - 21,120,000

Forfeited during the year FAEU (1,750,000) (6,900,000)

At the end of the year RER 12,470,000 14,220,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 12,470,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme 2020. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 12,470,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of RMB1,000 (2021: RMB1,000)
and share premium of RMB19,909,000 (2021:
RMB20,914,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 12,470,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.19% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RIERR - ARFHIE2020F 7
7B A 12,470,00013 M AR1THE
B D BRRE o R EITEZEHE
TR, EAE - AIREBALQF
MEFEREE  BEREINET
12,470,000 N A Al EidmAR R E
A FEIMNR AR AR ®1,0007T (2021
F: AR¥EA1,0007T) RBRMHEHE
AR#19,909,0007T (20214 : A
R#20,914,0007T) (K&t 3175
) e

RABEREMEBER » KRRE
ZETEITE T A 12,470,00017 15 K17
EE D EIHE - MERARAEH
B2 BEITARDAI1.19% °
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Award Share Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme (“Scheme 2016”) pursuant to
a resolution passed by the Directors on 15
April 2016, through which a total of 25,000,000
shares (“Awarded Shares”) at a par value of
US$0.00001 each were issued to Acheson (the
“Trust”) on 11 May 2016, who will hold the
Awarded Shares for the benefit of the eligible
employees (“Selected Employees”) and facilitate
the purchase, holding and/or vesting of such
Awarded Shares as a trustee pursuant to the trust
deed (“Trust Deed”) signed by the Company.
The Trust was established pursuant to the Trust
Deed dated 2 September 2016 with retrospective
effect from 10 May 2016.

A management committee has been established
and authorised by the Directors to make
all determination and provide directions to
the Trustee in relation to the Scheme (the
‘Committee”). The Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from the date of adoption.

(b)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

RBRGE

RABIRIBEEER2016F4 A15H
BBAERENE XA AREEN
B fn 2B Rt 2l ([2016 FE 518 ) -
Bt - & 325,000,000 FREEE
0.00001 E AR ([ SR E AR 13 1)
M201645 8 11 HE1T FAcheson
([f55E)) HBUAEREE (&
BRES ) NEFRARERMDIT
RIBEAR N AZEBRNETERE ([EFE
R ERZTEAREEE  FF
%/ SEBZERERG - ZI5F
TiREBEA2016F9A2HIE
WZE2016F5 A 10HBREKRMEFT
BB ©

EEZBE([ZBE ) DEKRILYL
BEERERFEEL —RER
AXEAREES - BRAREE
AR 2R AT Bl S IR B R S
TEBRBRRN -
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e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

(b)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Selected Employees

are entitled to subscribe for the Awarded Shares
at the price of RMB0.85 per Awarded Share by
way of a loan provided by the Company. The

Awarded Shares shall vest in three tranches on

the following vesting dates provided that the

vesting conditions applicable to such Selected

Employee are satisfied:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

50% on the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing” and “Listing Date”) (the “First
Vested Shares”), provided the Selected
Employees remain in service until the first
trading day following the first anniversary
of the Listing Date;

25% on the first trading date following the

first anniversary of the Listing Date; and

25% on the first trading date following the
second anniversary of the Listing Date.

(b)

RBROE(E)

RIEFTE RIREREAERER
BB AR 0.85 TTHIBRRIAM
ARRERNTT A REEBAD -
HEERODARNATNRERRY =4t
BB HEERERRAREEE
& 8 57 B 1R 1F -

(i) 50% ) E2ED AR 10 I AR A B AR
NEBBMEXIMERA
AFEREMERB(LTIR
[EmA#]) HE (&
B ])  AIREHR TR
MBI FTMHBE—E
FRE-—EAXZANTEEH
5

(i) 25%H B AR LT B
HF-BFRF—ERZA
BB R

(i) 25%HV BB KR LT A
HE_BFREF-—EAXSA

B2 =

Ef °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

Upon the date of Listing, the trustee will sell

the First Vested Shares under the instruction of
the Committee. The proceeds, after netting off
the loan borrowed by the respective Selected

Employees (“Net Proceeds”), 80% of which will
be paid to the Selected Employees. However,
if such Selected Employee terminates his
employment with the Group during the one-year
period after the Listing Date, the Net Proceeds
received should be repaid to the Company. The
remaining 20% of the Net Proceeds will be paid
provided that such Selected Employee continues

to serve the Company for one year after the

Listing Date. If the proceeds are less than the
amount of the loan borrowed, the Selected
Employee will still need to repay the loan to the
Company.

The expected vesting period for tranches (i) and

(ii) is one year after the Listing Date and the
expected vesting period for tranche (iii) is two
years after the Listing Date.

On 7 September 2016, the Company granted
23,170,000 Awarded Shares to the Selected
Employees. The details of the Awarded Shares
granted for the year ended 31 December 2016
are as follows:

Number of Awarded

Shares granted Grant date
RERBRONEE Rt BH
23,170,000 7 September 2016

201659 H7H

(b)

Expiry date

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

REBRHE(E)

RETHE  ZEABEREESN
ERHEEIEBERD - HRIEHE
KEERERESENETE - FTIEN
B ([FRBREFERE] #980% T
KEERES - AT - WEBLEE
EER LT HBE —FEHMK ISR
REBEWEMARK - A2 WE AT
SRIAFEEERR TARE  FT15
HIBFEMNBR T 20% B4 T
BES  MHAELHEREBZANEL
MHEZ —FHREEEAQGME
BAAIER - MEATERIBEREE
AEHRERE KEEEENEEAR
RABEEER

R () R (HBERW B IR S LW
BHEIE— 4 - (i) LRV TR R
BHM R L™ EBRMRE

M2016F9A7H  ARAIET
23,170,000 B 7 T & BUE
8 - B E2016F12A31HIEFE
RS RBRMFIBFOT

Purchase price
(HKD)
BEE

&% B 5 (GB7)

7 September 2026 0.85

20269 H7H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

(b)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

In accordance with the Trust deed entered into
between the Trust and the Company (“Trust
Deed”), the Company has the control over the
Trust. Therefore, the Trust is consolidated by
the Group. Accordingly, the shares issued and
held by Acheson should be treated as treasury
shares and shown as separate amounts in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
In addition, finance costs and administration
expenses of the trust are recognised in profit or
loss of the Group.

The Group has determined the fair value of the
Awarded Shares based on the binominal option-
pricing model as of the grant date. The valuation
model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the entity risk premium
and the discount rate due to lack of control, and
changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate of the
Awarded Shares.

Weighted average grant date fair value
per share

(b)

FRMETFEREARAEBE

Weighted average exercise price

Detailed forecast period

Weighted average cost of capital
Leveraged beta

Entity risk premium

Discount rate due to lack of control

INHEFITTIE(E

SHARTE R HA

DNt E AR A
1E1Ebeta

% e R B i (B

i 2 1 7 P2

RBROE(E)

BIBE TR R RET K5 T2 %
([EXRE]) ARAHEFAEE
EHE - Bt - FrEBEAKESE
ABR o AL AchesonFTE1T R i%
B2 RN EHERBEFRG I RER
EHE=SEHRTERTEEE o Ut
Hh - EREM AR A RITH A E
AEBBLEFER -

AEEDREE B BRI —EA
REBEABELZBBENORAE
B ZbEEABTEFLSEIH
REMEA - BRERERREE R
RZZEGFER - BT BBEARRK
REE R ERZBIR MDA EER
BETERERTE -

o

7 September
2016
2016 9A7H

RMB1.94
ARM1.947T
RMBO0.85
AER¥0.857T
5 years

5%

16.83%

1.04

0.5%

10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

The Company adopted the Supplementary
Scheme of the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
(“Supplementary Scheme”) pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Directors on 28 August
2019, which authorises the chief executive
officer to complete the selection of grantees,
the allocation of shares and the signing of
agreements and other related work to grant the
shares withdrawn and had not been granted on 7
September 2016.

Pursuant to the Supplementary Scheme, the
Selected Employees are entitled to subscribe for
the Awarded Shares without a consideration. The
Awarded Shares shall vest in two tranches on the
following vesting dates provided that the vesting
conditions applicable to such Selected Employee
are satisfied:

° 60% on 30 June 2021, provided the

Selected Employees remain in service until
30 June 2022;

° 40% on 30 June 2022.

The expected vesting date for tranches (i) and (ii)
is 30 June 2022.

(b)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

RBROE(E)

RARIRIBEEER2019F8 A28 H
BBRRAER  EMERAARE
AR D SR BT Bl et &8l ([ %
E)  BEEZEITHRABRER
ERAMEE - RHODE RSB
FRETTUAREAMARIIE - &
HR2016F9 A7HE MBI MAR
RHERRG -

RIFMIES KRB EEAESE
BB R A 1D - SREIR D BN A
THREBEHOMILEE - HEREKX
BRAREEKBERENREBEIK
f

. 60%7 202146 A30H &
B AREREEBEREERE
20226 A30 BRI N5 8
B

o 40%A2022F6 A30H
%0

) R(NEMEFRBERBS
202296 A30H °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

(b)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

On 24 February 2021 and 31 March 2021, the
Company granted 3,100,000 and 1,040,000
Awarded Shares to the Selected Employees,
respectively. The details of the Awarded Shares
granted for the year ended 31 December 2022
are as follows:

Number of Awarded

Shares granted Grant date
RHRBRDHBE RHBAH
3,100,000 24 February 2021

202192 H24H
1,040,000 31 March 2021

202143 H31H

The Group has determined the fair value of the
Awarded Shares based on the binominal option-
pricing model as of the grant date, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the

(b) RERGEE)

MR2021F2HA24H %2021 3 A4
318 + "2 R 5 A H 3,100,000
A& % 1,040,000 I EEEN AR 1D T & 20
EEE - HE2022F12A31H 1t
FERENEBROFBOAT

Expiry date Purchase price
f& % B & BEE

28 August 2029 -
20298 H28H
28 August 2029 -
202948 A28 H

AEED N L BHRI —BEX | H
BEBRABERBROOAAE
1B - HPat R B RIRRF
KM - TRIVRAEAZER

options were granted. The following table lists the K E 28 ABIE
significant inputs to the model used:

24 February 31 March
2021 2021
20214 20214
2H24H 3H31H
Dividend yield (%) IR B & (%) 4.32 4.32
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR 1R (%) 61.92 61.68
Historical volatility (%) JEE 2R 1R (%) 61.92 61.68
Risk-free interest rate (%) o 3 B ) K (%) 1.10 1.30
Expected life of options (year) TEETERRE B R (5F) 10.00 10.00
Spot price (HK$ per share) RE(BRAET) 1.36 1.38
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(b) Award Share Scheme (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

(b) RERGEE)

Movement of the Award Shares: RGO E ) -
2021
20214
At the beginning of the year REH] 7,537,000 8,760,500
Granted during the year FREH - 4,140,000
Exercised during the year FRITEE - (4,826,000)
Forfeited during the year FrE I - (537,500)
At the end of the year RER 7,537,000 7,537,000

The Group recognised a shared-based payment
expense of Award Shares of RMB1,895,000
(2021: RMB1,677,000) and did not reverse any
shared-based payment expenses (2021: nil) in
profit or loss during the year in relation to the
Awarded Shares granted by the Company.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 221 of the financial statements.

On 30 November 2021, the Group acquired 95%
of the equity interests in Qinghai Bogi at a total
consideration of RMB218,269,000. The acquisition has
been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was RMB147,957,000. Qinghai Bogi is engaged in solid
hazardous waste management business, particularly,
in the collection, stabilisation and disposal of solid
hazardous and dangerous wastes. The acquisition was
made to further expand the Group’s hazardous and
solid waste disposal business segment and to increase
the operating results and market value of the Group.

RER  AEBRAARE DM
Bk (D - EiEmP RO H
IRHDAERNTZIAIBEAR
#1,895,0007T (20214 « ARH
1,677,0007T) + i3 % 5 [0 (F (7]
AR BERASKFE X (20214 -
/) o

AEBREENAEERBEFEL A
MR - EIHERS 221 HNGA S
DR ELTR

2021411 A30R » REELAREA
R#218,269,000 LT HH T HI5%
Pt - ZWEEFERKEEAR - A
BELENEESEAARK147,957,000
T BAEANEEEEEEEL  LH
BEREREMOKE  BELCLRES -
ZUWBEETCE—SHBRAEBRNEEERE
BEXEBUWRARNEEMNLEEERTISE
@ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

Consideration transferred: FrégisE (g -
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Cash* e~ 208,209
Contingent consideration arrangement** HAREBLHE 10,060
218,269

* Pursuit to the share transfer agreement, a total
consideration of RMB218,500,000 shall be settled
by the Group in batches upon satisfaction of
certain conditions precedent. The fair value of the
consideration amounted to RMB208,209,000 as at 31
December 2021.

i Pursuit to the share transfer agreement, the Group is
required to pay an additional amount of RMB 10,060,000
dependent on the amount of profit after tax of Qinghai
Boqi during the 3-year period subsequent to the
acquisition (“Profit Guarantee”). The fair value of such
contingent consideration amounted to RMB10,060,000
as at the acquisition date and has been included in
contingent consideration on the consolidated statement
of financial position. The management has reassessed
the fair value of the contingent consideration as at 31
December 2021, concluded that the fair value change

was immaterial based on the assessment result.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Qinghai Bogi at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Qinghai Bogi's identifiable net
assets.

>k

REBERGEZGSE  BLEARK
218,500,000 fERZEK & T £ A 1K
HEBLREB S HEE - R2022F
12H31H - KB EEZARKE
208,209,0007T °

RBR G IZZ 5% - A EEER FIE
#I3FHIAE /‘@ 18 25 49 B 2 18 ) Fil &
B E{TEESN 2 BEA 10,060,000
([FIBRE)) - RUCEERH] » A7
1Bay 2 1B 18 3 A K #10,060,000T -
WEFAMFE BN AR LA LEE
B - EHEEETEZHALAER
2021F 1231 A9 4 B1E - MIRE
LR - B AL BIEEETA -

AEBEEERIFT Hﬂ wRNBFEBTH

AREAEEEMIER D ZK‘Jr%J‘EA%

SR A IF IR A AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

of Qinghai Bogi as at the date of acquisition were as

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

EEEFRKB RSN HRNEERER
ZARBEEOT :

follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
AU R R FE R
WA RERE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Notes (Unaudited)
k=3 (REEEZ)
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB L& 13 113,958
Other intangible assets HEmEEEE 17 35,400
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEEE 32 671
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 2,137
Debt instruments at fair value through other ZA R BEF AELMEE
comprehensive income WamERTE 371
Inventories FE 365
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 548
Trade receivables B 5 W KRIE 18,489
Prepayment deposits and other receivables TN FUIE « & &
H th FEU IR 2,367
Total Assets BEBRE 174,306
Trade and notes payables B RN FIBRENER (16,254)
Other payables, deposits received and HEMEMFKIE - el &
accrued expenses e (76,153)
Borrowings-current B3 — BDER (2,000)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFHIBAR 32 (5,886)
Total Liabilities BERE (100,293)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ZAn BEYENTHER
FEERTR 74,013
Less: Non-controlling interests W IEE R (8,701)
Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition s WHIEEANEE 147,957
Purchase consideration at fair value BARBEYERMNBENRE 218,269
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The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted
to RMB18,489,000 and RMB1,655,000, respectively.
The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were RMB25,762,000 and
RMB1,655,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB8,580,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, which is dependent on the
amount of profit before tax of Qinghai Bogi during
the 3-year period subsequent to the acquisition. The
initial amount of contingent consideration recognised
was RMB10,060,000 which was determined using the
discounted cash flow model and is within Level 3 fair
value measurement. The consideration is due for final
measurement and payment to the former shareholders
payable within the following 3 years. At the date of
approval of these financial statements, no further
significant changes to the consideration are expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair
value measurement of the contingent consideration are
as follows:

Projected profit before tax of Qinghai Bogi in 2022
58 1H 2 2022 89 7881 BR 7 A A

Projected profit before tax of Qinghai Bogi in 2023
F /818 35 2023 5 1) TEORI R 35 A1l g

Discount rate
BhIR &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

B 5 M W SR TE K H b e U sk IE A UK BE B R
WAREED R AARK18,489,0007T
M AR#¥1,655,0007T © & 5 REUFRIEKR
Hi B ENBENSEI R BARE
25,762,0007C & AR #1,655,0007T °

AEBRUEBREEEIIKAARE
8,580,0007C ° ZER S ALEE X I
AR EBERNITERASRA -

ERBEMEN —Hn - BRTKIEESI
FHRATBETHNRTAEN SR
RHHARE - FIERIARENVIRSTE
B ARMA10,060,0007T 0 JHERITEERS
MEANEEZIRAABHEFTEANETE °
ZREERATEIFRIERKSTEL I
TRIRER - RAMBHRERMERE - E&t
RETEHE—FPEH -

IAREN A BEFENER AR
BAZBEMT

RMB21,000,000 to RMB50,000,000
AER#21,000,0007tE

AR #50,000,0007T
RMB22,000,000 to RMB50,000,000
AR#22,000,0007tE

AR #50,000,0007T

4.25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the profit after
tax of Qinghai Boqgi would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability. A significant increase/(decrease)
in the discount rate would result in a significant
decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

FEEBHOBRT %R T KEZMN, OR
L) @BYHAKRBEEENIAEBEK
iELEF (TR - BAERERKE LA (T
f2)  @EPARKEBEREENIAEBERK
TR (L)

ERRBHBARNBESRESNAT ¢

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

U B R RER

WA REERE

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Cash consideration HeRE (6,210)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WiEmRe RIBeEED 548
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AAREERSMELARSRENR S

included in cash flows from investing FReSEBYRE FE

activities (5,662)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in s AK & BB RELE RS IRE

cash flows from operating activities FOESEZID TN (385)

(6,047)

Since the acquisition, Qinghai Bogi contributed
RMB11,963,000 to the Group’s revenue and
RMBS3,346,000 to the consolidated profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the
year 2021, the revenue from continuing operations of
the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB2,162,141,000 and RMB364,549,000
respectively.

BB LAR - SBIEFREE2021F12
ANBLEFEHAEENRZERMARE
11,963,0007T + R¥ 4R EBRBLE 5 F) E RE
AER#3,346,0007T °

BB EE TI R 2021 FEFIFEAE - BIRA AR
EERELEEBHRERAERTF NG
MES B AARE2162,141,0007T K% A
R#364,549,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

On 2 December 2022, the Group entered into the further
supplemental agreements to amend and supplement
certain terms of the share transfer agreement signed in
2021. Pursuant to the further supplemental agreement
entered into by the Group with, the total consideration
for the entire equity interests of Qinghai Bogi shall be
adjusted to RMB50,500,000 and former shareholder
shall be released from the Profit Guarantee. Pursuant
to the further supplemental agreement, the Group
disposed 3% of the equity interests in Qinghai Bogi to
former shareholder. Upon the completion, the Group
hold 92% of the equity interests in Qinghai Bog;i.

For further details, please refer to the note 6 and note
16 to the financial statements.

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of nil (2021: nil) and nil (2021: nil), respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for office.

R2022F12A2H ' AEEFIVE— T
FeihhaE - MEFT MM TR 2021 FF 2T AR
M EHENE TIER - RBEASEEZT
ME— TS 0 S8BT M/EN
wRERFARE ARKS50,500,0007T @ M
ATAR BR FEEARBR AR FE - IR — 2
T AEBERIIREEERETEE
AHI3%ARIE - NFERRE - AEBFES
BT H92% A% AE ©

BRAFE  F2HMBERKRM T KM
16 °

(a) EEFREXH

REAN  REESRPLENEER
B mMESNEREEEREE
BEMFRSIE NS HIAZT (2021
F:B)RE(2021F : F) -

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REZDEENRESR
activities

Lease
Borrowings liabilities
(R HEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTTT ARBTIT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 79,291 37,750
Acquisition a subsidiary g1 =G 2,000 =
Changes from financing cash flows Bi& IR & =& 77,144 (1,722)
Interest expenses A ERX 7,530 2,256
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12 431 H 165,965 38,284
Changes from financing cash flows &R & REE (8,436) (1,722)
Interest expenses FIERX 11,608 2,059
At 31 December 2022 "2022612831H 174,137 38,621
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

ERERHN
EREAHN

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

(c) HENRSRHAHE

AARERERANEERSR
LU

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARBTT

(2,836) (2,159)
(1,722) (1,722)

(4,558) (3,881)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

On 31 December 2022, Jinggangshan Bogqgi, a
subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered into a
finance lease arrangement with CITIC Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Leasing”). Beijing Bogi pledged all its
equity interests in Jinggangshan Bogi and the service
fee receivables under the Jinggangshan Bogi service
concession agreement to CITIC Leasing to guarantee its
liabilities under the Jinggangshan Boqi Finance Lease
Agreement.

On 31 December 2022, Handan Bogi, a subsidiary of
the Group, as the lessee, entered into a financial lease
arrangement with Jiangsu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Leasing”). Beijing Bogi pledged its 70%
equity interests in Handan Bogi and the service fee
receivables under Handan Bogi service concession
agreement to Jiangsu Leasing to guarantee its liabilities
under the Handan Bogi Financial Leasing Agreement.

N2022F12A31H  AEBWEERE
KEREE -

M2022F12A31H + REEKHE A A
FEILES EAEERA)  BhEepME
EFRAFR([FEHEDFTUERER
o AREFREBFENAMLUETNZ
HARE R LT RBETEEHEE
THREKERKEERERTHEHESE - LB
RBMEREBBRETHET -

2022128318 » KREENHB A A
WS (EAEMRA) Ik REE
BRAR(IHBEE DI URERER
e kR RERBENBEETN70%
R #E Ik HR BB 18 25 AR A FF R ME 1 s B T MO FE
WIS ERAER FIHMAE - UEREE
HaREHEHRETHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

41.

42.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued) 4. EEERE)
On 31 December 2022, the Group's investment MN2022F 12310 "&EBEBAAR
properties amounting to RMB8,240,000 were pledged #:8,240,000 THE EMECEIT - 1EA
for issuance of the borrowing from banks, and the IRITE N ERNER  BEFBEHNT®
details are included in notes 31 to the financial HERMIFEST o
statements.
As at 31 December 2022, the bank deposits amounting R2022F12H31H ' BEARK
to RMB83,103,000 were pledged for issuance of bills 83,103,000 T IRTTIFHREEIF - 1ERMA
to the Group’s suppliers, letters of credit and letters of REEBHREREHER  ARERFE]
guarantee relating to the EPC contracts and the O&M WEPCE ) KB4 & 4801 Ak RIER B
contracts signed with the customers, and bank deposits FIEVELR » T AZARY 15,163,000 K9 R
amounting to RMB15,163,000 were pledged for lawsuit TERECRFAREESIEER - B
freezes funds; and the details are included in note 27 to IEE RIS IRET M 7E27 -
the financial statements.
COMMITMENTS 42, EIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the REBRMEAREATERRIE
end of the reporting period:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B REBAE

Property, plant and machinery WE - BB Ries

19,656 17,209
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e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Relationship (a) BA&

Name of the companies

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

Relationship
with the Group

YNCIESEE HEAREEER
Yangxi Haibin Electric Power Development Co., Ltd. (“Yangxi Electric”) Note (i)
SrEEBENERBBRAT ([BEES]) okz30),
Jijiantou Shouyang Thermal Power Company Limited (“Shouyang Power”) Note (i)
HEREBRAEAREET AR ([SHERE]) BiEE)
Chongging Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering Company Limited

(“Chongging Chuanwei”) Note (i)
HPEACERIB#CIERAR ([EEIE]) BT ()
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited (“Sinopec Shanghai”) Note (i)
PR BRI IROERAR ([FAELE]) e )
Sinopec Ningbo Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Ningbo”) Note (i)
PEACERIEERAF ([HAELCER]) BTEE ()
Sinopec Fifth Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Fifth Construction”) Note (i)
PEACERELBERAR([PRIEEREER]) BT ()
China Bogi Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.

(“Bogi Environmental Engineering”) Note (i)
TEEFREIZERAFR((EFRRIE]) BEE)
Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd. (“Richinfo”) Note (ii)
FARERRO AR AR ([EH]) B 52 (i)
Han Chuan Long Yuan Note (ifi)
=)IIBER Bz (iii)
Beijing Jiankun Nenghuan Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiankun Nenghuan”) Note (iv)
IERRIMEEIRBIBR AR ([MEER]) st (iv)
Sinopec Group Northwest Petroleum Branch

(“Sinopec Northwest”) Note (i)
FEABEIROERAGTRIAAD AR ([FAEERIL]) HEE (i)
Hainan Boyuan Zhongying Enterprise Management

Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Boyuan Zhongying”) Note (iv)
BEBRIABRCREESRCE(ARERE) ([BRRA]) Bzt (iv)

Notes: Wizt -

(i) A company controlled by a shareholder of (i)
the Company who has the power to exercise
significant influence over the Company.

(ii) The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, (1)
Mr. Zeng, has the power to exercise significant
influence over this company.

A A AR TTRERNZE T
B FIR R AT B A 2 A o

AR AT BT B #EL
ZRAITIEEEAZET] °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 43. BEAIXSR&EH(EZ)
BALANCES (Continued)

(a)  Relationship (Continued) (@ B&EGE)
Notes: (Continued) Htat - (&)
(i) An associate of the Group. (iii) AR ARBELA]
(iv) A company controlled by a key management (iv) HAARAIEEEEA R A
personnel of the company. ZA]
(b) Amounts due from related parties (b) MBUWEAELRE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat AR¥T ARETT
Yangxi Electric [BPE N (i) 264,632 243,253
Shouyang Power EERE 76,683 39,544
Chongging Chuanwei EE)4% 24,752 28,212
Sinopec Ningbo FAEER 2,397 2,398
Boyuan Zhongying ERRE 1,447 =
Sinopec Shanghai FARELES - 1,764
China Petrochemical FALEL
Northwest 714 -
Han Chuan Long Yuan EIEER 36 1,228
Best Environmental Solutions  Best Environmental
Solutions 9 -
370,670 316,399
Analysed for reporting HEFRABRIEAT
purposes as: DT
Current assets RENEE 232,545 177,547
Non-current assets ERBEE (i) 138,125 138,852
370,670 316,399
Trade balances B 5K 230,097 173,054
Non-trade balances EE B 140,573 143,345

370,670 316,399
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Note:

(1)

Included in this amount is a non-trade
nature receivable of RMB138,154,000 (2021:
RMB138,852,000). On 28 August 2017, the
Group entered into a revised management
service agreement with Guangdong Huaxia
Electric Development Co., Ltd., the parent of
Yangxi Electric, and Yangxi Electric to extend
the O&M service term from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017 to a term from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2025 and require a
deposit of RMB 139,690,000, which was paid by
the Group on 31 December 2017. The deposit
carries interest at long-term borrowing rates of
the Group, which is unsecured and repayable at

the end of the O&M service term.

The balances other than the deposit paid to

Yangxi Electric mention above are all unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group generally grants a credit period of
90 days to its related parties. An aging analysis
of the amounts due from related parties-trade

portion based on the invoice date, is as follows:

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

43. BEAERTRZIRER(

HZE2022F12A31BILFE

(b) BREESHEE)

Hrat -

(1)

Lt

WEEEZIFE SN E L E
Wk BA R # 138,154,000
(20214 - AR# 138,852,000
L) e R2017#8H28H &
EFEGTTE AR A ER
ZEENERBER LD ARG
758 1 5] A 1S 5T B R 5 1%
& BRI AR 12017 F
1H1HZ2017F 12531 A
RE2017F1/1HE2025F
1231 REZ [EZEEARK
139,690,000t * FRi#Z % E #
KEBR2017F12H31HE
11 o ZHE & A E <A S
AP EFHE - AT RAR
B IRIERIKAEAE -

B (BN THERENNER

NG HEEN RERARE
SKEFEE ©

REE—RAERETT R TI0OKRH
EEH - BFREETFENESE
DREZAHNRESTOT

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

1 to 90 days 1290K 124,985 104,873
91 to 180 days 91E180K 80,109 8,582
181 to 365 days 181 E365K 11,936 57,835
110 2 years 1225 13,067 =
2 to 3 years 2E3F - 1,764
Over 3 years 3FME - -
230,097 173,054

383
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

(b)

Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Movement in both lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL
that has been recognised for amounts due from
related parties for the year ended 31 December

(b) FEWREIERRIE(ZE)
HZE2022F12A31BILFE ' B
MR EKEE S RELRESE
BEENI2EABHEERENE

2022 is as follows: BT :
RMB’000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1H1H 10,231
Reversal of impairment of amounts due from JE LK B8 32 5 SRIERL ([ )
related parties (1,735)
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 R2021F12A318 K
2022F1A1H 8,496
Impairment of amounts due from FE K B8 3 7 FIE R (E
related parties 926
At 31 December 2022 A2022F12831H 9,422

For non-trade balance, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering
expected credit losses, which are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31
December 2022 was 4.80% (2021: 4.61%).

For trade balance, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

HIEBESLEHTS - REBERSEH
WY FEBEEEREEBEIETT
BESN - MBREEEETIER
SEXREBBEEELHENER
KR EEMET - BREEHE
LA Pz B 35 B A O3 B 3 R 2R A A e
B FERI (ARE A ) » R2022F 12 A
31HEANEEXR4.80% (2021
F:4.61%) o

RESERME  RERE ALK
RBEEEETREIN - UtE
BHEEER - BEXLERASR
BUBBERANZEEF D EE R
HELH B BT - AT B RIRBE R
NEER - EBEERRHRE B H
ABNEEBESEMN - BAMRAR
ARERLBERRAIRRAHN SRR A EE
£t o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit
risk exposure on the Group’'s amount due from

related parties — trade portion using a provision

43.

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

RELXS RER(E)

(b) FEWREAESKIE(E)

TREIIEARBEES EALE
RYEE T AN B SN EE
B EER

matrix:
As at 31 December 2022 Ageing
K2022#12531A
Less than
1 year
PR1E
Expected credit loss rate TEHA{Z B 518 & 0.78% 4.43% - - -
Gross carrying amount  ZBBRTAI(E
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 218,731 13,672 - - 232,403
Expected credit losses ~ FEHI{EE 518
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 1,701 605 = = 2,306
As at 31 December 2021 Ageing
R2021€125317 £
Less than 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
PR 1826 2FE3F SENE et
Expected credit loss rate TEHA{Z B 518 & 0.74% = 14.67% = =
Gross carrying amount  ZBBRTHI(E
(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) 172,561 - 2,066 - 174,627
Expected credit losses ~ FTEHIZ E 18
(RMB'000) (AR®BFT) 1,270 = 303 = 1,573

385
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 43. BEAXZREtR(E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(c) Amounts due to related parties (c) ERBEEAINRE

2022 2021

2022% 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®EF T

Sinopec Fifth Construction AL ERER 6,848 7,475
Bogi Environmental Engineering  1B&RIRTE 176 176
Richinfo Foaf 225 =
Jiankun Nenghuan s ae IR - 8,050
7,249 15,701

BEZRTHEERNTFI0E90
R EBNBESTRE(BEHEE) B

The credit period granted by the related parties
ranges from 30 to 90 days. An aging analysis of

amounts due to related parties — trade nature is BRI DTN T
as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
1 to 90 days 1E90K 225 12,606
91 to 180 days 91E180K - =
181 to 365 days 181E365K 299 1,445
110 2 years 1524 6,001 1,474
2 to 3 years 2FE34F 548 176
over 3 years 3FLAE 176 =
7,249 15,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Related party transactions

Yangxi Electric 5 PaE )
- O&M service — BHER
— Water and electricity, — 57 E 7 ER
labour, spare parts and HIKE
miscellaneous items charged BT EH
by Yangxi Electric RHIBER
— Interest income — FEHA
Shouyang Power EHRE
- EPC service — EPCHRTS
Chongging Chuanwei BE) 4
- EPC service —EPCHRT%
Jiankun Nenghuan IR EEIR
— Purchase of consulting —BEBHARE
service
China Petrochemical Northwest R A{LEdL
— Water treatment service — IKEE IR AR 7S
Sinopec Fifth Construction PAEERER
— Purchase of construction — BERERE
service
- Purchase of equipment —BEXRE
Richinfo Fah
- Purchase of intangible assets — BEE&EFEE
- Purchase of service — BER%

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
i3 ARBT T

(i)
178,143 178,590
60,192 59,815
5,406 5,846

(1)
93,546 64,156

(iii)
5,947 44,949

(iv)
(4,025) 8,050

(v)
837 =

(vi)
200 5,032
- 457

(vii)
345 -
255 -

Notes:

In December 2016, the Group entered into
a management service agreement, pursuant
to which the Group provided O&M service to
Yangxi Electric, and RMB178,143,000 was
recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB178,590,000).
The Group also purchases water and electricity,
labour, space parts and miscellaneous items
from Yangxi Electric to support the O&M
service. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group purchased RMB108,345,000
(2021: RMB59,815,000) of water and electricity,
labour, space parts and miscellaneous items
from Yangxi Electric.

UEE

(i) RO0166E 127 » KEFFT V&
HRE 5 - B AEE
BAEIEHERRE - AA
B FE2020F 12431 H 1L F/ZHE
BN BA B 178,143,000
(20214 :178,590,0007T) °
AEF I EEE T EE K
E LT HEHRMEER
KB RTS - Bl 2022F
12H31HILFE  AEEHE

BENEEKE  XT - HH
RAETEIE A A R 108,345,000

T (20214 :59,815,0007T) °

387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

BRELXRS (#)
Biat - (&)

(d) Related party transactions (Continued) (d)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) In December 2015, the Group entered into an (ir) R2015F 125 - XEHHEZ 5
EPC service contract with Shouyang Power for REFTIEPCRBEEH A
a total contract amount of RMBZ287,560,000, H & BAR 287,560,000
of which RMB93,546,000 was recognised as T R EE2022F12A
revenue during the year ended 31 December 310 1k FEHERBKAN R
2022 (2021: RMB64, 156,000). 93,546,000 (20214 : AF

#64,156,0007T) °

(i) In September 2018, the Group entered into an (i) R2018%F9H » KEEHEE
EPC service contract with Chongqing Chuanwei JETZEPCIRE K » BB
for a total contract amount of RMB205,880,000, #EBERBARE205,880,000
of which RMB5,947,000 was recognised as T RPEE2022F 124
revenue during the year ended 31 December 3181k FRBERKANRE
2022 (2021: RMB44,949,000). 5,947,000 (20214 : AL

44,949,0007T) °

(iv) In 2021, the Group purchased consulting (iv)  R20214F  KEFRFRE THEE
service from Jiankun Nenghuan for certain H2EEAA RS 050,000
consulting contract with a total contract amount A AR#4,025 00052 K
of RMB8,050,000, of which RMB4,025,000 was 2022 1 AT - R2022%7
paid in January 2022. In July 2022, due to the A BREEWEL B E
revision of total consideration of the business ROo021EFERIZET « (EIEEIR
acquisition done in 2021, Jiankun Nenghuan JB] 7 BE (B BE (& TR
issued a debt exemption letter to the Group to BT THIZHREE -
waived the remaining unpaid consulting service
fees.

v, In 2021, the Group entered into a water (v) R2021F - ZRBRFE(LR

v treatment serv/cep contract with Ch/'nea LETLKREEEA - REEH
Petrochemical Northwest, the service fee ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ%%@{%ﬁj
is calculated by actual water treatment Jigit R - REHE2022F 12

oo L i H31H I FEHERUAARE
volume multiplied by the unit price, of which 837 000 (202145 + 4E) o
RMBB837,000 was recognised as revenue during ’
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 nil).

(vi)  During the year 2022, the Group received (i)  R2022%F  KEBEBETEPC
construction service from Sinopec Fifth BRBEZH AEERERS
Construction for certain EPC contract of ZERBEAREKE200,000T
RMB200,000. (2021: RMB5,032,000 for (2021 : [BEZERBAR
purchasing construction service, RMB457,000 45,032,000t R fE B EA K
for purchasing equipment). #457,0007T) °

(vii)  During the year 2022, the Group purchased (vii)  R2022% - KEEH DA
intangible assets of RMB345,000 and received BEEEEEARK345,000
certain system maintenance and migration T WERFELE T REHR
service of RMB255,000 from Richinfo, R IRBIRHA E#255,0007T
respectively (2021: nil). (20214 - %) »

(e) Compensation of key management personnel (e) FEEEAEHH
Key management compensation is detailed in FEEEABHWFBENTBH®
note 9 to the financial statements. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RR M (8D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. REHESHNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBERR  SEeRITANKREERN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N
period are as follows:
2022 20225
Financial assets 2HEE
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at fair  through other
value through comprehensive
profit or loss income
BRONEE BROAEE
STABEN  GAHMEEE
ERHEE WUENEREE
Designated
as such Financial
upon initial Debt Equity assets
recognition investments investments amortised cost Total
RAGRIE ERMEE
RERLILER EBRE RERE BHEmE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T ARET T ARET T ARBT
Financial assets at fair value &2 7 BEFTA
through profit or loss BRMEHEE 24,661 - - - 24,661
N\

Equity investments at fair value &A% BB AL
through other PEKEN

comprehensive income g - - 5,166 - 5,166
Debt investments at fair value &A% BE AR

through other 2EMEN

comprehensive income EBREE - 287,538 - = 287,538
Trade receivables B SRR 872,121 872,121
Receivable under service RBETEERHET

concession arrangement YA - - - 541,767 541,767
Amounts due from related ElBERTA

parties - - 370,670 370,670
Financial assets included i~ stATERZE

prepayments, deposits and k& REMEK

other receivables FENSRAE - - - 114,951 114,951
Long-term receivable REEWFR - - - 49,254 49,254
Pledged time deposits and BT EEH

bank balances RS - - - 98,266 98,266
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBELEEY - - - 402,488 402,488

24,661 287,538 5,166 2,449,517 2,766,882
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RR M (8D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. RZRERS-sWERMIA(Z)

(Continued)
2022 (Continued) 20225 ()
Financial liabilities Z2HER
Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss  amortised cost
BRALEE
FFABREN BB A
tRBE SENESRAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR®ETR
Trade and bills payables BHRATIER
TR 1% - 1,134,240 1,134,240
Financial liabilities included in other ~ FF AEAERFIE -
payables, deposits received and BlIES RIER
accrued expenses AXHEeREaE = 154,701 154,701
Interest-bearing bank and other FERITREMMAER
borrowings - 174,137 174,137
Lease liabilities HERE - 38,621 38,621
Amounts due to related parties JERaE 7 3R - 7,249 7,249

1,508,948 1,508,948




2021

Financial assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

20214
THEE

Financial
assets at fair

Financial
assets at fair
value through

value through other
profitor  comprehensive
loss income
BRABEEA
BOABERA  EtZ2EREN
BaNeREE TRHEE
Designated Financial
as such assets
upon initial Debt amortised
recognition investments cost Total
RBBRE PREE
RERLIER EBRE B @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAL BEGFABZNLBEE
profit or loss 178,771 - - 178,771
Debt investments at fair value through &AL EEFF AR 2 EKE
other comprehensive income MEBRE = 284,168 = 284,168
Trade receivables eV e - - 885,420 885,420
Receivable under service concession RIS T &2 H THIEINGUE
arrangement - - 341,556 341,556
Amounts due from related parties ElBEERTA - - 316,399 316,399
Financial assets included in SABRFE - ke REM
prepayments, deposits and other EhFENSREE
receivables - - 40,930 40,930
Long-term receivable REEWFE - = 45,548 45,548
Pledged time deposits and bank BEREHENRBTES
balances - - 142,009 142,009
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRESEY - = 342,958 342,958
178,771 284,168 2,114,820 2,577,759

391
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

2021 (Continued)

44. REFESNEMIRAE(E)

=

20214 (&)

Financial liabilities ZHER
Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
RAREE
FABEN  REEKAHE
*RIBE NemaE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills payables BHRATIER
ANES - 1,136,336 1,136,336
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE A fE( 300 -
payables, deposits received and Bl RS
accrued expenses AXHERans = 227,496 227,496
Interest-bearing bank and other FRRITREAMER
borrowings - 165,965 165,965
Lease liabilities HEaE - 38,284 38,284
Contingent consideration FARBE 10,060 = 10,060
Long-term payable REEMAE = 99,420 99,420
Amounts due to related parties e @@ H FE = 15,701 15,701
10,060 1,683,202 1,693,262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s

financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

fRE SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

TMIRZAREBEERAAEBESR
AEENSRTA(RREEEEQAE

NV
ERENERIARIN 2EAERAA
BEWDT :

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AREE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT BNGLRE A\KET T PN R
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value 22 BEFA
through profit or loss BRremEE 24,661 178,771 24,661 178,771
Equity investments BEREANEE
designated at fair STAEM R E
value through other BRI &
comprehensive income 5,166 - 5,166 -
Debt investments at BARBERA
fair value through other HE2mliEr
comprehensive income BBEE 287,538 284,168 287,538 284,168
Amounts due from related  FEULREE 5 708 —
parties — non-current JERNER 138,125 138,852 138,125 138,852
Receivable under service  RIEEFHFRLELHT
concession arrangement B FE IR IR —
~ non-current JERNER 492,005 316,691 492,005 316,691
Long-term receivable REAE M GRIA 49,254 45,548 49,254 45,548
996,749 964,030 996,749 964,030
Financial liabilities ERasE
Long-term payable REAFERTRIE - 99,420 - 101,175
Interest-bearing bank and  FFEIRITREAMER
other borrowings 82,029 83,399 81,267 82,593
82,029 182,819 81,267 183,768
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Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged
time deposits and bank balances, trade receivables,
current portion of amounts due from related parties,
current portion of receivables under service concession
arrangement, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables,
deposits received and accrued expenses, current
portion of amounts due to related parties and short-term
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to management. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with management twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

EEEDHERELREEFEY  2HER
EHERMRITESGNASED - E5HE
WkIR - AR RRE T AR BN R - IR
T HF AT A8 8 2 BETR T FE U 3R TR O B HA &6
2 FITABENFOR - HE REA R YA
MEBEE BIRNRERENERE -
SEAEMBENKIE - EWiZE MER X
MERBE  BNRESFENNHES
AR BRRITREMERZ 2R EE
HHEEEEMES  TERAR/ZETAARN
FEEAEIE -

UARKEMBEERENMHEHEREE
TRTAAABEAENRRIER - ©
EREEGERAEEEER - RNEHmE
BE - cEREEGESMTEBTANER
EHVYEBTHEMRANEIRRARE
EHEREEMRIE BEEESFMA
At ERRERERNETHPERRFEN
BEHR -

TRMEENABNAAEBERENRS
(RHIFBERERIN BT ERRBT
ENESBAR - U TRARGHAAEE
BT RARRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The fair values of long-term receivable, the non-
current portion of amounts due from related parties
and receivable under service concession arrangement,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,other
unlisted investment designated at fair value through
profit or loss have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at
31 December 2022 were assessed to be insignificant.
For these assets and liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed, the fair value hierarchy is level 2.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income have been estimated using the
most recent transaction price method with reference to
the recent transactions at 31 December 2022.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

REAEWGRIE - IR E S RIE KRB
BT A e BETE T /Y E U SN TE /Y 3 B AR BT
D T RRITREMEFUARIEEABIEA
AEEFABENEMIELTIREN AR
BE - EABLELER - EERR k&
TERER M T AR 2 F EAF B AR K
ReREFHEMAE - BEAAEEN2022
FI12AT ARG ERITRAMBER 2D
BRORBAEENARBEZDETITA
WTAEKXN BZEBRBEAANEENEER
BEMS  AABEERAE_LK -

FTREREN AR BEIIRETSHRE
MEE - BERARAABEFTAREMEE
WHELMRERENAARBENZE
HZE2022F 12831 ANRER S - FH
B HARZ 5B T AEfLET ©
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e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

45.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets/liabilities measured at fair value:

Fair value

RMB’000
AR%T R
Financial assets at fair &A% (BEA 21,607
value through profit ~ BHEMEBEE
or loss (note 25) (B1i225)
- Listed investment - LA
Financial assets at fair AR EBFTA 3,054
value through profit ~ BZEMEBEE
or loss (note 25) (fizt25)
- Unlisted - ¥ LmEE
investment
Debt instrument at fair AL EEA 287,538
value through other  Et2EUEH
comprehensive EBIE
income (note 26) (H1i226)

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

45. ERMTITAEZAABERAAEBESER
(&)
AREEER
TRIWRAEBESHTAZ AR EBEETE
£
BEARBEFENEE,AfE:
Significant
Fair value Valuation technique unobservable
hierarchy  and key input inputs
BEATAHE
EfE AABESEH HERLRIZBAE BAEE
2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETFT
178,771 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
£—H  active market. NEA
ERTEMBRMEAE -
- Level 2 Discounted cash flow N/A
£t} based on the future cash &M
flow of the financial
assets using a rate from
financial institution.
BESREENRIHAEN
2 BRARBSREERN
FIRBFNREERE
284,168 Level 2 Discounted cash flow N/A
£t} based on the future cash ~ TEH

flow of the debt
instrument using a rate
from financial institution.
BEREIANRRRESR
g ERXacREEN
MERRNRERE -



Annual Report 2022 F ik 397

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value
AR
2021
20216
RMB’000
ARETT
Contingent FARE = 10,060
consideration
Equity investments ETRRANERE 5,166 =
designated at fair FAEMZEK
value through other  #HHIRIERE

comprehensive
income

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

DAREBEER(E)

Fair value
hierarchy

Valuation technique
and key input

DARESR MHERORIEBABRE

Level 3 Discounted cash flow

E£=f  method was used to
capture the present
value of the expected
future economic benefits
that will flow out of the
Group arising from the
contingent consideration
arrangement in relation
to the following tranche
transaction of Qinghai
Bogi acquisition, based
on an appropriate
discount rate.

ERMRRER

XHNIARELHMER
A SRR AR TRAE
EFISERE -
Level 3 Most recent transaction
= price method with
reference to the recent
transactions.
2EZRRRHNTEBERSH
BIRAE o

% RIS
AENMR R R RESRN
BRTEETRENT

Significant
unobservable
inputs
EATAEE
WAHE

Projected
profit before
tax and
discount rate
AR AT
MR BER

N/A
TEm

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: nil).

RER » E—MEE K EWEQALEE
RTEMNEE MEREERSRABYHES
AF=BHUEE =R H (20214 « &) o
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The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, trade receivables, other
receivables, receivable under service concession
arrangement, long-term receivable, amounts due
from related parties, pledged time deposits and bank
balances, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, lease liabilities, contingent consideration,
interest bearing bank and other borrowings and long-
term payable. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Directors manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank and other borrowings,
pledged time deposits and bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its bank and other borrowings,
pledged time deposits and bank balances at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the Benchmark
Lending Rate of the People’s Bank of China.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the Directors monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

AEBNEZem T AREREREBSER
B BHRYGRIE - HhEIKFIA - R
FRF RS R BE TR B EIE - REFEIK
15 - EWEERTFIE  EERERFER R
RITES  HekREEEY  ZEHEN
TIERENZER - EMENKIE - ERH
EAHRIE - HEAE  ARE  FFER
TREMEFRARKRABNRIE - ZE2
BMITEMFENEBNTHRE  EZE
eI AEENRRETSRR (F%R
FEb c E¥RERREMEELRR) 8
g RmEE R o BREMAEEZS
BRI BRIV T - EFERREE
ZERRE - NHEREEEZOEREEE
i

R EB

AEBBREBRITMEMBEREERR 2 E
BENERERE - AEEIRTBRITREM
R BEWEHETERLBITERERE
EREFERAR - NAEENRRSKER
TREMER  EERERERRRITHE
BREREZENX  UEEREAAEE
MERER AEENRESREMNERART
EEFRPEARRITEEERM XK
E

A E B AL R RE o AT E
EESFEARRESEREEBHHE
AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits and bank
balances and variable rate bank and other borrowings
at the end of each reporting period and assumed that
the amount of liabilities outstanding at the end of each
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2022
would have increased/decreased by RMB1,388,000
(2021: RMB1,356,000), respectively. This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its cash and cash equivalents and pledged time
deposits and bank balances and partially offset by the
impact from bank and other borrowings.

Currency risk

The Group has bank balances, other receivables, trade
receivables and other payables which are denominated
in foreign currencies, mainly HKD, USD and EUR, as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates and
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A 5% increase or decrease is used when reporting
foreign currency rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the Directors’ assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rates.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

F=mEb (&)

TXHREIMIIRIEEHRERARNRES
RIReFEY  CHETPERFREBITE
BREFERITRAMERNONEEARE
o EBRRESHREAREGREENEE
REFFERAER NIBEEAER
HB R ¥R R E B B - NI 50 R BF A
B RREEBHNENAEAEESF
HE R

W =1 RS0 EE S BB H b o]
BRERERTE  KNEEHZE2022F12
A31BIEFERBRBEEN G S RIGM,~
B AREE1,388,0007T (20214 + AR
#1,356,0007T) ° X ZHRAEED
iﬁi‘&ﬁ‘f#ﬁ%&ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬂimﬁﬂr R K iR

HEHmEMERER - B30 RITER
m%;%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ °

BE¥ R

R2022F KX 2021F12A31H » AEEH
BUINE (EZ RETT - %ﬁ&@kﬁ)éﬂﬁ
MERTTAE B - H b FEURIE - B 5 EIK
T8 R E A UK IE o

VAR SRS 0 1T T 4R 3 T R A 1N P B =R 1y
BT BERFEUINETEZHREEER
BETE B O BE NS TE R 2 5% B HI R
H o MEZEIE A B NP R HNE E K=
REF - A 5% LR - KRESHINE
[ 3 /)& 32 AT RE & B 1E (1 A RTAS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

If RMB had been appreciated/depreciated 5% against
the foreign currency and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022 would have decreased/
increased by RMB1,728,000 (2021: RMB409,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to the
foreign currency bank balance as at 31 December 2022
and 2021.

EREABREEEREREE(E)

SNERBE DA

MAREEINEFE, E%BEMBH
Al EE =L TE - REEHE2022F
12A31 B IEFEMBRTBATREFBR L
#inARY1,728,0007T (20214 : AR
#409,0007T) - W EEHRANEEEER
R2022F % 2021F 12 A31 HIMNEER1T 4%
EREVEE XK @B o

Increase/
(decrease)
in RMB
exchange Increase/(decrease)
rate % in profit before tax
ARMBER
tH BB AT IR
(T¥&) % &, ORd)

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T N R

If RMB weakens against the USD MARBHETRE
If RMB strengthens against the USD AR =T FHE
If RMB weakens against the HKD M AR N BT E
If RMB strengthens against the HKD i AR 58 T HHE
If RMB weakens against the EUR i AR HBTEZE
If RMB strengthens against the EUR i AR S BT HHE

(5) 132 621
5 (132) (621)
(5) 1,462 (343)
5 (1,462) 343
(5) 135 131
5 (135) (131)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For equity securities measured
at fair value through profit or loss quoted in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Directors manage
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the reporting date. If the equity price had been
20% higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
RMB4,322,000 (2021: RMB35,754,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity instrument at fair value
through profit or loss.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group'’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, contract assets, pledged time deposits and
bank balances, amounts due from related parties, other
receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangement and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

H b B Rk

AEBRKEREZARBEFABRGE
MRABELFMAEGKRAERRR - REE
BHMARSERARRENIZARBE
AR ENRABLEME  EFER
HRTRERKANIZEEEE REE IR
R o RED M BB NRE BHATER
BRAERRRET o WRAES LA
T20% * AR AR BEF ABZARAN
TAZARBEEHSEHEE2022F
12A31 B IEFENBRBREEFIG IR
D ANR¥4,322,00070 (20214 + ARME
#£35,754,0007T) °

EERRE KRB ER L

EERBEASENSFIRESNEE
EHMERAKERBREANER - KE
EEENEERRTIEREE S ENKNK
B AMEE CHEMEHERRRITE
B~ FRURRERETT FR - M EUEOR - IR
BRI FFEZ P T BUGREARIR A A E
BEff AR EEKRENEFTEMES °
AEEY EFHEAERRRREBEREE
s RSB EEMBNEERR
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Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and other items under ECL model.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group only accepts
bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks
if trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore
the management of the Group considers the credit
risk arising from the endorsed or discounted bills is
insignificant. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The
Group is concentrated on one single counterparty for
the receivables under concession arrangement. The
Group has concentration of credit risk as 39% (2021:
34%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s five largest customers. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on these
balances and the applicable loss rates are disclosed
in notes 21, 22, 23, and 43. The credit risk of contract
assets is assessed based on the provision matrix within
lifetime ECL. For other receivables, the Directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Movements of ECL for the
respective items were disclosed in the respective notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

=& ER KRR EE (F)

AEEREEHEESBERAEeMEE
R HAhIE B EITRERE o REHEME
BFEH - AEBABABEETD Z5
THEEREPZEEERRRENER
SIEEERTE AEEeEFRAEMREG
FTEFZRERTD - AEBIHREEM
ERIEF - MREEURETE) YL 8 HA &
B WESHERRZIBURELEE  A5H
EEMBHEERTNPREBEARITEITH
EROZRE  AUAEEEEERRE S
ENAREMELANEERRBHTE
Bt HH EZRALNEENEER
BRRERD - ERTHETHET  AEEH
EWHBEEEFRE—HFT - BRAE
EHE S EBGRIBLEER39% (20214 -
34%) IEWAEENAAER + Bt
SEBEEEETERER - BT HEERRR
ExE AKEEEECZR—HAEZER
5 BaEETEERBRETEESRI -
REEREBEEHREEBBEXEZSER
EITRHENE - MERNEEXRERTE
2122 23R4T - EHNEENEE
BB EEHEREEEEANEEGE
EEVERT(E - ERHEAMERGIE - ESRIE
FEr&EETH  BEEHRAREENTR
REHEERMAZFEMRTEREER &
HA 9 At FE ORI B9 AT U B VERTAS o B
HEEMNEREEERENTREMB®
RN MR AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk on pledged time deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by local or international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12-month ECL for pledged time deposits
and bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12-month ECL on pledged time deposits and bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.

The Group’s credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31ALLFE

=& E KRR EE (F)

HREEMRERFRERITEROE T
REWTREREEREL TS EEEN
MEVERTT - AZEFRREHNEER
RBR - AREESEEHENRBEIELE
BEBE RN EETREBEAMHBR
EEFEERNEN  HEARETHER
RRITHEBRET12EAFEREEBERFT
fli - REBEFHBEEX  BRACERENF
RMRITEHN12(E ARREEBEBRKR
RTERX -

AEBNEERRIRERBEATE
Al

Basis for recognising

Internal credit rating Description ECL
RS E R B BRAANCEEBENER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-month ECL
iV HF T amEERE 1218 ARHEEEE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL-not credit-
risk since initial recognition impaired
TNHETE BYRHERAREERREZE L7t 2HRREEEE —
BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating that the asset is Lifetime ECL-credit-
credit-impaired impaired
EH BEBETIZEELREERE >HIEHEERBE -
HBEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is ~ Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i sH BEBRANEBEARNBREMN KRS - BAEE  FESHE

BB RRL BB IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. £ REAMEEBERBE(Z)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FERRKREENE(E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRAVARBEHEERGNEERE
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are BREEBERMEMEERNEERR

subject to ECL assessment:

As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12531H

Lifetime ECLs
12-month 2HRNEEER
ECLs
12{8 B A H
FEEE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-ER SRR F-ER L7 % st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR AR%TR AR%T=R

Debt instrument at fair value 2R BEF AL
through other comprehensive 2 EWENEHT A

income 287,538 - - - 287,538
Long-term receivable REEWE 51,748 = = = 51,748
Contract assets AHEE - - - 440,867 440,867
Trade receivables B 5 EWR - - - 918,149 918,149
Amounts due from related FEL BsE A IR

parties 147,689 - - 232,403 380,092
Receivables under service PR E L HET

concession arrangement Lol e er] 546,869 - - 546,869

Financial assets included in ~ FTATERFIE - ke R

prepayments, deposits and  E A EMGRIAL

other receivables SREE 120,772 - - - 120,772
Pledged time deposits and BEATHEFARRT

bank balances - Not yet past %8 — A

due 98,266 - - - 98,266

Cash and cash equivalents -  BRE&REEEEY —
Not yet past due 1) A 78 402,488 - - - 402,488
1,655,370 - - 1,501,419 3,246,789
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Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

EE R RBENE (F)

As at 31 December 2021 R20214#12531H
Lifetime ECL
12-month 2HBHEEER
ECLs
128 A
FEEB
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
15 R EZRE #em* @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETI ARETR
Debt instrument at fair value 22 % EE AL
through other comprehensive  2HEWHHEK T
income 284,168 - - - 284,168
Long-term receivable KA 47,748 = = = 47,748
Contract assets BHEE - - - 445,614 445,614
Trade receivables BHEWIE - - - 921,266 921,266
Amounts due from related W B E T IR
parties 150,268 - - 174,627 324,895
Receivables under service RIS RFET AR E RHE T
concession arrangement ol 3G 347,894 - - - 347 894
Financial assets included in ~ FTATBNHE - Ze& &k
prepayments, deposits and H At MEER
other receivables SHMEE 42,993 - - = 42,993
Pledged time deposits and EEATHFRRRT
bank balances - Not yet past %% — M A
due 142,009 - - - 142,009
Cash and cash equivalents -  BE&RHSEEN -
Not yet past due PENaL 342,958 = = = 342,958
1,358,038 - - 1,541,507 2,899,545

There has been no change in the estimation technique
or significant assumptions made throughout the year

ended 31 December 2022.

The Group writes off trade receivables and contract
assets when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into

bankruptcy proceedings.

RNEE2022F12A31BIEFERN » 145t
HiiE B R EET -

8 & R BUR BT A B 7 By B 75 IR 5 &
EEFRIE A B R - A5 B A EE %
B RUHARANEE (PIIREHSA
RERIEAWERFER)
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Directors, who have established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay.

46.

cREMEEEEREGK (&)

REESE M

nBETRRERTAARAESTRKRA
B MEFCELEENRDESRARE
BRRE - ANEAAKEREY  #HREH
B2 ERBELEERTE - AEEEEHE
FAROFE  RITBE RFEERE
B BEREEERARERRSREN
REBHEREERBBE ZIMBRET
REmERRBDESAR -

TRHAVNAEEFTEEREBBENORIGRE
ME - TRODRESHABBEORMRARE
MEBERAEE R EANKOKTE BHR
e XBEENERAERERE - HH
ERBFEHMNE - RURSBREREH
REOM KRR - GHEHBIIREAEE
AXNEFEMETE -

Within
1 year or
ondemand 1to5years Overb years Total
—FRAFRER -ZEfF BENRE @t
31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2022F12H31H AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR  ARWTR
Lease liabilities MEafk 5,384 21,328 11,838 38,550
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMIER
other borrowings 98,061 86,327 - 184,388
Trade and bills payables ECT AN ANES 1,134,240 - - 1,134,240
Financial liabilities included in FAARMERTUE - BN
other payables, deposits Re RIEF XA
received and accrued expenses ~ £EAE 154,701 - - 154,701
Amounts due to related parties [ REE A TR 7,249 = = 7,249
1,399,635 107,655 11,838 1,519,128
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESER ()
Within
1 year or
on demand 1tob5years  Over 5 years Total
—ERFRER —EnfF AENRE @t
31 December 2021 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
20214124314 AREFT  ARBTRT ARETR  ARETR
Lease liabilities MEafE 5219 20,971 17,850 44,040
Interest-bearing bank and ATRRITRE M
other borrowings 88,383 89,298 - 177,681
Trade and bills payables BHRAFERERER 1,136,336 = = 1,136,336
Financial liabilities included in ATARMENTIE - BH
other payables, deposits BE RIEFFRZA
received and accrued expenses  &EEE 227,496 = = 227,496
Long-term payable REEMNFE = 109,250 = 109,250
Amounts due to related parties JETBaE 7 308 15,701 = = 15,701
1,473,135 219,519 17,850 1,710,504
Capital risk management EXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged during the
current year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, pledged time
deposits and bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
parent, comprising share capital, treasury shares and
reserves.

AEFEHHERNETERE  UERAEHE
SERIHERSBELLEERE AR

BERBLEBRBRATE  ARRAER
REH o A& EHEERBENAFERE

~ =4

#5M o

AEBEzEARBER BRITREME
F o BEERAEHERRRTERRRER
ReFEMARBRAER ARG RE
(BREBA - BEfFRO KR K -

407



408)

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEHFERF (ZEKR) GRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group uses different measures including an
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio to monitor its capital.
Net debt is calculated as Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, less cash and bank
deposits. Total capital is calculated as equity holders’
funds (i.e., total equity attributable to owners of the
parent), as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

46.

THEAREEERRBEK(E)

EXERER(E)

AEEERTRAFERT (BERKHBF
BREEERL R ) REREER < FEH
T A BN RATREET BERITRE
EFRIR & RBITFERMAE - BERN
st ERRAMIBERRR A TN ERRE
ANEZ (B RAHEAEARERED) - 1©
WEHRNELRTRANT

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR%T T ARBT T
Interest-bearing bank and other ETRRITRAMBER
borrowings 31 174,137 165,965
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BeRREEEY (402,488) (342,958)
Pledged time deposits and bank BRI E BER R
balances RITHE R (98,266) (142,009)
Net debt HET (326,617) (319,002)
Total equity attributable to owners of &RFHEA A
the parent FEfL B 2,834,503 2,741,111
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio KRR B
e b & (12%) (12%)
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As at 31 December 2022, unmatured notes receivables
amounting to RMB53,287,000 (2021: RMB8,600,000)
issued by certain listed banks were endorsed
to suppliers and no (2021: nil) unmatured notes
receivables issued by certain listed banks were
discounted to banks. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group has transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these notes receivables, and the
Group's obligations to the corresponding counterparties
were discharged in accordance with the commercial
practice in PRC and the risk of default in payment of
the endorsed and discounted notes receivables is low
because all these are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks. As a result, the relevant assets
and liabilities were derecognised on the consolidated
financial statements. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and discounted notes receivables at the end
of the reporting period is represented by their carrying
amounts.

In addition, the following are the Group’s notes
receivables that were transferred to banks or suppliers
by discounting or endorsing the notes receivables
on a full recourse basis as at 31 December 2022. As
the Group has not transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards relating to these notes receivables,
the full carrying amount of the notes receivables
are continuously recognised and the cash received
upon the discount and the effect of endorsement are
recorded as a collateralised bank borrowing (see note
31) and trade payables (see note 28). These notes
receivables are carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as the overall business
model is to hold to collect contractual cash flows and to
sell.

e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEEE

HZE2022%12A31H » &HF LMR1TEH
TEHARI NS EAARS3,287,000
JL (20214 : AR¥8,600,0007T) Ky fE
WRBEERHEREE  MBERETE
MIRITEITE MR ANERZEEIRE
R17 (20215 : &) - EERA  A&H
EEREUZSREREBRNERR R KE
- MASEHBEEEFHIHEEERIE
PR EEOIERER - BBREEEY
MR A R ERITERITRIER - WE
NEESRBBRNEREENENRRR
K -Eit BEAEERBBECDERANE
BRALIETER - REBRREHREZ
EEEERUBENENERENMATN
BARBRIEZEREMNREE -

BEoN - U AAREER20229412 A31H
ERZBERENER LIRS ERKRE
BMEBRERITHEKER - ARAEE
WEEBHEERKRERNEADD AR K
B3k WEREENEEEDESER
R MABEBRKRNRSREENTET
RAAEKRITER (RME3) REHE
3RIE (RHE28) - AR AL EREERE
EERARBZERREEARBA LR
EREREE  ZERUEBREQAAEEA
AZEBERAEBRNGE B RER
HIER ©
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e MR RR M (8D

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HILEE

47.

48.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 47. $@MEESEB(£)
(Continued)
2022 2021
plPPES 2001%
Notes Notes Notes Notes
receivable receivable receivable receivable
discounted to endorsed to discounted to endorsed to
banks suppliers Total banks suppliers Total
ERETEE  ERfEEEE ERETER EmiEEEE
MEKZE NELZE Azt HEWRE HENZE ozt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHTT ARET T ARBTT NS ARBTR N So
Carrying amount of CEBEEREE
transferred assets - 46,461 46,461 24 664 63,675 88,339
Carrying amount of FBEEREE
associated liabilities - (46,461) (46,461) (24,664) (63,675) (88,339)
Net position et - - - - - -
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. HEWEZEE

No audited financial statements have been prepared by
the Company and the Group in respect of any period

subsequent to 31 December 2022.

ARBRAEEWERL2022F 12 A31H
BRI ERECEZY SRR o
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e SRR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12A31 ALLFE

Information about the statement of financial position of

BRAARARMERRNPBARRERZE

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as B
follows:
2021
20214
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BE LG 59 111
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT /B~ B FROR 154,990 199,990
Investments in subsidiaries R B RARKIEE 1,240,899 1,237,383
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 1,395,948 1,437,484
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - EBe Rk
other receivables H b el kI8 9,649 8,192
Financial assets at fair value BRREERA
through profit or loss EamesmEE 21,608 178,771
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B~ B FIE 23,871 23,230
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 100,104 27,547
Total current assets mENEELE 155,232 237,740
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables = ANE e 620 =
Other payables, deposits received and HERFRIA -
accrued expenses BiE e M e 14,567 13,629
Total current liabilities MBI BELRE 15,187 13,629
Net current assets MEVEEFE 140,045 224,111
Net assets BESE 1,535,993 1,661,595
Capital and reserves BEARR#HE
Share capital &z 67 67
Treasury shares EFRG (1) (1)
Other reserves (Note) H b (KIRE) 1,535,927 1,661,529
1,535,993 1,661,595
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mRE ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20226F12 A31 ALLFE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49.
COMPANY (Continued)

FRARHBERRE (F)

Note: Mt -

AABRBZHEOT

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

50.

Share Merger Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R BER Bt HitifkeE 2EER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT AR®T R ARBT R ARBTR
At 1 January 2021 R2021%51818 1,520,397 371,500 (130,310) (295812) 1,465,775
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFI R 2ERSEE
income for the year - - - 254,789 254,789
Final 2020 dividend declared BEIR2020FRER S - - = (62,073) (62,073)
Repurchase and cancellation of ~ BE RiFHHEEER
ordinary shares (1,486) - - - (1,486)
Share-based payments MR BERE R 4,524 = - - 4,524
At 31 December 2021 and 1 R2021F12A31A K
January 2022 202241518 1,523,435 371,500 (130,310) (103,096) 1,661,529
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRAEERZEBEBASE
expense for the year - - - (66,055) (66,055)
Final 2021 dividend declared BEIR2021 ERMERE - - - (63,821) (63,821)
Repurchase and cancellation of ~ BS[E Jo it i L@k
ordinary shares (60) - - - (60)
Share-based payments PARR AR B RS 3R 4,334 - - - 4,334
At 31 December 2022 2022412 5318 1,527,709 371,500 (130,310)  (232,972) 1,535,927

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023.

50. BIFEmERAHE

MIBEHREN2023FIA24AEEESH#

R AR T -
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